
 
 

14 January 2022 
 
 

Worthing Licensing & Control Committee A & B 
 

Date: 
 

24 January 2022 

Time: 
 

6.30 pm 

Venue: 
 

Council Chamber, Worthing Town Hall 

 
 

Committee Membership: Councillors Steve Wills (Chair), Charles James (Vice-
Chairman), Mike Barrett, Henna Chowdhury, Dan Coxhill, Cathy Glynn-Davies, 
Margaret Howard, Kevin Jenkins, Sean McDonald, Richard Mulholland, Richard Nowak, 
Hazel Thorpe, John Turley, Nicola Waight and Rosey Whorlow 

 
 

Agenda 
Part A 
 
1. Declarations of Interest / Substitute Members   
 
 Members and officers must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests in relation 

to any business on the agenda. Declarations should also be made at any stage 
such an interest becomes apparent during the meeting. 
 
If in doubt contact the Legal or Democratic Services representative for this 
meeting. 
 

2. Confirmation of Minutes   
 
 To approve the minutes of the Licensing and Control Committee A meeting of 

held on the 27 September 2021, the Licensing and Control Committee B meeting 
held on the 7 October 2021 and the Licensing and Control Committee B sub-
Committee meetings of the 7 July 2021, 15 September 2021 and the 18 October 
2021 copies of which have been previously circulated. 
 

3. Public Question Time   
 

Public Document Pack



 To receive any questions from Members of the public in accordance with 
Standing 
Order 11.2 
 
( Note: Public Question Time will operate for a maximum of 30 minutes.) 
 

4. Review of Taxi & Private Hire Handbook  (Pages 1 - 216) 
 
 To consider a report by the Interim Director for Communities, copy attached as 

item 4 
 

Licensing and Control Committee B Matters 
 
5. Licensing Act 2005 - Statement of Licensing Gambling Act Policy  (Pages 

217 - 284) 
 
 To consider a report by the Interim Director for Communities, copy attached as 

item 5 
 

 
 

For Democratic Services enquiries relating 
to this meeting please contact: 

For Legal Services enquiries relating to 
this meeting please contact: 

Chris Cadman-Dando  
 Democratic Services Officer  
 01903 221073364 
chris.cadman-dando@adur-worthing.gov.uk 

Shelley-Ann Flanagan 
Lawyer 
Shelley.ann-flanagan@adur-
worthing.gov.uk 

 
Duration of the Meeting:  Four hours after the commencement of the meeting the 
Chairperson will adjourn the meeting to consider if it wishes to continue.  A vote will be 
taken and a simple majority in favour will be necessary for the meeting to continue. 
 



Licensing Committee

24 January 2022

Ward: N/A

Review of Taxi & Private Hire Handbook

Report by the Director for Communities

1.0 Summary

1.1 Members are invited to review the Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing
Handbook following a wide consultation exercise. Members are requested to
consider the document and the representations received and any other appropriate
amendments.

2.0 Background

2.1 The council issues licences subject to specific conditions that are placed
on hackney carriage and private hire licences to ensure minimum
standards and public safety. Public Safety being the authority’s overriding concern.

2.2 Worthing Borough Council has operated with the current formal handbook since
2016 and a handbook is now seen as a common practice within all Local
authorities. The content has been regularly updated to reflect legislation
and good practice and this is a planned and general overview of the whole
document.

2.3 The Handbook sets out the principles the Council will apply when carrying out its
hackney carriage and private hire licensing functions. It acts as a guide to drivers,
vehicle owners, operators, officers and councillors involved in the trade.

3.0 Consultation

3.1 From 1 September - 26 October 2021 The Taxi and Private Hire handbook has been
the subject of an 8 week public and trade consultation exercise.

3.2 The exercise has received 56 representations from various stakeholders and
trade.

11

Agenda Item 4



3.3 As a result from the consultation period a representation instigated a further
consultation to take place for 4 weeks with all Private Hire and Hackney Carriage
drivers in the Borough of Worthing.

4. Representations

4.1 Representation Appendix A
Tinted window conditions
Remove this condition for these reasons

● Creates stress to licence holders
● All modern cars are now made with a heavy tint
● Impossible to find an acceptable car on the second hand car market
● Additional £1000 cost to replace the glazing
● Licensed drivers going to other authorities where tinted windows are allowed
● Tinted glazing reduces harmful rays improving passenger safety
● Tinted glazing reduces glare improving passenger comfort
● Tinted glazing reduces the temperature in the vehicle
● Tinted glazing reduces the use of air conditioning reducing harmful emissions
● Remove any set limit on tinted windows

4.2 Licensing Information & Response
Current Tinted Windows condition:
A proprietor must not affix, or allow to be affixed, window tinting to the licensed
vehicle without first applying for and obtaining permission from the Council to do so.

Tinted glass where fitted to a vehicle must be light enough to allow enforcement
officers & the public to have clear view of the passengers and the light transmission
of the glazing must meet the following criteria:

● Front windscreen at least 75% light transmission
● Front side door glass at least 70% light transmission
● All remaining glass at least 55% light transmission.

These transmissions can be measured using the Taxi Licensing Team’s ‘tint meter’
when presented for testing for their initial vehicle application. Vehicles can be
presented for an informal test with the tint meter at no cost by appointment.

4.3 It has always been of the opinion of the Police and Licensing Officers that it is vital to
public safety that they and members of the public have a clear view into the
passenger compartment of a licensed vehicle.

4.4 The current window tint measurement was approved by this committee in
February 2019. The Committee took into account Sussex Police's representations
regarding tinted windows. Prior to this condition being imposed, officers were
given the discretion to determine if the level of tint on passenger windows
restricted the view into the passenger compartment of the vehicle.

4.5 All new modern cars have some form of light tint as standard. Often referred to as
Sundym glass, this light tinting meets the current conditions of licence. Heavier
tinting to vehicle glazing has become more popular in recent years but is always an
'option' that is chosen at the ordering of a new vehicle (though sometimes a no-cost

22



option). The issue identified for the trade is the majority of proprietors rely on the
second car market, therefore they do not have the control over the extras that have
been applied to the vehicle when ordered from new. This sometimes reduces the
selection of vehicles that are suitable to be licensed, at the price they want to pay.

4.6 Generally proprietors have sought advice from the Licensing Unit before
purchasing new or replacement vehicles. Consequently, when advice has been
sought vehicles are being replaced with vehicles that have glazing with
acceptable tint measurements. Some proprietors have purchased vehicles
without reference to the handbook or seeking officer's advice. However, this is
rare and only 5 vehicles have been refused licence after being purchased and
subsequently required the glazing to be replaced. Worthing currently issues
238 vehicle licences.

4.7 The cost of replacing a vehicle's glazing varies from £250 to £1000 depending on
where the glazing is sourced and purchased. The reason for the price
difference is often linked to which supplier the glazing is purchased from. The
highest prices paid appear to be for glazing purchased directly from the vehicle
manufacturer's main dealer but other sources, such as autoglazing companies,
can be significantly cheaper.

4.8 The vast majority of licensed vehicle proprietors are self employed sole-traders,
which gives them flexibility on which local Licensing Authority they choose to apply
for a licence to. If a licence holder transfers to another local authority this can be for
many and varied reasons. The licensing unit has no evidence to suggest that licence
holders are choosing to licence with other authorities based on an authority's
window tint conditions.

4.9 All modern vehicles have a tint to their windows, the difference is in the amount of
light that is allowed into the vehicle on average a 18 - 30% tint and even
clear window film or a light tint offers UV protection that can block out both
damaging UVA and UVB rays.

4.10 The carbon content window tinting can block up to 40% of the infrared rays that
can cause a vehicle to get too hot. Blocking infrared rays doesn't just reduce
heat, it also prevents upholstery from fading. This can be achieved with a tint
allowing 70 - 75% of light transmission into the vehicle.

4.11 Air conditioning unfortunately does contribute to global warming issues and the use
of the air conditioning in extreme heat or while sitting idle in traffic is inevitable, high
grade ceramic films can be installed even to the windshield that remain very clear
but will reject up to 43% of the incoming heat to the cabin.

4.12 Tinted Window condition at 6.2 requires an amendment for clarity and should read
● All remaining glass to the seated passenger compartment(s) allow at least

55% light transmission

4.13 Representation Appendix B
● CCTV screens should be made compulsory as it is a visual deterrent to deter

crime and the driver of the vehicle is aware that the CCTV is operating.
● The expense of CCTV download should be paid for by the police or council

when it is a general request or the driver is not at fault

33



● A nationwide database of revoked drivers to stop banned drivers from another
authority being licensed by another authority

4.14 Licensing Information & Response
Currently screens are allowed but they are optional, drivers that have the screens
believe they are a deterrent as the passenger(s) can view what is being monitored
and that the CCTV system is live and working.

4.15 It is the responsibility of the driver to ensure that the CCTV system is working and
the licensing team has discovered when dealing with investigations for local
authority or police, where equipment had either failed or data was corrupt, having
a monitor in the vehicle is a simple and effective solution in order for the driver to
remain compliant and to maintain public and driver protection.

4.16 The download of CCTV is only requested for the prevention or detection of crime,
prosecution or apprehension of offenders or to protecting the vital interests of a
person. and any personal data is collected only for these purposes in order to comply
with the Data Protection Act 2018 and GDPR.

4.17 Currently the driver would have to go to the installing CCTV company for the
download to be completed. The driver incurs costs for the time / travel and a fee to
the company of approximately £15.

4.18 The licensing office has reviewed this process and will be bringing this process in
house, new software will be required and training. This will reduce the financial
burden to the licence holder.

4.19 An enhanced DBS is required and disclosure of any previous licences held is part of
the application. A national register of taxi and private hire vehicle driver licence is in
place for refusals and revocations and it is for the licensing authority’s duty to share
information on a more consistent basis to mitigate the risk of nondisclosure of
relevant information by applicants.

4.20 Representation Appendix C
Knowledge tests

● Knowledge test is too complex and PDA dispatch has google maps that shows
the route

● Reducing the knowledge test will help the trade recruit new drivers

4.21 Licensing Information & Response
The knowledge test is in place not only for topographical knowledge but also for the
following: safeguarding, disability & equalities, customer service, places of interest,
highway code, road signs, english and maths.

4.22 Not all companies operate with PDA systems, having a local knowledge test is
essential to the service that our local companies deliver to their customers and
visitors to the town.

4.23 A knowledge test is the most consistent way of training new drivers and our
neighbouring authorities also have these systems in place and we have a local
operator that supports this process by sponsoring new drivers into their company.

44



4.24 One of the biggest complaints received is the route taken or overcharging, relying on
an app or sat nav may not always give the shortest route unless programmed
correctly and a distraction to the driver relying on the sat nav screen.

4.25 Representation Appendix D
Vehicle size

● Allow smaller vehicles as they will be cheaper to buy and not so expensive to
run

● Allow 2 passenger vehicles which are ecologically friendly and cheaper to run

4.26 Licensing Information & Response
Currently we allow vehicles with

● The rear bench seat of the vehicle must be a minimum of 48 inches measured across
its narrowest part of the bench seat; all other seats must measure 16 inches.

● The driver’s seat is fully pushed back. There must be a gap of 7 inches between the
front of the rear seat the back of the front seat

● The rear seat has a 34 inch gap in height from the lowest part of the seat pad to the
roof.

The size of vehicle is important for passenger comfort and safety, These
measurements allow officers to assess if the vehicle is suitable for the number of
passengers applied for and on the whole a standard family saloon will meet these
requirements.

4.27 If an application was submitted for a vehicle with less than the standard number of 4
seats it would be considered.

4.28 Representation Appendix E
Introduce an Intended use policy and conditions:

4.29 An intended Use policy does not allow a Hackney Carriage to predominantly work
outside its licensed area.

● The vehicle must return to the licensed area
● Prevents the licensed area being deprived of vehicles
● The licensed vehicles service the streets and ranks they are licensed in
● The authority retains local control
● Prevents ‘surge pricing’
● Prevents licensing conditions from being flaunted
● Lewes,Eastbourne, Mid-Sussex and Brighton & Hove have this policy

4.30 Licensing Information & Response
Worthing Borough Council current licensing application questions:

● Do you intend the Hackney Carriage Vehicle to be used to ply for hire within
the area of Worthing Borough.

● Do you intend that the Hackney Carriage / Private Hire vehicle will be used
entirely or predominantly outside the district of Worthing Borough Council

The questions are asked to ensure the applicant is applying in the correct district
and they intend to work predominantly in the district they are applying for.

55



4.31 Worthing Borough does not have a policy or condition beyond the questions
asked and solely relies on the legislation, byelaws and conditions of licence in
regards to compliance and regulation.

4.32 A policy would be supportive in the case of refusal and any further appeal against
the council’s decision.

4.33 The trade should be consulted on any consideration on changes to the conditions of
licence and be given the opportunity to make representation to any suggestions.

4.34 Suggested licensing condition

Hackney Carriage Intended Use Policy

● A hackney carriage vehicle licensed by one local authority may be used to fulfil
pre-booked hirings in another licensing authority as well as on behalf of private hire
operators licensed by another local authority.

● In order that the Council may retain local control and enforcement over the hackney
carriages it licences and assist other licensing authorities with local control and
enforcement, the proprietor of the vehicle will be asked as part of the application
process as to which area the vehicle is intended to entirely or predominantly operate
from for the purposes of fulfilling pre-booked hirings. It will be incumbent upon the
proprietor of the vehicle to demonstrate to the Council’s satisfaction that it is intended
for the vehicle to undertake hirings predominantly within the licensing authority area.

● If the applicant indicates that the vehicle will not predominantly work within the
licensing authority area the application will normally be refused or if found to be acting
in such a way the vehicle licence may be revoked.

4.35 Representation Appendix F
Sight Support Worthing & RNIB various representation and suggestions to support
sight loss and disabled passengers travelling in Taxi and Private Hire licensed
vehicles.

● Mandatory disability training for all Taxi and Private Hire drivers, Ensuring all
drivers are aware of the law and the consequences for not complying with.

● Mandatory training every 2 years.
● Ensure all communications on or within the vehicle are accessible to people

with sight loss.
● The vehicle plate number in a large heavily contrasted print on the rear doors

and the back of the seats.
● CCTV Recording mandatory for every journey
● Minimum % of WAVs in the licensing policy and for no further licences to be

issued until the minimum is met.

4.36 Licensing Information & Response

● Training is applied to all applicants and existing drivers to undertake Disability
Awareness training every 3 years. If a complaint or investigation resulted in cause for
concern or a breach in legislation the local authority has the powers to prosecute,
suspend, revoke and or educate during this period.

66



● Vehicle plate numbers on the doors See appendix C at 4.17 to 4.19
● A review of signage may be a requirement. RNIB and other sight support agencies

could evaluate the appropriateness of the current signage and advise if necessary.
● Headrest advertising is currently permitted in vehicles future consideration on

advertising vehicle details to the passenger when travelling in the vehicle could be
considered.

● CCTV recording is compulsory for every journey and every booking made through
the licensed private hire operator call handler or booking app is recorded and will
include all details of the journey including GPS map tracking.

● Current CCTV conditions  and specifications
The proprietor shall check the system for malfunction at least once a month and, if a
repair or download is required, the vehicle may continue to be used provided any
malfunction is rectified within 24 hours.

● The equipment must be permanently wired to the vehicle power supply;
● The equipment to have a clear serial or other unique identification number;
● The equipment must not obstruct the driver's view of the road ahead;
● The camera(s) must record both forward and rear facing images;
● Images to be clear, date and time stamped, in colour and in high definition;
● There must be no facility to view previously recorded images from within

the vehicle;
● The equipment must be tamper proof;
● The equipment must have a built in battery backup;
● There must be an auto record function whether by ignition switch turn, door

opening, person motion sensor or vehicle in motion sensor and NOT just
activated by the driver alone;

● The equipment to have a minimum of 28 days image recording and
storage capacity;

Unfortunately this condition and specification is not full proof. Police and Local
authority officers have on more than 1 occasion been unable to obtain footage due to
the CCTV not working to a sufficient standard where the footage has either been
completely or partially lost, corrupted and or equipment tampered with, fuses
removed or cables disconnected.
Additional specifications are required to eliminate the failure of CCTV equipment. An
option for this committee to consider is for all licence holders to have a screen
installed into their vehicle which will enable them to instantly know that the CCTV
equipment is recording and consideration should also be made on the CCTV system
being serviced annually.

○ Wheelchair Accessible vehicles (WAV’s) in Worthing Borough are at an all
time low, the current policy was amended to address the decline. Currently all
Hackney Carriage saloon vehicles if ownership was transferred then the
vehicle would need to be changed to a WAV at the next renewal.

○ Worthing conditions also allow rear loading vehicles which are less expensive
to purchase.

○ Worthing currently has 7 Hackney Carriage WAV’s and 2 Private Hire WAV’s
In order to increase the fleets, alternative methods need to be sought and a
consultation with the trade and stakeholders.

○ An option may be to condition the Private hire operators that a % of their fleet
has to be wheelchair accessible.

77



4.37 Representation Appendix G
Guide dogs for the blind association representation

● Highlights the law
● Zero tolerance
● Medical exemption,
● Sample purchasing
● Disability equality training
● Disclosure and Barring service
● CCTV

4.38 Licensing Information & Response

● The handbook document contains the Council’s policy on procedures and standards
relevant to the licensing of the Hackney Carriage & Private Hire trade within the
borough of Worthing and is in accordance with the relevant legislation and best
practice The drivers undertake Equality training that includes Equality Act 2010.

● Zero tolerance to offences. Officers follow Public Health & Regulation enforcement
policy and work within the time parameters within the legislation.

● Medicals including exemptions are assessed by the council independent medical
advisor, who advises the licensing team on any course of action or further
assessments are required.

● Test (sample) purchasing is carried out if the local council receives a complaint or
suspects that there is noncompliance with either the law or conditions of licence.
Investigating any possible breaches of licensing legislation and taking the appropriate
enforcement action to ensure compliance with that legislation and the terms of
individual licences and permits.

● Training is applied to all applicants and existing drivers to undertake Disability
Awareness training every 3 years. If a complaint or investigation resulted in cause for
concern or a breach in legislation the local authority has the powers to prosecute,
suspend, revoke and or educate during this period.

● Statutory standards July 2020 have been implemented by theWorthing council
Licensing committee and incorporated DBS checks are carried out every 6 months.

● CCTV recording is compulsory for every journey and every booking made through
the licensed private hire operator call handler or booking app is recorded and will
include all details of the journey including GPS map tracking. The Information
Commission Office does not allow compulsory sound, Worthing Council has a
condition that assists this issue by allowing the driver to have an On Off button fitted
within the vehicle.

4.39 Representation Appendix H
Sompting Parish Council representation

● Add the name of any individual that is in contact with the booker
● Provision of a monthly register of all booking staff taking calls for an operator and any

changes must be notified immediately
● All booking staff dispatching vehicles to provide a DBS check every 12 Months
● Passenger Carrying Vehicles and Public Service Vehicles not to be permitted under

the Private Hire Vehicle operator licence.

88



4.40 Licensing Information & Response

● The person making the booking is a condition of licence and must be recorded on the
booking records and maintained by the licensed operator.

● The licensing office requires the operator as a condition of their licence to provide a
monthly record of all staff that will take bookings or dispatch vehicles

● All staff that take bookings or dispatch vehicles must be DBS checked every 12
months.

● These items were previously addressed by the licensing committee and will be
included in the updated version of the Taxi and Private Hire Handbook.

● Public service vehicles and Passenger carrying vehicle section at 8.16 and 8.17 in
the Statutory Taxi and Private Hire update to the handbook required

4.41 Representation Appendix I
The insight team representation

● More wheelchair accessible vehicles
● Allow wheelchair vehicles after 10 years old

4.42 Licensing Information & Response

● Wheelchair Accessible vehicles (WAV’s) in Worthing Borough are at an all time low,
the current policy was amended to address the decline. Currently all Hackney
Carriage saloon vehicles if ownership was transferred then the vehicle would need to
be changed to a WAV at the next renewal.

● Worthing conditions also allow rear loading vehicles which are less expensive to
purchase.

● Worthing currently has 7 Hackney Carriage WAV’s and 2 Private Hire WAV’s In order
to increase the fleets, alternative methods need to be sought and a consultation with
the trade and stakeholders.

● An option may be to condition the Private hire operators that a % of their fleet has to
be wheelchair accessible.

● Age of vehicle condition is in place that allows the maximum age limit of 10 years
may only be exceeded if the vehicle presented is in exceptional condition.

4.43 Any policies in place may be amended without a full review and or consultation for
clarity and if legislation requires it.

4.44 Various amendments have been made to the handbook  in accordance with,
legislation, implementation of new standards or procedures with third parties,
product availability and for clarification. The following amendments have taken place
and are highlighted in blue

4.45 Appendix I at 2.4
Additional guidance on  renewal  of DVLA driving licence applications
It is the responsibility of the licence holder to ensure that the DVLA licence remains
valid and any renewals to the DVLA are submitted before the expiry.
Applications online to the DVLA is the fastest way to apply for a renewal. Retain
proof that application to renew an expiring or expired DVLA licence has been
completed. Online applications will issue you with a unique code and by post obtain a
receipt and proof of posting. Failure to renew may result in suspension of your
licence.

99



4.46 Section 5 at 5.15 and Appendix I at 2.2
Updated: The applicant must submit a completed DVLA driving licence
check code on application for checking on the DVLA website.

4.47 Appendix K at 3.13
Additional condition from the Taxi and Private Hire Statutory Standards : Private hire
vehicle operators have a duty under data protection legislation to protect the
information they record. The Information Commissioner’s Office provides
comprehensive on-line guidance on registering as a data controller and how to meet
their obligations.

4.48 Appendix L Enforcement at 9.5
Additional condition from the Taxi and Private Hire Statutory Standards Using a
hand-held device whilst driving Where an applicant has a conviction for
using a held‐hand mobile telephone or a hand‐ held device whilst driving, a licence
will not be granted until at least five years have elapsed since the conviction or
completion of any sentence or driving ban imposed, whichever is the later.

4.49 The local authority will be responsible for mandatory checks on companies and sole
traders applying for licences to either drive a taxi or private hire vehicle or operate a
private hire business. The general description of this measure is called conditionality.
These checks will be introduced from 4 April 2022 to check on tax registration for
applications to renew

● Hackney Carriage (Taxi) driver licence
● Private Hire driver licence
● Operate a Private Hire business

The detail below will be included to the relevant sections of the handbook
First Applications
First applicants will have to confirm they are aware of the guidance about their tax
obligations.

Renewal Applications
An applicant who wishes to renew a licence will need to carry out a tax check. The
licensing body Worthing Borough Council will have to obtain confirmation from HMRC
that the applicant has completed the check.

If the applicant does not provide a valid tax check code their licence will expire on the
date their licence expires or 28 days after the request date for their tax check code

5.0 Proposals

5.1 In light of the representations members are invited to make a decision as to whether
the changes to the handbook are necessary  and of extreme importance.

5.2 Approve all recommendations published in the Taxi and Private Hire Statutory
Standards.

1010



5.3 The changes are an attempt to formulate standards addressing
● Neighbouring consistent and fair approach with neighbouring authorities
● Consideration to the National Disability Strategy (July 2021)
● The Taxi and Private Hire standards (June 2021)
● Assistance to the trade with clear guidance and understanding

6.0 Legal

6.1 When determining licensing policies and applications, the principles of the Human
Rights Act 1998 must be taken into consideration. The convention rights of both
individuals and members of the public as a whole will be given due weight. The Act
acknowledges that local authorities are entitled, amongst other things, to act where
this is in the “general interest”.

6.2 Members must consider each licensing issue on its own merits, and in accordance
with the principles of natural justice, as well as the provisions of the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.  All relevant factors must be
taken into account, and all irrelevant factors must be disregarded.

6.3 All policies, guidance and applications, before Committee, must be considered
against the backdrop of anti-discriminatory legislation, such as the Equality Act 2010
and also in accordance with the Council's stated policy on Equal Opportunities.

6.4 In accordance with Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 the Council is
under a duty to exercise its functions with due regard to the likely effect on, and the
need to do all it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in its areas.  The
possible crime and disorder implications are clearly relevant factors in the
consideration of all licensing matters.  In giving "due regard" to these possible
implications members will consider and weigh up all the information available and
representations made, including those from the public and authorities particularly
the Police.

7.0 Financial implications

7.1 The costs in respect of officer time will be met from within the approved staffing
budget and are covered by the relevant fee charged to the taxi trade.

8.0 Recommendation
The Committee is asked to consider the representations received and
information on the Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Handbook. Members
are requested to make any necessary and compulsory amendments as
guided by the DfT statutory standards or recommend any further
amendments to the Taxi and Private Hire handbook that is used by the
local industry, new applicants, council officers and members when
considering Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing matters and or to
recommend further consultation for review at a future committee hearing.

Provide reasons for the decision.

1111



Tina Favier
Interim Director for Communities

Contact Officer
Teresa Bowley

Licensing Officer
Portland House
Richmond Road
Worthing
BN11 1HS
Tel: 01273 236146
Email: teresa.bowley@adur-worthing.gov.uk

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Taxi and Private Hire Handbook
Departments for Transports (DfT) Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards
National Disability Strategy July 2021

Representations
Trade
Appendix A - Tinted Window condition
Appendix B - CCTV
Appendix C - Knowledge tests
Appendix D - Vehicle size
Appendix E - Intended use policy

Stakeholders
Appendix F - Sight support Worthing & RNIB
Appendix G - Guide Dogs UK
Appendix H - Sompting Parish Council
Appendix I - Insight team

1212

mailto:tina.favier@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:teresa.bowley@adur-worthing.gov.uk
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1006098/National-Disability-Strategy_web-accesible-pdf.pdf


Schedule of Other Matters

1.0 Council Priority
1.1 Licensing of taxi and private hire drivers is directly related to public safety

issues.

2.0 Specific Action Plans
2.1 Matter considered and no issues identified.

3.0 Sustainability Issues
3.1 Promoting sustainable and inclusive economic growth – Improving the

economic wellbeing of local people and businesses boosting the local
economy.

4.0 Equality Issues
4.1 There are no impact assessments associated with this report.

The aim of any new policies would be to reduce the risk posed by licence
holders to the travelling public, and to increase the confidence of the public
that their taxi and Private hire drivers can be trusted.

5.0 Community Safety Issues (Section 17)
5.1 The Council is committed to community safety.

6.0 Human Rights Issues
6.1 All applicants have the right to expect that their application will be properly

and fairly considered. The public have a right to expect the Council to protect
them from improper persons being granted a licence.

7.0 Reputation
7.1 The Committee must balance the rights of the trade against the potential risk

to the Council’s reputation if it should transpire that the wrong decision has
been taken.

8.0 Consultations
8.1 Matter considered and any further consultations will take place with taxi and

private hire trade, public and  representatives.

9.0 Risk Assessment
9.1 Matter considered and no issues identified..

10.0 Health & Safety Issues
10.1 Matter considered and no issues identified.

11.0 Procurement Strategy
11.1 Matter considered and no issues identified.

12.0 Partnership Working
12.1 Matter considered and no issues identified.

1313



1414



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire
Licensing Handbook

13 February 2019

2021 Handbook Review - Consultation Copy

1
15



1. Executive Summary

2. Definitions

3. Introduction

4. Vehicles - Hackney Carriages and Private Hire

5. Drivers - Hackney Carriage and Private Hire

6. Operators - Private Hire

7. Disciplinary and Enforcement Measures
Amendments & Additions

● First Approved 26 September 2016

● Appendix M approved 15 December 2016

● Reviewed & Amended 13 February 2019

● Highlighted in the document DfT Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Standards
approved 28 June 2021 including points of clarification

2
16



Appendices
Page

Appendix A Hackney Carriage Vehicle Specification 16

Appendix B Hackney Carriage Conditions of Licence 21

Appendix C Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licensing Procedures 27

Appendix D Hackney Carriage Byelaws 28

Appendix E Private Hire Vehicle Specification 32

Appendix F Private Hire Vehicle Conditions of Licence 37

Appendix G Private Hire Limousines & Speciality Vehicles Special Conditions 43

Appendix H Private Hire Vehicle Licensing Procedure 45

Appendix I Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Driver Licence Procedures 47

Appendix J Private Hire Driver Licence Conditions 52

Appendix K Private Hire Operator's Licence Conditions 54

Appendix L       Enforcement 58

Appendix M Point System 64

3
17

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1abBmfehSW-ZTvEc5QOPrQNuiGrBBCnauLkWEbJ3DwX4/edit#heading=h.2et92p0
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1abBmfehSW-ZTvEc5QOPrQNuiGrBBCnauLkWEbJ3DwX4/edit#heading=h.3dy6vkm
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1abBmfehSW-ZTvEc5QOPrQNuiGrBBCnauLkWEbJ3DwX4/edit#heading=h.1t3h5sf
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1abBmfehSW-ZTvEc5QOPrQNuiGrBBCnauLkWEbJ3DwX4/edit#heading=h.4d34og8
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1abBmfehSW-ZTvEc5QOPrQNuiGrBBCnauLkWEbJ3DwX4/edit#heading=h.2s8eyo1
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1abBmfehSW-ZTvEc5QOPrQNuiGrBBCnauLkWEbJ3DwX4/edit#heading=h.17dp8vu
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1abBmfehSW-ZTvEc5QOPrQNuiGrBBCnauLkWEbJ3DwX4/edit#heading=h.3rdcrjn
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1abBmfehSW-ZTvEc5QOPrQNuiGrBBCnauLkWEbJ3DwX4/edit#heading=h.26in1rg
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1abBmfehSW-ZTvEc5QOPrQNuiGrBBCnauLkWEbJ3DwX4/edit#heading=h.35nkun2
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1abBmfehSW-ZTvEc5QOPrQNuiGrBBCnauLkWEbJ3DwX4/edit#heading=h.1ksv4uv


1.         Executive Summary

1.1        This document contains the Council’s policy on procedures and standards relevant to
the licensing of the Hackney Carriage & Private Hire trade within the borough of
Worthing.

1.2         In drafting this document, the Council has had regard to the Department for Transport
Guidance and relevant legislation including the Equality Act 2010.

4
18



2.        Definitions

Throughout this document:

● “the Council” or “the Authority” means Worthing Borough Council

● Authorised Officer” means an officer of the Licensing Authority authorised
to administer the licensing function under the 1847 Act and 1976 Act

● “Driver” or “Licensed Driver” means drivers of Hackney Carriage or Private Hire
vehicles, unless the context indicates otherwise.

● “Vehicle” or “Licensed Vehicle” means all vehicles in Hackney Carriage & Private
Hire.

● “Hackney Carriage” means a vehicle licensed under the Town Police Clauses Act
1847 to ply for hire throughout the district controlled by the Council.

● “Private Hire vehicle” means a vehicle licensed under the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 to carry passengers for hire or reward with the
services of a driver.

● “Private Hire operator” means a person who in the course of business makes
provision for the invitation or acceptance of bookings for Private Hire vehicles.

● “DfT” means the Department for Transport, including previous names under which
that Department has been known.

● “DfT Guidance” means The Department for Transport – Hackney Carriage and
Private Hire Vehicle Licensing: Best Practice Guidance, published in March 2010.

● “The Committee” will mean the Licensing Committee of the Council.

● The word “Taxi” has no meaning in law and is often used generically to describe
 vehicles

● The term “DVLA driving licence” means a full original GB driving licence issued by
the Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency

● Any reference to “proprietor” is a reference to the proprietor of either a Hackney
Carriage or a Private Hire vehicle, unless the context indicates otherwise.

5
19



3.       Introduction

3.1      The Borough of Worthing is situated in the County of West Sussex which contains seven
local councils in total; Worthing is a compact urban seaside borough.  It is one of the
largest towns in West Sussex with a population of around 100,000, covering an area of
3300 hectares. Worthing Borough Council and Adur District Council are served by a
single officer structure but remain separate Authorities.

3.2      Worthing Borough Council (The Council) is the Licensing Authority under the Town
Police Clauses Act 1847 and Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.
The Council is responsible for the administration and enforcement of taxi legislation
within the borough and includes, among other duties, the granting of Hackney Carriage
and Private Hire licences. This handbook has been prepared in accordance with the
relevant legislation and best practice. The handbook sets out the policies and conditions
the Council will generally apply to promote public safety when making decisions and
dealing with Hackney Carriage & Private Hire matters.

3.3       As the Licensing Authority the Council’s primary function is protection of the public whilst
providing businesses with the relevant licences & permits necessary to carry out a
legitimate business. Licensing is the tool used by the Government to ensure the safety
of the public and enforce standards.

3.4      The Council has responsibility for the licensing of vehicles, drivers and operators within
the borough of Worthing.

3.5       In exercising its discretion in carrying out these regulatory functions, the Council will
have regard to this document.

3.6       Notwithstanding the existence of this handbook, each application or enforcement
measure will be considered on its own merits. Where it is necessary for the Council to
depart substantially from its policy, reasons will be given for doing so.

3.7       This policy will take effect on 10 October 2016 and will remain in existence for a period
of 5 years, during which it shall be kept under review and revised as appropriate.

6
20



4.       Vehicles - Hackney Carriage & Private Hire

Limitation of Hackney Carriage Vehicles

4.1      The Council has a limited number of Hackney Carriage Saloon type vehicles licensed.
There is no limitation on the number of Hackney Carriage vehicle licenses the council
may issue. However, any new Hackney Carriage licence application will only be
considered for wheelchair accessible type vehicles. The Council is seeking to maintain a
mixed fleet.  

Specifications and Conditions

4.2      The Council has adopted minimum specification standards for Hackney Carriage and
Private Hire vehicles and these are set out in Appendix A for Hackney Carriages and
Appendix E for Private Hire vehicles.

4.3 Once a licence is granted, the Council will attach conditions to a vehicle licence.  A set
of standard conditions for Hackney Carriage vehicle licences is set out at Appendix B,
and a set of standard conditions for Private Hire vehicles is set out at Appendix F.  The
Council considers that it is reasonable and necessary that these conditions be attached
to the grant of most licences, however, these may be amended or additional conditions
attached as may be considered appropriate in individual cases.

4.4       Vehicles will, in general, be licensed for the carriage of up to 4 passengers, but
applications in relation to larger vehicles that can accommodate up to 8 passengers will
be considered, provided that there is compliance with the specifications applicable to
such vehicles. Purpose-built vehicles are amongst those which the Council will licence
only as Hackney Carriages in view of the possible confusion in the minds of the
travelling public between the 2 types of vehicle.

Accessibility

4.5      The Council is committed to an accessible public transport system in which disabled
people have the same opportunities to travel as other members of society.

4.6       Licensed drivers are reminded that they are placed under certain duties by law to
provide assistance to people in wheelchairs, to carry them safely and not to charge extra
for doing so. Failure to abide by these duties could lead to prosecution and a maximum
fine of £1,000.  

4.7       All licensed Hackney Carriage & Private Hire drivers will be required to undertake
disability awareness training as prescribed in this policy. This will take effect as of the
renewal date in respect of drivers already holding a licence who have not undertaken
disability training before the date of the policy's adoption.

Maximum Age of Vehicles

4.8      The Council has an age restriction on licensed vehicles, (see Appendices A and E), but
all applications for the licensing of vehicles will be treated on their individual merits.  The
conditions set out in Appendices B and F have been placed on the licensing of vehicles.
Applicants wishing to licence vehicles outside of this policy should show exceptional
reason for the Council to deviate from the agreed policy.

7
21



Vehicle Testing

4.9      No vehicle may be used as a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire vehicle unless it has
been given a Garage Inspection report following a satisfactory test, and the Council has
appropriately licensed it. Responsibility for ensuring the vehicle is tested and licensed
remains with the proprietor. Vehicle inspections are to be carried out by MOT approved
garages within the borough or at the Councils’ Commerce Way workshops. The Council
will accept the first garage inspection report for a new vehicle from the garage where the
vehicle is purchased.

Signage & Advertising

4.10    Members of the public can often confuse Hackney Carriages and Private Hire vehicles.
Often not realising that Private Hire vehicles are not available for immediate hire and
cannot be hailed in the street.  It is, therefore, important that members of the public are
able to distinguish each type of vehicle easily.

4.11     Within the Council’s area both Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicles are required
to display a licence plate on the rear of the vehicle. The plates are different colours to
distinguish one class of licensed vehicle from another.  This is a key feature in helping to
identify vehicles that are properly licensed.  There are some exceptions to this
requirement which are set out in Appendix G.

4.12    The Council recognises that advertising on licensed vehicles can benefit the trade as it
can generate income for the proprietor. As such, the Council permits advertising on its
licensed vehicles provided that the advertising for Hackney Carriage vehicles complies
with the criteria set out in Appendix B and F.

Security & Closed Circuit Television (CCTV)

4.13    CCTV facilities are compulsory in a licensed vehicle from 30 September 2019. The
proprietor will be responsible for ensuring the system conforms to the Data Protection
Act, General Data Protection Regulations and other relevant legislation, and displays the
necessary informative notice for passengers.

4.14    CCTV equipment in the vehicles must follow the guidance as set out in Appendices A, B,
E or F as appropriate to their licence. All decisions regarding safety issues relating to a
CCTV installation are delegated to Authorised Officers in consultation with the Licensing
& Control Chair.

Application Procedures

4.15    The application process for Hackney Carriage licences are set out in Appendix C, and
the application process for Private Hire vehicle licences are set out in Appendix H.  All
applications must be submitted together with supporting documentation and the relevant
application fee.

Consideration of Applications

4.16    The Council will consider each application on its own merits once it is satisfied that the
appropriate criteria have been met, the application form is complete and supporting
documents have been submitted.

8
22



Grant and Renewal of Licences 

4.17    Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicle licences will usually be granted for 12
months. However, the Council may licence for a shorter period, should this be
appropriate in the circumstances. 

4.18    The Council sends reminder letters to taxi proprietors 4 to 6 weeks before an existing
licence expires in order to assist proprietors in their prompt submission of renewal
applications, however, the responsibility to ensure renewal applications are submitted on
time remains with the proprietor.

4.19     The Council will only accept complete applications with  all the necessary paperwork. If
an application is received late and the licence expires and if the vehicle is more than 7
years old the Council, except in exceptional circumstances, will not renew the licence
and the licence plate must be returned to the Council.

4.20     The application fees payable are usually subject to annual review.

Stretched Limousines & Specialty Vehicles

4.21    The licensing of limousines and speciality vehicles will be approached on the basis that
these vehicles have a legitimate role to play in the trade, meeting a public demand.
 Therefore, licence applications for such vehicles will not be automatically rejected
because they do not meet the standard licensing conditions (for example Limousines are
often left-hand drive) and each application will be considered on its own merit.  However,
in considering any application for these types of vehicles, the Council will have regard to
any relevant guidance issued by the government, such as by the Driver and Vehicle
Standard Agency (DVSA). 

4.22     As these vehicles may not meet the usual vehicle specification, additional
documentation and inspection may be required as part of the application process so that
the Council can be satisfied as to the safety and suitability of any individual vehicle. This
is set out further in Appendix G.

4.23    The Council strongly recommends that anyone who wishes to licence a limousine (or any
other non-standard specialty vehicle) contacts the Council’s Licensing section before
purchasing a vehicle to ensure that advice can be provided as to whether the vehicle is
likely to meet the required standards, as each vehicle will be considered on its own
merit.

Contract Vehicles and Courtesy Vehicles

4.24     The Council will have regard to the DfT’s Vehicle Licensing note dated August 2011 (and
any supplementary DfT guidance notes) when considering whether any particular
contract vehicle requires a vehicle licence.

4.25     All vehicles with 8 or fewer seats that carry passengers for hire and reward must be
licensed with the Council. Although there has been some legal debate regarding this
particular issue, current case law supports the view that vehicles which are used as
“courtesy cars”, i.e. for transporting customers to and from hotels, night-clubs, etc. are

9
23



being provided for hire and reward in the course of business, irrespective of whether or
not a charge is made for such service. They should, accordingly, be licensed with the
Council, as should their “operator”.

4.26     Those operating “courtesy cars”, i.e. for transporting customers to and from hotels,
nightclubs, etc. should have an operator’s licence, and the vehicle and driver must be
appropriately licensed.   

5. Drivers - Hackney Carriage and Private Hire

Testing

5.1      The procedures for Hackney Carriage & Private Hire drivers are broadly parallel. Drivers
will be required to undertake testing as part of the application procedure. Details of the
tests are available in Appendix I and in the application packs.

Drivers of Executive Plated Vehicles, Stretched Limousine and Specialty Vehicles

5.2      Again the procedures are broadly parallel to the standard requirements for Hackney
Carriage and Private Hire driver licences. The statutory requirements, the practical
criteria and qualifications for all licensed drivers are broadly similar. The sections below,
therefore, apply equally to all drivers.

Driving Proficiency and Qualifications

5.3      The Driving Standards Agency (DSA) provides a driving assessment specifically
designed for taxi drivers.  The Council has decided that all new applicants must
successfully pass this test in order to be considered for a Hackney Carriage or Private
Hire driver’s licence.   

Medical Examination

5.4      All applicants are required to meet the DVLA Group 2 medical standard or equivalent.
This requires all applicants to undergo a medical examination by their own GP.

5.5      A request form for a medical examination, which may be presented to the applicant’s GP,
can be obtained from the Council. The applicant will be responsible for paying the fee for
the examination to the relevant doctor.  On completion of the examination, the report
must be submitted to the Council with the other documentation that is required to
accompany an application.

5.6      Where there is any doubt as to the medical fitness of an applicant, the Council may
require the applicant to undergo and pay for a further medical examination by a doctor
appointed by the Council.  Where there remains any doubt about the fitness of any
applicant, the Council will review the medical evidence and make any final decision.

5.7      Licensed drivers are required to meet the DVLA Group 2 standard every 5 years from
the age of 45 until the age of 65. Thereafter the Council will require an annual medical
report. The Council may also require a licensed driver to undergo more frequent checks
if, in the opinion of a medical practitioner, this is necessary.

10
24



5.8      Licensed drivers must advise the Council of any deterioration in their health that may
affect their driving capabilities.

Criminal Record Checks

5.9      The legislation requires the Council ensures that all licensed drivers are ‘fit & proper’
persons. A criminal record check on a driver is an important safety measure. The
Council requires applicants to submit an enhanced criminal records disclosure report
from the Disclosure and Barring Service (‘enhanced DBS report’) as part of the
documentation accompanying their application.  All drivers licensed by the Council will
then be required to obtain a further report every 6 months.

5.10 All licensed drivers are required to evidence continuous registration with the DBS update
service to enable the licensing authority to routinely check for new information every six
months. Drivers that do not subscribe up to the Update Service will be subject to a new
check every six months.

5.11    If an applicant has not lived continuously in the UK for 5 years, then in addition to
submitting an enhanced DBS report with their application, they must submit an original
authenticated certificate of good conduct (together with a translation into English if the
document is in another language) obtained from the embassy for the country in which
the applicant was living immediately before arriving in the UK.  If the driver has lived in
more than one country prior to arriving in the UK, then a report from each country in
which they lived for 3 months or more during the 5 years immediately prior to their arrival
in the UK is required to be submitted with their application. To be clear, any translation of
the document must be from the embassy which issued the original document.

5.12 Licensed drivers who have lived in another country for 3 months or more since their last
enhanced DBS report will also be required to submit an original authenticated certificate
of good conduct from the embassy of that country with their next application to renew
their licence.  

Relevance of Convictions and Cautions

5.13     The Council has chosen to substantially adopt Annex D of the Home Office Circular
13/92 Guidance as part of its policy as to the relevance of certain convictions and
cautions in its consideration of whether an applicant or existing driver is fit and proper  to
hold a licence. The parts adopted by the Council are replicated in Appendix L.

5.14    Guidance in relation to the relevance of offences is given in Appendix L. In general
terms, the more recent, serious and relevant to public safety the offence is, the less
likely that an application will be granted.

5.15    Applicants for new licences and to renew existing licences will be required to provide
authorisation to the Council to conduct a DVLA driver endorsement check, so the
Council can ensure that the information held by the DVLA is in accordance with the
information submitted by the applicant.  The check will be made on an annual basis and
the fees for the annual endorsement check must be paid by the applicant at the time of
submitting their application.   

11
25



Disability Awareness, Child Exploitation (CE), Safeguarding awareness and Other
Training  

5.16    All applicants and existing drivers will be required to undertake training in Disability
Awareness & Handling, Child Exploitation, safeguarding awareness to include identifying
county lines exploitation and any other legislation that the Council may require.

5.17    Training in Safeguarding awareness and Child Exploitation will be undertaken every 3
years at the training may be internet based or at a local training site. Drivers will be
required to pay a fee to the provider or as approved on the council scale of fees.

5.18    Training in Disability Awareness & Handling will be undertaken every 3 years; the
training may be internet based or on a local training site. Applicants and existing drivers
will be issued a certificate on successful completion of the training. Drivers and new
applicants will be required to pay a fee.

Application Procedure

5.19     An application for a driver’s licence must be made in accordance with the procedure set
out in Appendix I and must be accompanied by the relevant supporting documentation
and application fee.

Consideration of Applications

5.20    The Council will consider all applications on their own merits once it is satisfied that the
appropriate criteria have been met, the application form is complete and supporting
documents have been submitted.

5.21    The Council will usually send a reminder letter to drivers around 6 weeks before their
existing licence expires in order to assist applicants in the prompt submission of their
renewal applications. However, the responsibility to submit a renewal application within
28 days to the expiry of any existing licence is always the responsibility of the licence
holder. Drivers should ensure renewal application forms, together with any supporting
documents, are received by the Council before their existing licence expires as this will
ensure that in most cases applications are processed and new licences issued before
expiry of the existing licence.  

5.22    Where a driver does not submit their application to renew their licence before their
existing licence expires, and in the absence of providing evidence of exceptional
circumstances, in most cases the Council will require they undergo the new licence
procedure as set out at Appendix I.   

Duration of Licences

5.23    Applicants for new and renewed licences will apply for a 3 year licence. Any licence
surrendered before the expiry date will receive a refund for each whole year unused.
The Licensing Authority may in special circumstances grant a licence for a shorter
duration where this is considered appropriate in a particular case.

12
26



Conditions of Licence

5.24    The Council is not permitted to attach conditions to a Hackney Carriage driver’s licence.
However, drivers are subject to the Council’s byelaws which are replicated in Appendix
D.  

5.25    A set of standard conditions for Private Hire driver licences is set out at Appendix J and
the Council considers that it is reasonable and necessary that these be attached to the
grant of most licences. However, these may be amended or additional conditions
attached as may be considered reasonably necessary in any individual case.

Fares - prescribed rates  

5.26    The Hackney Carriage tariff is set by the Council. Private Hire fares are not set by the
council but are at the discretion of the Private Hire Operator.

5.27    The driver of a Hackney Carriage vehicle, whether by agreement or otherwise, must not
charge any fare greater than the rate prescribed by the Council.

5.28    Fares rates are reviewed no more than once per year, usually around October time with
any change agreed by the Licensing Committee, and new rates are usually implemented
on 1st December each year subject to any objections received during the objection
period.

Receipts  

5.29    A driver must, if requested by the passenger, provide them with a written receipt for the
fare paid.

13
27



6.      Operators – Private Hire

Requirements and Obligations

6.1      Any person who operates a service must apply to the Council for an operator’s licence.

6.2      A vehicle may only be dispatched to a customer by an operator who holds an operator’s
licence. Such a licence permits the operator to make provision for the invitation or
acceptance of bookings for a vehicle with a driver. Operators must ensure that every
vehicle is driven by a person who holds a valid driver’s licence.

6.3       An application for an operator’s licence must be made in accordance with the procedure
set out below and accompanied by the relevant supporting document and application
fee.

Criminal Record Checks

6.4       A criminal record check on operators is an important safety measure.  It will depend on
the individual applicant as to what criminal record checks will be required.  These are set
out below.

6.5      Where the applicant is an individual person, the Council requires the applicant to submit
the following as part of the application process:

● a standard criminal records disclosure report from the Disclosure and Barring
Services (‘standard DBS report’) relating to the applicant; and

● a declaration as to whether any company of which they have been a director or
secretary has been convicted of any offences.  

6.6      Where the applicant is a company, the Council requires the applicant to submit following
documentation as part of the application process:

● a declaration as to whether the company has been convicted of any offences at any
time; and

● a standard DBS report for each director and secretary of the company.

6.7       Where the applicant is a partnership, the Council requires a standard DBS report for
each partner to be submitted as part of the application process.

6.8      Further declarations and standard DBS reports will be required every 6 months.

6.9      If an applicant has not lived continuously in the UK for 5 years, then in addition to
submitting a standard DBS report with their application, they must submit an original
authenticated certificate of good conduct (together with a translation into English if the
document is in another language) obtained from the embassy for the country in which
the applicant was living immediately before arriving in the UK.  If the driver has lived in
more than one country prior to arriving in the UK, then a report from each country in
which they lived for 3 months or more during the 5 years immediately prior to their arrival
in the UK is required  to be submitted with  their application.  To be clear, any translation
of the document must be from the embassy which issued the original document. This will
also apply to individual applicants, each partner of a partnership applicant and the
directors and secretaries of company applicants.   

14
28



Conditions

6.10     A set of standard conditions for operator’s license is set out at Appendix K. The Council
considers it reasonable and necessary that these be attached to an Operator’s licence.
However, these may be amended or additional conditions attached as may be
considered reasonably necessary in any individual case.

Licence Duration

6.11     Operators’ licences is granted for 5 years, however, the Council may grant a licence for
a shorter period should this be considered appropriate in the circumstances.

6.12     An operator can apply for a licence for the number of vehicles that they have at the time
of application. An operator’s licence authorises vehicles up to the number stated on the
licence. If an operator wishes to add to his or her fleet above that number then the
operator must apply for a variation to the licence before they start operating more than
the number of vehicles as is specified in their existing licence.

6.13     The Council will send a reminder letter to licensed operators around 6 weeks before
their existing licence expires in order to assist them in their prompt submission of
renewal applications. However, the responsibility to submit a renewal application within
28 days to the expiry of any existing licence is always the responsibility of the licence
holder. Licensed operators should ensure renewal application forms, together with any
supporting documents, are received by the Council before their existing licence expires
as this will ensure that in most cases applications are processed and new licences
issued before expiry of the existing licence.   

Operating address  

6.14    The Council will only grant an Operator’s licence if the applicant proposes to operate
from an address within the Borough of Worthing. This is to ensure that proper regulation
and enforcement measures may be taken by the Council and is in no way intended to be
a restraint of trade.

6.15     Upon the grant of an Operator’s licence, the Council will specify the address from which
the operator may operate. This will be the premises where the booking records are kept
and where bookings are made.

6.16    The operator must notify the Council in writing of any change of his/her address,
(whether this is a home address or the address from where he/she operates) during the
period of the licence, within 7 days of such a change taking place or, preferably, before
this takes place.

6.17    It will be the responsibility of the operator to ensure that appropriate planning consent
exists for the operational address to be used for that purpose. Any licence granted
cannot override any planning restrictions on a premise nor any restrictions that may be
attached to the lease of a premise. Accordingly the applicant should address all planning
considerations.

6.18     Operators are required to only use licensed private hire vehicles that have been
licensed by the Borough Council or they may pass bookings on to another licensed
operator. When using Hackney Carriages to meet their bookings such vehicles must

15
29



meet the council’s Private Hire Vehicle Licence conditions. Private Hire vehicles that
have been licensed outside the district cannot legally work directly for the operator under
the Borough Council’s Operator’s licence.  

7.        Disciplinary and Enforcement Measures

Enforcement  

7.1       With a view to balancing the promotion of public safety with the need to permit
individuals to safeguard their livelihood without undue interference, the Council will only
intervene where it is appropriate and proportionate to do so.

7.2      The Council's General Enforcement Policy will be used to ensure that the Council’s
enforcement effort is proportionate, transparent and well directed.  

Disciplinary  

7.3       Disciplinary matters, except in the case of breaches of vehicle requirements, will
ordinarily be referred to the Authorised Officer or dealt with by Officers. One of the
functions of the Authorised Officer is to consider the impact of any misconduct on the
fitness of an individual to hold a licence and to take the action appropriate to the
circumstances. In cases that involve serious misconduct the Authorised Officer may
refer the matter to the Licensing Committee for consideration if deemed appropriate.

16
30



 Appendix A 

Hackney Carriage Vehicle Specification  

1. Vehicle Specification

1.1 When licensing vehicles the Council has to consider the need for safety, convenience,
and comfort of passengers in vehicles that operate in rural, urban and motorway
environments. The size and engine capacity have also to be considered given that all
vehicles are required to carry their licensed number of passengers together with their
luggage. The Council considers that a vehicle should be of manufacturers’ original
specification and shall be as constructed and designed:

a) For the Carriage of not more than 8 passengers with the provision of a seatbelt
for each passenger.

b) The rear bench seat of the vehicle must be a minimum of 48 inches measured
across its narrowest part of the bench seat; all other seats must measure 16
inches.

c)   The driver’s seat fully pushed back there must be a gap of 7 inches
between the front of the rear seat and the back of the front seat and 34 inch gap
in height from the lowest part of the seat pad to the roof.

d) Not to be left-hand drive. Right hand drive passenger vehicles offer the driver
clear and safer vision in an overtaking manoeuvre, and also eliminate the need
for a front seat passenger to alight from the vehicle into the road.

e) To have windows to the side and rear providing natural light to the passenger
compartment.

1.2       In the interest of safety each vehicle should have a minimum of 4 doors, which are
capable of being opened from the inside.

1.3      Vehicles licensed to carry 5 or more passengers must be fitted with a glass hammer .

1.4       Vehicles licensed to carry 5 or more passengers and with restricted rear seating must
carry a cargo net to secure luggage.

1.5 The passenger carrying capacity will be at the discretion of the Council.

1.6      The vehicle seats must have these specifications:

a) The rear seat of the vehicle must be a minimum of 1.2 meters (48 inches) with
no mouldings restricting the seating capacity. All other seats must measure 16
inches.

b) The driver’s seat fully pushed back there must be a minimum gap of 7 inches
between the front of the rear seat and the back of the front seat 34 inch gap in
height from the lowest part of the seat pad to the roof.

c) All seats must be fitted with fully operational seat belts.
d) The number of passenger seats must remain as stated on the vehicle licence.
e) There must be no alteration to the seating configuration without notifying the

Council.
f) All seats must be forward or rear facing.

17
31



g) All vehicles must be able to seat all passengers in comfort with sufficient legroom
for all passengers.

h) The seat covering must be clean and in a good state of repair.

2.       Age of vehicle

2.1      In the case of first application for a vehicle licence not more than 7 years from the first
date of registration and thereafter not more than 10 years in the case of a renewal
application.

2.2      The maximum age limits described may only be exceeded if the vehicle presented is in
exceptional condition.

2.3 The proprietor must arrange the inspection with the licensing office at least 2 - 3 months
prior to the expiry of the licence.

2.4      A vehicle will be considered to be in exceptional condition if all of the following apply:

a) Mileage for the vehicle is no higher than the average mileage that could be
expected for a similar vehicle if that vehicle was used solely for social, domestic and
pleasure purposes.

b) The vehicle passes the Council’s vehicle inspection.
c) Bodywork is in near perfect condition with no signs of panel age deterioration,

dents, scratches, stone chips, or rust or any other abrasions that may detract from
the overall appearance of the vehicle.

d) General paint condition should show no signs of fading, discolouration or
mismatching that may detract from the overall appearance of the vehicle.

e) Interior trim, panels, seating and carpets and upholstery are in excellent condition,
clean and free from damage and discolouration.

f) Boot or luggage compartment is in good condition, clean and undamaged.
g) Passenger areas are free from damp or any other odours that may cause

passenger discomfort.
h) The vehicle must be in excellent mechanical condition and in all respects safe and

roadworthy, with no signs of corrosion to the mechanical parts, chassis, underside
or body work.

i) The vehicle must have a service record to show that it has been properly serviced
and maintained in accordance with the manufacturer’s service specification. The
vehicle must be of a single manufacture.

2.5 The proprietor must arrange the inspection with the licensing office at least 2 - 3 months
prior to the expiry of the licence.

2.6      The vehicle and its fittings must, when being presented for inspection and at all times
during when it is licensed and available for hire:

a) Be Safe
b) Be Tidy
c) Be Clean
d) Comply with all relevant statutory requirements applicable to the class of vehicle to

which it belongs including, but without prejudice to the Motor Vehicle (Construction
and Use) Regulations which currently apply.

18
32



2.7      The vehicle must be maintained throughout the term of the vehicle licence to a high
standard of appearance to the complete satisfaction of the Council.

2.8      The licensed vehicle shall be White and no other colour. A transitional period in
accordance with the rolling vehicle replacement programme will be permitted for existing
licensed vehicles.

2.9      All paintwork will be professionally finished and the vehicle free from dents and damage
to either bodywork or fittings. Bare metal, primer paint, visible rust and perforations will
not be permitted.

2.10      In the interests of safety and reassurance of passengers, tinted glass or mirrored glass
that restricts all view into the passenger compartment will not be accepted on vehicles
which are presented for licensing.  Where a vehicle is licensed and subsequently the
proprietor wants to affix tinting to the windows, one of the standard conditions of licence
provides that they must first apply for and be given written approval by the Council to
affix the tinting. The Council has approved a maximum level of tinting permissible, see
below.

2.11      For existing licensed vehicles that have tinted windows there is a transitional period for
compliance in accordance with the rolling vehicle replacement programme.

2.12     Tinted glass where fitted to a vehicle must be light enough to allow Enforcement
Officers & the Public to have clear view of the passengers and the light transmission of
the glazing must meet the following criteria:

● Front windscreen at least 75% light transmission
● Front side door glass at least 70% light transmission
● All remaining glass to the seated passenger compartment at least 55%

light transmission
These transmissions can be measured using Taxi Licensing Team’s ‘tint meter’ when
presented for testing for their initial vehicle application. Vehicles can be presented for an
informal test with the tint meter at no cost by appointment.

3.        Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles

3.1      In the case of all Hackney vehicles that are built or adapted for disabled passengers, the
design of the vehicle should ensure that any wheelchair is loaded from the side or rear
of the vehicle.

3.2 If a vehicle is off the road due to accident or damage and a replacement vehicle is
supplied, this vehicle must also comply with 2.8 above.

3.3    The Council will only consider licensing vehicles converted or adapted to carry
wheelchairs if the conversion is approved by an Institute of Automotive Engineers
Assessor.  The licence applicant must produce the original certificate from the approved
Institute of Automotive Engineers Assessor as part of their licence application.  

3.4 Any equipment fitted to the vehicle for the purpose of lifting a wheelchair into the vehicle
must have been tested in accordance with the requirements of the Lifting Operations
and Lifting Equipment Regulations 1998 (S.I. 1998/2307) and the original testing
certificate must be presented to the Licensing Office as part of the licence application.   

19
33



4.        Roof signage

4.1      Roof signs must comply with the following criteria. The sign must:

a) Measure 30 inches in length, 5 inches in height and 6 inches width.
b) Be of “Slope Streamline” type design
c) Include the Borough Council logo in black on the left hand side of the front face of

the sign.
d) The logo must measure not less than 4 inches in height by 4 inches in width.
e) Display in the middle of the front face of the sign the following words in the

prescribed format:
● Hackney Carriages the word TAXI

f) The letters comprising the word ‘shall be not less than 2 inches but not more than 3
inches in height.

g) The rear face of the sign there shall be displayed only the telephone number of the
operator or proprietor of the vehicle, in digits measuring not less than 9cm in height.
The rear face of the sign may be left blank if the operator or proprietor does not wish
to display his/her telephone number.

h) All letters and numbers displayed must be solid black in colour and be in Futura Bold
font.

i) The sign must be white on the front face.  The sign may be red or white on the rear
face but must be red at the rear when illuminated.

j) No words or numbers may be displayed on the sign except as set out above.

4.2       Vehicles which have a built-in roof sign or light may be exempt from displaying the
 standard roof light if the Licensing Officer is satisfied that the built-in roof light is an
acceptable alternative.

5.        Door signage

5.1      The front door panels of the vehicle may display the words Hackney Carriage and below
the operator name and telephone number.

5.2      The external plate number issued by the council will be displayed on the rear door
panels of the vehicle by the door handle.

6.         Advertising  

6.1      One of the standard conditions of licence is that the proprietor may affix advertising if
they have first applied for and obtained the Council’s permission.  The Council will
generally require that advertising complies with the following specifications before
approval will be given for it to be affixed to the vehicle:

a) Display screens on the rear of headrests are permitted.
b) Advertising may be displayed on the external sides of the rear panels providing the

 advertisement complies with the following criteria:
● Purpose-built (that is London-style black cab vehicles) may advertise inside

the vehicle on the base of the occasional seats or along the bulkhead on top
of the passenger/ driver partition.

● Any advertisements shall not exceed 30 inches by 15 inches.
● Advertisements must be of such a form as not to become easily soiled or

detached.
20

34



● Advertisements shall not contain matters relating to alcohol, smoking, or
products or services likely to give offence to the public.

7.        CCTV

7.1 All equipment must be designed, constructed and installed in such a way and from
such materials as to present no danger to the driver or passengers, including any
impact against the equipment in the event of a collision or danger from the electrical
integrity being breached through vandalism, misuse, or wear and tear.

Specifications:

● The equipment must be permanently wired to the vehicle power supply;
● The equipment to have a clear serial or other unique identification number;
● The equipment must not obstruct the driver's view of the road ahead;
● The camera(s) must record both forward and rear facing images;
● Images to be clear, date and time stamped, in colour and in high definition;
● There must be no facility to view previously recorded images from within the

vehicle;
● The equipment must be tamper proof;
● The equipment must have a built in battery backup;
● There must be an auto record function whether by ignition switch turn, door

opening, person motion sensor or vehicle in motion sensor and NOT just
activated by the driver alone;

● The equipment to have a minimum of 28 days image recording and storage
capacity;

● If an audio function is provided - this must be set in the default OFF position
and only activated by trigger or panic button function;

● All equipment shall be installed, maintained and serviced by a competent
and/or authorised person;

● A simple operator user manual shall be provided on demand;
● All stored images to be protected with no unauthorised access and all images

shall be encrypted;
● Any requested images shall be capable of viewing and playback using

industry standard software;
● Clear and prominent signs within the vehicle giving details of the

organisation/person/purpose and contact details must be displayed.
● If the driver requires; an On / Off switch may be placed in the boot of the

vehicle to allow the driver to turn the CCTV off whilst the vehicle is being
used for personal use. If such a system is fitted a warning indicator light must
be fitted in the cabin to warn that the system is off

● The CCTV must be turned on when the vehicle is operating as a licensed
Private Hire or Hackney Carriage vehicle. This means during the period the
vehicle is being used for the carriage of passengers that are pre-booked or
when plying for hire.

● Failure to operate the ‘On switch’ whilst the vehicle is operating as a licensed
Private Hire or Hackney Carriage vehicle may result in the driver’s licence
being suspended or revoked.

21
35



22
36



Appendix B

Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence Conditions

Where the proprietor permits another person to drive the licensed vehicle, they must ensure
that that person has a valid Hackney Carriage driver’s licence and they must draw the following
conditions of the vehicle licence to that person’s attention.  The proprietor is responsible for
ensuring that any person who drives their licensed vehicle complies with these licence
conditions.

1.         Internal and External Licence Plates

1.1      The proprietor must ensure that the external licence plate and the door plates provided
by the Council are maintained in a clear and legible condition and are securely affixed to
the outside of the Carriage. The licence plate on or adjacent to the rear bumper and the
door plates on the rear passenger doors near or adjacent to the door handles. Easily
removable licence plates and door plates using magnets, double sided tape or Velcro
are not acceptable.

1.2       The Council must be informed as soon as practicable should the external licence plate
or door plates be lost, stolen, damaged, insecure or defaced.

1.3      The proprietor shall not cause or permit the vehicle to be used or operated with the
external licence plate so defaced that any figure or material particular is illegible.

1.4      The internal licence plate issued by the Council must be affixed to the nearside part of
the windscreen in such a position where the telephone number on the rear of the plate
can be clearly seen by passengers and must be displayed at all times.  

2.         Change of Use

2.1      The proprietor must notify the Council of any intended change in use of the specified
vehicle, or any change in the particulars supplied at the time of application for the
licence and of any modifications made to the vehicle, including seating arrangements.
Proprietors that are not licensed drivers are subject to annual Basic DBS Checks at time
of renewal.

3.         Vehicle Licence

3.1      In the event of loss or damage to any licence the Council must be informed immediately
during office hours so that a replacement can be issued.

3.2      On revocation, expiry or suspension of the licence, the licence and the internal and
external licence plates issued in respect of the vehicle must be immediately returned to
the Council.

3.3       A proprietor shall advise the Council in writing within 14 days of any change of their
home address, contact telephone number or email address.

23
37



4.        Insurance

4.1      The proprietor shall ensure that there is in force a policy of insurance complying with the
requirements of the Road Traffic Acts and which covers the vehicle for the carriage of
passengers for public hire during the currency of the licence.

4.2      A copy of a vehicle’s current insurance document must be kept with the vehicle and the
proprietor must make it available for inspection by any Worthing Borough Council officer
or any Police Officer upon request.  

4.3      If, during the duration of this licence a new policy of insurance is obtained in relation to
the licensed vehicle, a copy of the new policy or insurance cover note must be lodged
with the Council within 7 days of the new insurance policy coming into effect.

5.        Interior Appearance

5.1       The interior of the vehicle should always be in a clean and tidy state.

a) Carpets, upholstery and cloth trim are to be kept clean and undamaged. Good
quality seat covers and carpet mats may be used, provided that each is a
matching set, of a colour coordinating with the vehicle and kept in good
condition.

b) All plastic fascia, door linings, roof linings and trim are to be kept free from
marks, stains and damage.

c) All interior lights and fascia illumination are to be in full working order and in good
condition.

d) Boot space/luggage areas are to be kept clean and any vehicle equipment
properly stowed.

5.2       All doors, locks and windows are to be in full working order and in good condition.

5.3       All windows are to be kept free of dirt, grime and marks.

6.         Tinted Windows

6.1       A proprietor must not affix, or allow to be affixed, window tinting to the licensed vehicle
without first applying for and obtaining permission from the Council to do so.  

6.2 Tinted glass where fitted to a vehicle must be light enough to allow Enforcement
Officers & the Public to have clear view of the passengers and the light transmission of
the glazing must meet the following criteria:

● Front windscreen at least 75% light transmission
● Front side door glass at least 70% light transmission
● All remaining glass to the seated passenger compartment at least 55%

light transmission
These transmissions can be measured using the Taxi Licensing Team’s ‘tint meter’ when
presented for testing for their initial vehicle application. Vehicles can be presented for an
informal test with the tint meter at no cost by appointment.

7.        Fire Extinguisher and First Aid Kit

7.1      The proprietor must ensure that a sterile standard motorist’s first aid kit is carried in the
vehicle at all times.

24
38



7.2      The proprietor must ensure that a fire extinguisher suitable for use on vehicle fires is
carried in the vehicle at all times.  The proprietor must ensure that the contents of the
extinguisher remain in date at all times.  Where there is an expiry date on the
extinguisher the date is clearly visible and not tampered with or an indicator gauge
showing green.

8.        Accidents

8.1      The proprietor must inform the Council the next available working day of any accident
causing damage affecting the safety, performance or appearance of the vehicle or which
may affect the comfort or convenience of passengers.

9.         Luggage storage

9.1       If the licensed vehicle is either an estate car or multi-passenger vehicle, there must be
luggage restraints kept in the vehicle so that passengers’ luggage can be securely
stowed, and the restraints must be kept in good working order.

10.      Taximeters

10.1    The proprietor must ensure the vehicle is fitted with a taximeter approved by the Council
at all times the vehicle is available for hire.  The meter must be maintained and kept in a
good working order at all times.

10.2    The taximeter must be set for up to the current maximum tariff agreed by the Council and
the proprietor must ensure that no adjustment to the meter is made without the Council’s
prior permission.

10.3    The proprietor must ensure the "For Hire" sign or other illuminated sign on the roof of the
vehicle is linked to the taximeter or a means is provided to switch off the for hire sign so
that when the meter is switched on at the commencement of any individual hire, the roof
sign is extinguished.

10.4    The taximeter must be kept clean and in good working order and positioned so that the
fare recorded on the taximeter is plainly visible to passengers in the vehicle.

10.5    The taximeter must be sealed at all times and if a seal is broken the proprietor must
notify the Council’s Licensing Office on the next available working day.

11.       Fare Table

11.1    The proprietor must ensure that a copy of the current fare table supplied by the Council is
on display inside the Hackney Carriage at all times and that the table is kept clean and
undamaged and is positioned so that it is plainly visible to passengers in the vehicle.

11.2     A driver must, if requested by the passenger, provide them with a written receipt for the
fare paid.

12.      Smoking

12.1    The proprietor must ensure that the prescribed ‘no smoking’ signage required to be
displayed under the relevant legislation (the Health Act 2006 and the Smoke-free (Signs)

25
39



Regulations 2007 – or any subsequent enactment), is affixed to the interior of the
vehicle.

12.2     E-Cigarettes and other similar must not be used within the licensed vehicle in line with
the requirements of other public transport.

3.      Roof Sign

13.1    Each Hackney Carriage vehicle (with the exception of those vehicles with a built-in roof
light) shall display at all times an illuminated white roof sign approved by the Council,
regardless whether the vehicle is working for public hire or personal use.

13.2    A proprietor must not alter the sign without first applying for and obtaining permission
from the Council to do so.

13.3    The illumination mechanism of the roof sign shall not be operated during any period for
which the vehicle is hired.

14.       Door Signage

14.1     If at any time the door plate signage becomes damaged, insecure or lost, the proprietor
must notify the Council to have them replaced. The cost of the replacement door signs is
the responsibility of the proprietor.

14.2    If at any time the signs become damaged or lost, the proprietor must ensure that the
vehicle is not used for hire until the replacement door signs are affixed.  

15.       Pre-Booked Fares  

A Hackney Carriage may be used for a pre-booked shared journey providing they
comply with the criteria below.

15.1     The vehicle’s proprietor must notify the Council in writing that the vehicle is to be used
for pre-booked shared journeys prior to commencement.

15.2 The taximeter must be calibrated for the calculation of separate fees for separate
journeys and has been tested and sealed by the Council.

15.3     The proprietor must ensure that a record of all pre-booked shared journeys undertaken
in the vehicle shall be kept by the proprietor and stored for a period of 6 months.

15.4     A Hackney Carriage may be used for a pre-booked shared journey only where the hirers
have consented to the journey when booking in advance and where the consent of the
hirer has been recorded as to the conditions in appendix K 3.0 Records.

16.       Garage Inspection Report

16.1     Upon notification from the council a council garage test must be carried out, the
proprietor must ensure that the vehicle is submitted for the garage test and provide the
original certificate of garage test to the council by the date required. Garage test is
required every 12 months for vehicles under 10 years old and every 6 months for
vehicles more than 10 years old

26
40



16.2 The council garage inspection report must be issued within 28 days of application for a
vehicle licence or for relicensing of a vehicle licence.

16.3 The proprietor must ensure the vehicle has a Council Garage Inspection Report from a
MOT approved garage at all times whilst the vehicle is licensed. The Council will accept
the first garage inspection report for a new vehicle from where the vehicle is purchased.

16.4     If a vehicle fails it’s Garage Inspection Report or its Garage Inspection Report expires
the vehicle cannot be used as licensed Hackney Carriage (irrespective of whether it still
has a valid MOT Certificate) until a valid Garage Inspection Report has been issued.

17.       Advertising

17.1     The approval of the Council must be sought and obtained before any adverts (or
modifications to existing advertising) are affixed to the vehicle.  

18.       CCTV Installation in Hackney Carriage Vehicles

18.1 When CCTV has been installed in the vehicle with the Council’s approval, the following
conditions apply to the licence:

● The proprietor shall cause the vehicle to be fitted with a working and secure
digital CCTV system (to capture both forward and rear facing colour images
in high definition) and to retain such data for a period of 28 days;

● The installed CCTV to comply with any code(s) of practice issued by the
Information Commissioner, the requirements of the Data Protection Act 2018
and any technical specifications approved by the committee for the time
being in force;

● The installation of the CCTV system must be carried out by an approved
installer registered with the Council

● The proprietor shall, within 7 days, give written notice to the Council of the
installation of any CCTV system in the vehicle to include the details of the
installer, make, model and serial number of the equipment.

● The proprietor shall check the system for malfunction at least once a month
and, if a repair or download is required, the vehicle may continue to be used
provided any malfunction is rectified within 24 hours;

19.       Disability Access

The following conditions will apply to vehicles adapted to carry wheelchairs  

19.1     Where a vehicle is designed or adapted for the carriage of passengers in a wheelchair,
the following conditions shall apply:

a) Loading of the wheelchair must be undertaken through the side or rear of the
vehicle.

b) Access to and exit from the wheelchair position must not be obstructed in any
manner at any time except by wheelchair loading apparatus.

c) Wheelchair internal anchorage must be of the manufacturer’s design and
construction and secured in such a position as not to obstruct any emergency
exit.

27
41



19.2     If, after the licence is granted the vehicle is converted or adapted to carry wheelchairs,
the proprietor must:

a) within 7 days of the conversion/adaptation provide a Certificate from an approved
converter, and

b) notify their insurance company of the fact that the vehicle has been so
adapted/converted.

19.3     A suitable restraint must be available for the occupant of a wheelchair at all times and
kept in good working order.

19.4    If, after the licence is granted any equipment is fitted to the vehicle for the purpose of
lifting a wheelchair into it, this must tested in accordance with the requirements of the
Lifting Operations and Lifting Equipment Regulations 1998 (S.I. 1998/2307) and the
original testing certificate must be presented to the Council’s Licensing Office before the
lifting equipment is used in respect of any passenger.  A copy of the certificate should
also be kept in the vehicle at all times and be presented to any Licensing Officer or
Police Officer upon request.

19.5    There must be kept in the vehicle at all times either access ramps or a lift to assist the
wheelchair into the vehicle.  Any access ramps or lifts must be securely fixed prior to
use, and be able to support the wheelchair, occupant and helper.

19.6    Ramps and lifts must be securely stored in the vehicle before it may move off.  Any such
equipment must be maintained in good working order.

19.7    The proprietor shall ensure that the driver has received sufficient training to load and
convey wheelchair-bound passengers.

19.8    There must be no alteration to the seating configuration without notifying the Council

20.       Lost Property

20.1    Where any property is left in the vehicle by a passenger the licence holder must, in all
cases, take reasonable steps to trace the owner and should report all unclaimed lost
property on line to Sussex Police within 48 hours at:
https://www.sussex.police.uk/ro/report/lp/lost-or-found-property/

28
42

https://www.sussex.police.uk/ro/report/lp/lost-or-found-property/


Appendix C

Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licensing Procedure

Application Process for Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence 

1. Application Process for Hackney Carriage Vehicle - New Licence

1.1 The vehicle must accord with the specifications in Appendix B.

1.2 Applicants must telephone the licensing office to make an appointment to have their
vehicle licensed.

1.3 Applications for a Hackney Carriage vehicle licence must be submitted on form HC -
PHV/1

1.4 Applicants attending the appointment must bring all their documents relating to the
vehicle, which include:-

● Insurance for Plying for Hire
● Registration Document or Bill of Sale
● Proof of Road Fund Tax
● MOT
● Garage Certificate
● Applicants must pay the appropriate fee before the licence can be issued.

1.6       Applicants must ensure that they bring the vehicle to the appointment

2. Application Process for Hackney Carriage Vehicle - Licence Renewal

2.1 Applications for renewal should be submitted at least 10 days prior to the vehicle licence
expiring. Applicants must telephone the licensing office to make an appointment to have
their licence renewed.

2.2       The fee must accompany the application for renewal.

2.3 Rear and door plates (where applicable) an internal licence plate will be placed on the
vehicle and a paper licence given to the applicant.

2.4       Applicants who fail to renew their vehicle licence on time will be required to submit a
new application and will also be required to comply with the conditions set out in
Appendix B. Licence holders should note that depending on the age of the vehicle it
could be deemed to be too old to re-licence.    

3.         Application Process for Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence - Transfer of vehicle  

29
43



3.1 Applicants must telephone the licensing office to make an appointment to transfer the
licence to another vehicle.

3.2 Vehicles must comply with the conditions of licence outlined in Appendix B.

3.3       Applications for a Hackney Carriagevehicle licence transfer must be submitted on the
designated form.

3.4 Applicants must bring all their documents relating to the vehicle which includes:-

● Insurance for Plying for Hire
● Registration Document or Bill of Sale
● Council Garage Inspection Report
● Valid MOT
● Proof of Road Fund Tax
● Applicants must pay the appropriate fee before the licence can be issued

3.6       An internal licence plate will be issued and placed in the holder provided on the
windscreen. This will clearly display the expiry date so it can be seen from the outside of
the vehicle.

3.7       An external licence plate will be issued and fixed to the rear of the vehicle by the Council

3.8      A paper licence will be issued. 

3.9       Applicants must bring their vehicle to the Councils’ Taxi Office for an officer of the
Council to:

● Check for the Council approved door signs (where applicable)
● Check for the Council approved roof sign (where applicable)
● To fix an external plate to the rear of the vehicle

4.        Application Process for Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence - Transfer of ownership

4.1 Applicants must telephone the licensing office to make an appointment to transfer the
licence to another person. 

4.2        Vehicles must comply with the conditions of licence outlined in Appendix B above

4.3       Applications for a vehicle licence transfer of ownership must be submitted on designated
form.

4.4       Applicants must bring all their documents relating to the vehicle which includes:-

● Insurance for Plying for Hire
● Registration Document or Bill of Sale
● Proof of Road Fund Tax
● Valid MOT
● Council Garage Inspection Report

30
44



● A signed transfer form from the existing licence holder authorising the
transfer of the licence

● The Council will determine whether replacement plates are required.
● Applicants must pay the appropriate fee before the licence can be issued.

31
45



Appendix D

Hackney Carriage Byelaws

1. Hackney Carriage Byelaws

1.1 Byelaws made under Section 68 of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847, and Section   171
of the Public Health Act 1875, by the Borough Council of Worthing with respect to
hackney carriages in the Borough.

2. Interpretation

2.1. Throughout these byelaws “the Council” means the Borough of Worthing and “the
Borough” or “the District” means the Borough of Worthing.

2.2 Provisions regulating the manner in which the number of each Hackney Carriage,
corresponding with the number of its licence, shall be displayed.

a) The proprietor of a Hackney Carriage shall cause the number of the licence
granted to him in respect of the carriage to be legibly painted or marked on the
outside and inside of the carriage, or on plates affixed thereto.

b) A proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage shall not:
● wilfully or negligently cause or suffer any such number to be concealed from

public view while the carriage is standing or plying for hire;
● cause or permit the carriage to stand or ply for hire with any such painting,

marking or plate so defaced that any figure or material particular is illegible.

3. Provisions regulating how Hackney Carriages are to be furnished or provided.

3.1 The proprietor of a Hackney Carriage shall;

a) provide sufficient means by which any person in the carriage may communicate
with the driver;

b) cause the roof or covering to be kept water-tight;
c) provide any necessary windows and a means of opening and closing not less

than one window on each side;
d) cause the seats to be properly cushioned or covered;
e) cause the floor to be provided with a proper carpet, mat or other suitable

covering;
f) cause the fittings and furniture generally to be kept in a clean condition, well

maintained and in every way fit for public service;
g) provide means for securing luggage if the carriage is so constructed as to carry

luggage;
h) provide an efficient fire extinguisher which shall be carried in such a position as

to be readily available for use;
i) provide at least 2 doors for the use of persons conveyed in such carriage and a

separate means of ingress and egress for the driver.

32
46



3.2 The proprietor of a Hackney Carriage shall cause the same to be provided with a
taximeter so constructed, attached and maintained as to comply with the following
requirements, that is to say,

a) the taximeter shall be fitted with a key, flag, or other device the turning of which
will bring the machinery of the taximeter into action and cause the word “HIRED”
to appear on the face of the taximeter;

b) such key, flag or other device shall be capable of being locked in such a position
that the machinery of the taxi meter is not in action and that no fare is recorded
on the face of the taximeter;

c) when the machinery of the taximeter is in action there shall be recorded on the
face of the taximeter in clearly legible figures a fare not exceeding the rate of fare
which the proprietor or driver is entitled to demand and take for the hire of the
carriage by distance in pursuance of the byelaw in that behalf;

d) the word “FARE” shall be printed on the face of the taximeter in plain letters so as
clearly to apply to the fare recorded thereon;

e)  the taximeter shall be so placed that all letters and figures on the face thereof
are at all times plainly visible to any person being conveyed in the carriage, and
for that purpose the letters and figured shall be capable of being suitably
illuminated during any period of hiring;

f) the taximeter and all the fittings thereof shall be so affixed to the carriage with
seals or other appliances that it shall not be practicable for any person to tamper
with them except by breaking, damaging or permanently displacing the seals or
other appliances.

4.         Conduct

Provisions regulating the conduct of the proprietors and drivers of Hackney Carriages plying
within the Borough in their several employments, and determining whether such drivers shall
wear any and what badges.

4.1 The driver of a Hackney Carriage shall
a) when standing or plying for hire, keep the key, flag or other device fitted in

pursuance of the byelaw in that behalf locked in the position in which no fare is
recorded on the face of the taximeter;

b) as soon as the carriage is hired by distance, and before beginning the journey,
bring the machinery of the taximeter into action by moving the said key, flag or
other device, so that the word “HIRED” is legible on the face of the taximeter and
keep the machinery of the taximeter in action until the termination of the hiring;

c) cause the dial of the taximeter to be kept properly illuminated throughout any part
of a hiring which is during the hours of darkness as defined for the purposes of
the Road Transport Lighting Act 1957, and also at any other time at the request
of the hirer.

4.2 A proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage shall not tamper with or permit any person
to tamper with any taximeter with which the carriage is provided, with the fittings thereof,
or with the seals affixed thereto.

4.3 The driver of a Hackney Carriage shall, when plying for hire in any street and not
actually hired,

33
47



a) proceed with reasonable speed to one of the stands fixed by the byelaw in that
behalf; (or rank designated under Section 63 of the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976)

b) if a stand, at the time of his arrival, is occupied by the full number of carriages
authorised to occupy it, proceed to another stand;

c) on arriving at a stand not already occupied by the full number of carriages
authorised to occupy it, station the carriage immediately behind the carriage or
carriages on the stand and so as to face in the same direction;

d) from time to time when any other carriage immediately in front is driven off or
moved forward cause his carriage to be moved forward so as to fill the place
previously occupied by the carriage driven off or moved forward.

4.4 A proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage, when standing or plying for hire, shall not,
by calling out or otherwise, importune any person to hire such carriage and shall not
make use of the services of any other person for the purpose.

4.5 The driver of a Hackney Carriage shall behave in a civil and orderly manner and shall
take all reasonable precautions to ensure the safety of persons conveyed in or entering
or alighting from the vehicle.

4.6 The proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage who has agreed or has been hired to be
in attendance with the carriage at an appointed time and place shall, unless delayed or
prevented by some sufficient cause, punctually attend with such carriage at such
appointed time and place.

4.7 The driver of a Hackney Carriage when hired to drive to any particular destination shall,
subject to any directions given by the hirer, proceed to that destination by the shortest
available route.

4.8 A proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage shall not convey or permit to be conveyed
in such carriage any greater number of persons than the number of persons specified on
the plate affixed to the outside of the carriage.

4.9 If a badge has been provided by the Council and delivered to the driver of a Hackney
Carriage he shall, when standing or plying for hire, and when hired, wear that badge in
such position and manner as to be plainly visible.

4.10 The driver of a Hackney Carriage so constructed as to carry luggage shall, when
requested by any person hiring or seeking to hire the carriage,

a) convey a reasonable quantity of luggage;
b) afford reasonable assistance in loading and unloading;
c) afford reasonable assistance in removing it to or from the entrance of any

building, station or place at which he may take up or set down such person.

34
48



5. Provisions fixing the stands of Hackney Carriages

5.1 No longer applicable (replaced by section 63 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976

6. Fares

Provisions fixing the rates of fares to be paid for Hackney Carriages within the borough
and securing the due publication of such fares.

6.1 No longer applicable (replaced by section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976.

7.         Lost Property

Provisions securing the safe custody and re-delivery of any property accidentally left in
Hackney Carriages and fixing the charges to be made in respect thereof.

7.1 The proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage shall immediately after the termination of
any hiring or as soon as practicable thereafter carefully search the carriage for any
property which may have been accidentally left therein.

7.2 The proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage shall, if any property accidentally left
therein by any person who may have been conveyed in the carriage be found by or
handed to him:

a) carry it as soon as possible and in any event within 48 hours, if not sooner claimed
by or on behalf of its owner, to a police station in the Borough and leave it in the
custody of the officer in charge of the office on his giving a receipt for it.

b) be entitled to receive from any person to whom the property shall be re-delivered an
amount equal to 5p in the pound of its estimated value, (or the fare for the distance
from the place of finding to the Police Station, whichever be the greater) but not
more than £5.

8. Penalties

8.1 Every person who shall offend against any of these byelaws shall be liable on summary
conviction to a fine.

These byelaws were made on 25 September 1974. A copy of the original byelaws is
available upon request from the Licensing Office.

35
49



Appendix E

Private Hire Vehicle Specifications

1.        Vehicle Specification

1.1      When licensing Private Hire vehicles the Council has to consider the need for safety,
convenience, and comfort of passengers in vehicles that operate in rural, urban and
motorway environments. The size and engine capacity have also to be considered given
that all vehicles are required to carry their licensed number of passengers together with
their luggage. The Council considers that a vehicle should be of manufacturers’ original
specification and shall be constructed and designed:

a) For the Carriage of not less than 4 and not more than 8 passengers with the
provision of a seatbelt for each passenger.

b) The rear bench seat of the vehicle must be a minimum of 48 inches measured
across its narrowest part of the bench seat; all other seats must measure 16
inches.

c)   The driver’s seat fully pushed back there must be a gap of 7 inches
between the front of the rear seat and the back of the front seat and 34 inch gap
in height from the lowest part of the seat pad to the roof.

d) Not to be left-hand drive. Right hand drive passenger vehicles offer the driver
clear and safer vision in an overtaking manoeuvre,  and also eliminate the need
for a front seat passenger to alight from the vehicle into the road.

e) To have windows to the side and rear providing natural light to the passenger
compartment.

1.2      In the interest of safety each vehicle should have a minimum of 4 doors, which are
capable of being opened from the inside.

1.3 Vehicles licensed to carry 5 or more passengers and with restricted rear seating must be
fitted with a glass hammer.

1.4 Vehicles licensed to carry 5 or passengers must carry a cargo net to secure luggage.

1.5      The passenger carrying capacity will be at the discretion of the Council.

1.6 The vehicle seats must have these specifications:
a) The rear seat of the vehicle must be a minimum of 48 inches with no mouldings

restricting the seating capacity. all other seats must measure 16 inches.
b) The driver’s seat fully pushed back there must be a minimum gap of 7 inches

between the front of the rear seat and the back of the front seat and a 34 inch
gap in height from the lowest part of the seat pad to the roof.

c) All seats must be fitted with fully operational seat belts.
d) The number of passenger seats must remain as stated on the vehicle licence.
e) There must be no alteration to the seating configuration without notifying the

Council.
f) All seats must be forward or rear facing.

36
50



g) All vehicles must be able to seat all passengers in comfort with sufficient legroom
for all passengers.

h) The seat covering must be clean and in a good state of repair.

1.7      The vehicle and its fittings must, when being presented for inspection and at all times
during when it is licensed and available for hire:

● Be safe
● Be tidy
● Be clean
● Comply with all relevant statutory requirements applicable to the class of vehicle

to which it belongs including, but without prejudice to the Motor Vehicle
(Construction and Use) Regulations which currently apply.

1.8       The vehicle must be maintained throughout the term of the vehicle licence to a high
standard of appearance to the complete satisfaction of the Council.

1.9      All paintwork will be professionally finished and the vehicle free from dents and damage
to either bodywork or fittings. Bare metal, primer paint, visible rust and perforations will
not be permitted.

1.10    The Councils Garage test must be carried out by an approved MOT testing station within
the Borough or the Councils’ Commerce Way Workshops. The Council will accept the
first garage inspection compliance report for a new vehicle from the garage where the
vehicle is purchased.

1.11     In the interests of safety and reassurance of passengers, tinted glass or mirrored glass
that restricts all view into the passenger compartment will not be accepted on vehicles
which are presented for licensing.  Where a vehicle is licensed and subsequently the
proprietor wants to affix tinting to the windows, one of the standard conditions of licence
(see Appendix F) provides that they must first apply to and be given approval by the
Council to affix the tinting.  A transitional period in accordance with the rolling vehicle
replacement programme will be permitted for existing licensed vehicles. This is so the
Council can ensure that any tinting applied to a licensed vehicle’s windows is consistent
with these specifications.

2.       Age of vehicle

2.1      In the case of first application for a vehicle licence not more than 7 years from the first
date of registration and thereafter not more than 10 years in the case of a renewal
application.

2.2      The maximum age limits described may only be exceeded if the vehicle presented is in
exceptional condition.

2.3 The proprietor must arrange the inspection with the licensing office at least 2 - 3 months
prior to the expiry of the licence.

2.4      A vehicle will be considered to be in exceptional condition if all of the following apply:

37
51



a) Mileage for the vehicle is no higher than the average mileage that could be
expected for a similar vehicle if that vehicle was used solely for social, domestic and
pleasure purposes.

b) The vehicle passes the Council’s vehicle inspection.
c) Bodywork is in near perfect condition with no signs of panel age deterioration,

dents, scratches, stone chips, or rust or any other abrasions that may detract from
the overall appearance of the vehicle.

d) General paint condition should show no signs of fading, discolouration or
mismatching that may detract from the overall appearance of the vehicle.

e) Interior trim, panels, seating and carpets and upholstery are in excellent condition,
clean and free from damage and discolouration.

f) The boot or luggage compartment is in good condition, clean and undamaged.
g) Passenger areas are free from damp or any other odours that may cause

passenger discomfort.
h) The vehicle must be in excellent mechanical condition and in all respects safe and

roadworthy, with no signs of corrosion to the mechanical parts, chassis, underside
or body work.

i) The vehicle must have a service record to show that it has been properly serviced
and maintained in accordance with the manufacturer’s service specification. The
vehicle and its fittings must, when being presented for inspection and at all times
during when it is licensed and available for hire:

● Be safe
● Be tidy
● Be clean
● Comply with all relevant statutory requirements applicable to the class of

vehicle to which it belongs including, but without prejudice to the Motor
Vehicle (Construction and Use) Regulations which currently apply.

2.5      The vehicle must be maintained throughout the term of the vehicle licence to a high
standard of appearance to the complete satisfaction of the Council.

2.6      The licensed vehicle shall not be coloured white unless it is approved by the Council.

2.7       All paintwork will be professionally finished and the vehicle free from dents and damage
to either bodywork or fittings. Bare metal, primer paint, visible rust and perforations will
not be permitted.

2.8      The Councils Garage test must be carried out by an approved MOT testing station within
the Borough or at the Councils’ Commerce Way Workshops.

2.9      In the interests of safety and reassurance of passengers, tinted glass or mirrored glass
that restricts all view into the passenger compartment will not be accepted on vehicles
which are presented for licensing.  Where a vehicle is licensed and subsequently the
proprietor wants to affix tinting to the windows, one of the standard conditions of licence
(see Appendix F) provides that they must first apply to and be given approval by the
Council to affix the tinting.  A transitional period in accordance with the rolling vehicle
replacement programme will be permitted for existing licensed vehicles. This is so the
Council can ensure that any tinting applied to a licensed vehicle’s windows is consistent
with these specifications.

3.        Private Hire Vehicles Exempt

38
52



3.1      Some Private Hire operators may be exempt from displaying a roof sign, door signs and
licence plate.

4.         Advertising on Private Hire Vehicles

4.1       One of the standard conditions of licence for Private Hire vehicles is that the proprietor
may affix advertising if they have first applied for and obtained the Council’s permission.
The Council will generally require that advertising complies with the following
specifications before approval will be given for it to be affixed to the vehicle:

a) Display screens on the rear of headrests is permitted
b) Advertising may be displayed on the external sides of the rear wing panels

providing the  advertisement complies with the following criteria: 
c) Any advertisements shall not exceed 30 inches by 15 inches. 
d) Advertisements must be of such a form as not to become easily soiled or

detached.
e) Advertisements shall not contain matters relating to alcohol, smoking, or

products or services likely to give offence to the public. 

5.       CCTV Installation in Private Hire Vehicles

5.1       All equipment must be designed, constructed and installed in such a way and from such
materials as to present no danger to the driver or passengers, including any impact
against the equipment in the event of a collision or danger from the electrical integrity
being breached through vandalism, misuse, or wear and tear.

Specifications:

● The equipment must be permanently wired to the vehicle power supply;
● The equipment to have a clear serial or other unique identification number;
● The equipment must not obstruct the driver's view of the road ahead;
● The camera(s) must record both forward and rear facing images;
● Images to be clear, date and time stamped, in colour and in high definition;
● There must be no facility to view previously recorded images from within the

vehicle;
● The equipment must be tamper proof;
● The equipment must have a built in battery backup;
● There must be an auto record function whether by ignition switch turn, door

opening, person motion sensor or vehicle in motion sensor and NOT just
activated by the driver alone;

● The equipment to have a minimum of 28 days image recording and storage
capacity;

● If an audio function is provided - this must be set in the default OFF position
and only activated by trigger or panic button function;

● All equipment shall be installed, maintained and serviced by a competent
and/or authorised person;

● A simple operator user manual shall be provided on demand;
● All stored images to be protected with no unauthorised access and all images

shall be encrypted;

39
53



● Any requested images shall be capable of viewing and playback using
industry standard software;

● Clear and prominent signs within the vehicle giving details of the
organisation/person/purpose and contact details must be displayed.

● If the driver requires; an ‘On / Off switch’ may be placed in the boot of the
vehicle to allow the driver to turn the CCTV off whilst the vehicle is being
used for personal use. If such a system is fitted a warning indicator light must
be fitted in the cabin to warn that the system is off

● The CCTV must be turned on when the vehicle is operating as a licensed
Private Hire or Hackney Carriage vehicle. This means during the period the
vehicle is being used for the carriage of passengers that are pre-booked or
when plying for hire.

● Failure to operate the ‘On switch’ whilst the vehicle is operating as a licensed
Private Hire or Hackney Carriage vehicle may result in the driver’s licence
being suspended or revoked.

6. Tinted Windows

6.1      In the interests of safety and reassurance of passengers, tinted glass or mirrored glass
that restricts all view into the passenger compartment will not be accepted on vehicles
which are presented for licensing.  Where a vehicle is licensed and subsequently the
proprietor wants to affix tinting to the windows, one of the standard conditions of licence
provides that they must first apply for and be given written approval by the Council to
affix the tinting. The Council has approved a maximum level of tinting permissible see
below.

6.2      For existing licensed vehicles that have tinted windows there is a transitional period for
compliance in accordance with the rolling vehicle replacement programme.

6.3 Tinted glass where fitted to a vehicle must be light enough to allow Enforcement
Officers & the Public to have clear view of the passengers and the light transmission of
the glazing must meet the following criteria:

● Front windscreen at least 75% light transmission
● Front side door glass at least 70% light transmission
● All remaining glass to the seated passenger compartment at least 55%

light transmission
These transmissions can be measured using Taxi Licensing Team’s ‘tint meter’ when
presented for testing for their initial vehicle application. Vehicles can be presented for an
informal test with the tint meter at no cost by appointment.

40
54



Appendix F

Private Hire Vehicle Conditions of Licence

1.         Licence Plate

1.1       The proprietor must ensure that the external licence plate and the door plates provided
by the Council are maintained in a clear and legible condition and are securely affixed to
the outside of the Vehicle. The licence plate on or adjacent to the rear bumper and the
door plates on the rear passenger doors near or adjacent to the door handles. Easily
removable licence plates and door plates using magnets, double sided tape or Velcro
are not acceptable.

1.2       The Council must be informed as soon as practicable should the licence plate be lost,
broken or defaced.

1.3       The proprietor shall not cause or permit the vehicle to be used or operated with the said
plate so defaced that any figure or material particular is illegible.

1.4       The internal licence plate issued by the Council must be affixed to the nearside part of
the windscreen in such a position where the telephone number on the rear of the
internal licence plate can be clearly seen by passengers and must be displayed at all
times.

2.        Vehicle Change of Use

2.1       The proprietor must notify the Council of any intended change in use of the specified
vehicle, or any change in the particulars supplied at the time of application for the
licence and of any modifications made to the vehicle, including seating arrangements
immediately and shall not use the vehicle for the purposes of carrying fare paying
passengers until approved by the Council.

3.        Vehicle Licence

3.1       In the event of loss of or damage to this licence the Council must be informed
immediately during office hours so that a replacement can be issued.

3.2      On revocation, expiry, or suspension of the licence, the licence and the plate issued in
respect of the vehicle must be returned to the Council forthwith upon the Council giving
such a demand in writing to the proprietor.

3.3      The proprietor shall advise the Council in writing within 14 days of any change of their
home address, contact telephone number or email address.

3.4      The proprietor shall give 7 days’ notice of his/her intention to transfer the licence to
another vehicle and shall not permit that vehicle to be used as a licensed vehicle until
the licence has been endorsed by the Council.  

41
55



4.        Insurance

4.1      The proprietor shall ensure that there is in force a policy of insurance with the
requirements of the Road Traffic Acts and which covers the vehicle for the carriage of
passengers for public hire during the currency of the licence.

4.2       A copy of a vehicle’s current valid insurance document must be kept with the vehicle
and the proprietor must make it available for inspection by any Worthing Borough
Council officer or any Police Officer upon request.

4.3      If, during the duration of this licence, a new policy of insurance is obtained in relation to
the licensed vehicle, a copy of the new policy or insurance cover note must be lodged
with the Council within 7 days of the new insurance policy coming into effect.

5.         Interior Appearance

5.1       The interior of the vehicle should always be in a clean and tidy state.

a) Carpets, upholstery and cloth trim are to be kept clean and undamaged. Good
quality seat covers and carpet mats may be used, provided that each is a
matching set, of a colour coordinating with the vehicle and kept in good
condition.

b) All plastic fascia, door linings, roof linings and trim are to be kept free from
marks, stains and damage.

c) All interior lights and fascia illumination are to be in full working order and in good
condition.

d) Boot space/luggage areas are to be kept clean and any vehicle equipment
properly stowed.

5.2       All doors, locks and windows are to be in full working order and in good condition.

5.3       All windows are to be kept free of dirt, grime and marks.

6.         Tinted Windows

6.1       A proprietor must not affix, or allow to be affixed, window tinting to the licensed vehicle
without first applying for and obtaining permission from the council to do so.

6.2       Tinted glass where fitted to a vehicle must be light enough to allow Enforcement
Officers & the Public to have clear view of the passengers and the light transmission of
the glazing must meet the following criteria:

● Front windscreen at least 75% light transmission
● Front side door glass at least 70% light transmission
● All remaining glass to the seated passenger compartment at least 55%

light transmission
These transmissions can be measured using the Taxi Licensing Team’s ‘tint meter’ when
presented for testing for their initial vehicle application. Vehicles can be presented for an
informal test with the tint meter at no cost by appointment.

7.        Fire Extinguisher & First Aid Kit

42
56



7.1      The proprietor must ensure that a sterile standard motorist’s first aid kit is carried in the
vehicle at all times.

7.2      The proprietor must ensure that a fire extinguisher suitable for use on vehicle fires is
carried in the vehicle at all times.  The proprietor must ensure that the contents of the
extinguisher remain in date at all times.  Where there is an expiry date on the
extinguisher the date is clearly visible and not tampered with or an indicator gauge
showing green.

8.        Accidents

8.1      The proprietor must inform the Council the next available working day of any accident
causing damage affecting the safety, performance or appearance of the vehicle or which
may affect the comfort or convenience of passengers.

9.         Luggage in Estate Cars and Multi-Purpose Vehicles  

9.1      Luggage stowed in the boot should not be stacked above the height of the rear seats
unless the vehicle is fitted with suitable luggage restraints or covers to prevent luggage
from entering the passenger compartment.

10.       Taximeters / Personal Digital Assistance (PDA) 

10.1     A taximeter or PDA can be used and must be approved & registered by the Council, the
proprietor of a Private Hire vehicle which has been fitted with a taximeter or PDA must
ensure that equipment is maintained in a sound working condition at all times.

10.2 Only one device must be installed in the vehicle.

10.3     The taximeter shall be of the clock calendar type or a Council approved taximeter.

10.4     The taximeter must not be altered or tampered with except with the approval of the
Council and must be retested by the Council if it is altered.

10.5     Show the fare recorded on the taximeter or PDA in plainly legible figures and the word
“FARE” shall be clearly displayed.

10.6     Be kept securely fixed in such a position so that the fare recorded is visible to all
passengers within the vehicle at all times, and the figures shall be illuminated for this
purpose whenever necessary.

10.7     The taximeter must be sealed at all times and if a seal is broken the Licensing Office
must be notified as soon as possible.

11.       Two Way Radios

11.1     The proprietor must ensure that any radio equipment fitted to the licensed vehicle is kept
in good working order at all times.  

12.       Smoking

12.1     The proprietor must ensure that the prescribed ‘no smoking’ signage required to be
displayed under the relevant legislation (the Health Act 2006 and the Smoke-free (Signs)

43
57



Regulations 2007 – or any subsequent enactment), is affixed to the interior of the
vehicle.

12.2 E-Cigarettes and other similar must not be used within the licensed vehicle in line with
the requirements of other public transport.

13.      Roof Sign

13.1    Each Private Hire vehicle shall display at all times whilst working a non-illuminated roof
sign approved by the Council. The signs will be in white unless authorisation has been
approved for roof signs to be a different colour.

13.2     A proprietor must not alter the sign without first applying for and obtaining permission
from the Council to do so.

13.3     The roof light must comply with the following criteria:

a) be ‘point’ type design
b) be 14cm in width x 25cm in length x 11cm in height.
c) be mounted on the front passenger side (nearside) of the vehicle's roof.
d) all letters and numbers displayed must be solid black in colour and in Futura

Bold font
e) the words ‘ADVANCE BOOKINGS ONLY’ must be displayed on the front of the

sign at the top in letters not less than 2.5cm in height.
f) the company name must be displayed underneath in letters not less than 5cm in

height.
g) the rear of the sign should display only the word ‘WORTHING’ in letters not less

than 2.5cm in height and underneath, the telephone number of the company or
Private Hire operator through whom the vehicle can be booked, displayed in
numbers not less than 5cm in height.

h) the sign shall not include the words ‘hire’, ‘cab’, ‘taxi’, ‘hackney’ or any other
word which would lead a person to believe that the vehicle is a Hackney
Carriage (even if these words form part of the company name) or any other
words or numbers except those set out above.

i) The sign should be situated on the roof on the nearside of the vehicle against the
roof gutter towards the front of the vehicle.

14.      Door Signage

14.1    Each Private Hire vehicle shall display a sign on front door in accordance with the criteria
laid out below: 

a) the sign shall be constructed of vinyl, and shall be applied directly to the door.
Licence holders should note that magnetic door signs are not acceptable in
fulfilment of this condition.  

b) the words ‘Advance booking only’ shall be displayed at the top of the sign in
letters of 4cm in height.

c) the operator or company name shall be displayed in the middle of the sign in
letters of 8cm in height if on one line or 4cm in height if on 2 lines.

d) the telephone number of the operator through which the vehicle is operating shall
be displayed at the bottom of the sign in numbers of 4cm in height.

e) the overall dimensions of the sign shall be 23cm in height by 45cm in width.

44
58



f) all numbers and letters displayed on the sign must be laid out in Futura Bold font
g) t and shall be solid black or solid white, as required by the Licensing Officer. The

colour required will be dependent on the colour of the vehicle and will be chosen
to ensure maximum visibility against the vehicle’s paintwork.

14.2     These door signs must be displayed at all times.  Failure to display these door signs
may result in the suspension of the vehicle licence.

15.       Garage Inspection Report

15.1     Upon notification from the council a council garage test must be carried out, the
proprietor must ensure that the vehicle is submitted for the garage test and provide the
original certificate of garage test to the council by the date required. Garage test is
required every 12 months for vehicles under 10 years old and every 6 months for
vehicles more than 10 years old.

15.2    The proprietor must ensure the vehicle has a Council Garage Test from a MOT approved
garage in the Borough of Worthing, or the Councils’ Commerce Way Workshop, at all
times whilst the vehicle is licensed. The Council will accept the first garage inspection
report for a new vehicle from where the vehicle is purchased.

15.3 The council garage inspection report must be issued within 28 days of application for a
vehicle licence or for relicensing of a vehicle licence.

15.4     If a vehicle fails the Council Garage Test and the vehicle still has a valid MOT Certificate
the vehicle cannot be used as a licensed vehicle until a valid Council Garage Test has
been issued.  

16.       Advertising

16.1     The approval of the Council must be sought and obtained before any advertising (or
modifications to existing advertising) is affixed to the vehicle

17.       CCTV Installation in Private Hire Vehicles

17.1    When CCTV has been installed in the vehicle with the Council’s approval, the following
conditions apply to the licence:

● The proprietor shall cause the vehicle to be fitted with a working and secure
digital CCTV system to capture images from the whole of the cabin  in high
definition and to retain such data for a period of 28 days;

● The installed CCTV to comply with any code(s) of practice issued by the
Information Commissioner, the requirements of the Data Protection Act 2018
and any technical specifications approved by the committee for the time
being in force;

● The installation of the CCTV system must be carried out by an approved
installer registered with the Council

● The proprietor shall, within 7 days, give written notice to the Council of the
installation of any CCTV system in the vehicle to include the details of the
installer, make, model and serial number of the equipment.

● The proprietor shall check the system for malfunction at least once a month
and, if a repair or download is required, the vehicle may continue to be used
provided any malfunction is rectified within 24 hours;

45
59



18.       Disability Access

The following conditions will apply to vehicles adapted or carry wheelchairs  

18.1     Where a vehicle is designed or adapted for the carriage of passengers in a wheelchair,
the following conditions shall apply:

18.2     Loading of the wheelchair must be undertaken through the side or rear of the vehicle.  

18.3 Access to and exit from the wheelchair position must not be obstructed in any manner at
any time except by wheelchair loading apparatus.

18.4     Wheelchair internal anchorage must be of the manufacturer’s design and construction
and secured in such a position as not to obstruct any emergency exit. 

18.5     If, after the licence is granted the vehicle is converted or adapted to carry wheelchairs,
the proprietor must: within 7 days of the conversion/adaptation provide a Certificate from
an approved converter, and notify their insurance company of the fact that the vehicle
has been so adapted/converted.

18.6    A suitable restraint must be available for the occupant of a wheelchair at all times and
kept in good working order.

18.7     If, after the licence is granted any equipment is fitted to the vehicle for the purpose of
lifting a wheelchair into the vehicle, this must tested in accordance with the requirements
of the Lifting Operations and Lifting Equipment Regulations 1998 (S.I. 1998/2307) and
the original testing certificate must be presented to the Council’s Licensing Office before
the lifting equipment is used in respect of any passenger.  A copy of the certificate
should also be kept in the vehicle at all times and be presented to any Licensing Officer
or police officer upon request.

18.8    There must be kept in the vehicle at all times either access ramps or a lift so assist the
wheelchair into the vehicle.  Any access ramps or lifts must be securely fixed prior to
use, and be able to support the wheelchair, occupant and helper.

18.9    Ramps and lifts must be securely stored in the vehicle before it may move off.  Any such
equipment must be maintained in good working order.

18.10  The proprietor shall ensure that the driver has received sufficient training to load and
convey wheelchair-bound passengers.  

18.11  There must be no alteration to the seating configuration without further approval from the
Licensing Officer

46
60



Appendix G

Private Hire Executive Plated Vehicles, Limousines & Speciality Vehicles
Special Conditions

The following are a pool of standard conditions relating to speciality vehicles.  The Council may
decide to attach all or any of the following standard conditions (which may be in addition to
some of all of the conditions in Appendix F) to the grant of a Private Hire vehicle licence in
respect of a speciality vehicle, as may be considered appropriate in any individual case.

1.         Additional Conditions for Private Hire Executive Plated Vehicles, Limousines &
Speciality Vehicles

1.1      An Executive vehicle or Limousine to be exempted has to be of a high quality both in
terms of brand and condition.

a) Vehicles will normally be the accepted luxury brands such as Mercedes
Benz, BMW, Jaguar, Rolls Royce, Bentley and Lexus.

b) The vehicle must have no visible defects, dents or blemishes to the external
bodywork or internal trim.  

2.        Types of Vehicles

2.1 The vehicle must have one of the following:
a) A UK Single Vehicle Approval Certificate
b) A European Whole Vehicle Approval Certificate
c) UK Low Volume Type Approval Certificate Specification

2.2 If the vehicle has a UK Single Vehicle Approval Certificate, the Council will expect that
the vehicle will have been modified in accordance with a program approved by the
original vehicle manufacturer and have appropriate documentary proof. The licensee
must produce a copy of the IVA certificate at time of licensing.

3. Vehicle and Safety Equipment

3.1 The proprietor of a vehicle shall:
a) Ensure that the vehicle and all its fittings and equipment are at all times kept

in a fit, serviceable, safe and clean condition.
b) Ensure the vehicle is fitted with tyres that meet both the manufacturer’s size

and weight specification for that vehicle.

3.2 Vehicles may be granted an exemption from the requirement under the conditions of
licence for Private Hire vehicles to be right hand drive.  

3.4 Vehicles with sideways facing seating may be considered for Private Hire licensing.

47
61



4.        Use of Vehicle

4.1 The proprietor of a vehicle shall:

a) Not permit to be conveyed in the vehicle more than the number of persons
for which the vehicle is licensed, regardless of the age or size of the
passengers  

b) Ensure that in any advertisement publicising their business, the vehicle is not
stated to carry any more than 8 passengers.

c) Not convey any passengers in the front compartment with the driver.
d) Not supply alcohol to passengers unless there is in force an appropriate

authorisation under the Licensing Act 2003 permitting the sale or supply of
the same

4.2       If all occupants are below the age of 18, there should be no alcohol carried in the
passenger compartment.

4.3       Any glassware in the vehicle must be made of either shatterproof glass or plastic.

4.4      The driver shall not play or permit the performance of any film, video or similar media
where any passenger in the vehicle is below the age permitted by the age classification
to view the particular film etc.

48
62



Appendix H

Private Hire Vehicle Licence Procedures

1. Application Process for Private Hire Vehicle - New Licence

1.1 The vehicle must accord with the specifications in Appendix E.

1.2 Applicants must telephone the licensing office to make an appointment to have their
vehicle licensed.

1.3 Applications for a Private Hire vehicle licence must be submitted on form HC-  PHV/1

1.4 Applicants attending the appointment must bring all their documents relating to the
vehicle, which include:-

● Insurance for Hire and Reward
● Registration Document or Bill of Sale
● Proof of Road Fund Tax
● MOT
● Garage Certificate
● Applicants must pay the appropriate fee before the licence can be issued.

1.6       Applicants must ensure that they bring the vehicle to the appointment

2. Application Process for Private Hire Vehicle - Licence Renewal

2.1 Applications for renewal should be submitted within 28 days prior to the vehicle licence
expiring. Applicants must telephone the licensing office to make an appointment to have
their licence renewed.

2.2       The fee must accompany the application for renewal.

2.3 Rear and door plates (where applicable) an internal licence plate will be placed on the
vehicle and a paper licence given to the applicant.

2.4       Applicants who fail to renew their vehicle licence on time will be required to submit a
new application and will be also be required to comply with the conditions set out in
Appendix D. Licence holders should note that depending on the age of the vehicle it
could be deemed to be too old to re-licence.    

3.         Application Process for Private Hire Vehicle Licence - Transfer of vehicle  

3.1 Applicants must telephone the licensing office to make an appointment to transfer the
licence to another vehicle.

3.2 Vehicles must comply with the conditions of licence outlined in Appendix D.
49

63



3.3       Applications for a Private Hire vehicle licence transfer must be submitted on the
designated form.

3.4 Applicants must bring all their documents relating to the vehicle which includes:-

● Insurance for Hire and Reward
● Registration Document or Bill of Sale
● Council Garage Inspection Report
● Valid MOT
● Proof of Road Fund Tax
● Applicants must pay the appropriate fee before the licence can be issued

3.6       An internal licence plate will be issued and placed in the holder provided on the
windscreen. This will clearly display the expiry date so it can be seen from the outside of
the vehicle.

3.7       An external licence plate will be issued and fixed to the rear of the vehicle by the Council

3.8      A paper licence will be issued. 

3.9       Applicants must bring their vehicle to the Councils’ Taxi Office for an officer of the
Council to:

● Check for the Council approved door signs (where applicable)
● Check for the Council approved roof sign (where applicable)
● To fix an external plate to the rear of the vehicle

4.        Application Process for Private Hire Vehicle Licence - Transfer of ownership

4.1 Applicants must telephone the licensing office to make an appointment to transfer the
licence to another person. 

4.2        Vehicles must comply with the conditions of licence outlined in Appendix D above

4.3       Applications for a vehicle licence transfer of ownership must be submitted on designated
form.

4.4       Applicants must bring all their documents relating to the vehicle which includes:-

● Insurance for Hire and Reward
● Registration Document or Bill of Sale
● Proof of Road Fund Tax
● Valid MOT
● Council Garage Inspection Report
● A signed transfer form from the existing licence holder authorising the

transfer of the licence
● The Council will determine whether replacement plates are required.
● Applicants must pay the appropriate fee before the licence can be issued.

50
64



Appendix I

Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Driver Licence Procedures

1.       Basic Principles

1.1      In determining an application for a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Driver Licence
applicants are required to declare all convictions / cautions / offences. The Council as
Licensing Authority is entitled to consider all convictions whether or not they may be
considered “spent” for other purposes.

1.2       A Worthing Borough Council Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Driver (PHD) must:

a) drive a vehicle licensed by this Authority
b) have the required insurance

1.3       Worthing licensed Private Hire Drivers must drive on a circuit for a Worthing Borough
Council licensed ‘Operator’, whilst on this circuit, all ‘hire and/or reward’ passengers
must be pre- booked through the ‘operator’. A PHD may not use or park a vehicle on or
near (plying for hire) any appointed ‘taxi’ rank. A PHD may not drop-off or pick-up any
passenger on or near an appointed ‘taxi’ rank and may not be ‘hailed’ in the street.  

1.4 Following the grant of a licence, any breach of condition or action(s) contrary to the
relevant legislation, any criminal or motoring record will be given due consideration by
the Council and may result in the suspension, revocation or refusal to renew any such
licence.  

1.5 All applicants for the grant of a driver's licence must satisfy the criteria set out below.

2. Driving History

2.1       Applicants must have held or be in possession of a full UK or EU driving licence for at
least 12 months and present for inspection at the time of application. If the licence
consists of a photo card and counterpart, both parts must be provided.

2.2       The applicant must generate a DVLA check code from the gov.uk DVLA website and
submit the code at the time of application.

2.3 If a licence driver has his/her DVLA licence revoked or is disqualified for any reason, the
Council may automatically revoke their Private Hire or Hackney Carriage Driver’s
Licence.

2.4 It is the responsibility of the licence holder to ensure that the DVLA licence remains valid
and any renewals to the DVLA are submitted before the expiry. Applications online to the
DVLA is the fastest way to apply for a renewal. Retain proof that application to renew an
expiring or expired DVLA licence has been completed. Online applications will issue you
with a unique code and by post obtain a receipt and proof of posting. Failure to renew
may result in suspension of your licence.

51
65



3. Medical Certificate

3.1       A medical examination must be carried out on the form supplied by the Council and
completed by the applicant’s own GP, on initial application, one at age 45, 50, 55, 60, 65
and annually thereafter, or at any time as required by the Council. The medical test will
be carried out to DVLA Group 2 standard as advised on the DVLA website under the
heading ‘Assessing fitness to drive’, a guide for medical professionals’ and each case
will be considered on its own merits. The Council will only accept a medical certificate
produced on the supplied Council’s form and no other forms of certificate or copies will
be accepted. 

4. Photographs

4.1      Two recent original passport sized photographs are required with application.

5. Driving Standards Test(s)

5.1       Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Driver applicants will be required to pass the Taxi/
Private Hire Driver Assessment Test and provide the assessment report and certificated
proof before the issue of the licence.

5.2      Contact details for the Driving Assessment will be provided.

6. Knowledge Test

6.1 All applicants are required to pass the Council's knowledge test which in addition to local
geography and taxi regulations will require an applicant to demonstrate customer
service, road signs and competency in Numeracy.

6.2 All applicants must have an adequate knowledge of both written and spoken English. All
applicants including those who may be expected to speak English as a first language by
virtue of their country of birth must undertake the Versant English Test (pass level as
decided by the Director). An applicant may be considered exempt from any adopted
English test requirement if they can demonstrate that they have previously passed a
relevant English language qualification at a suitable level, such as:  a GCSE, GCE
O-level or GCE A-level issued by a recognised examining body in the UK (grade C or
higher)  an NVQ, City & Guilds, or similar vocational qualification (level 2 or higher)
issued by a recognised examining body in the UK  an equivalent qualification to either of
the above, issued by a recognised examining body in an English-speaking country other
than the UK  a TOEFL, IELTS or ESOL qualification at CEFR level B2 (or equivalent) If
officers are not satisfied with the standard of spoken or written English language a
further certificate of competency may be required before an application will be
considered further.

6.3 Hackney Carriage Geographical Knowledge Test

The test consists of 80 questions. An applicant must achieve 90% correct answers in the
road section and 75% in all other sections in order to pass. The test is advanced and
requires an excellent knowledge of Worthing streets, roads, closes, courts, terraces,
walks, major buildings, pubs, hotels, public buildings, conditions of licence, Highway

52
66



code, Road signs, Disability awareness, Child Sexual Exploitation, safeguarding
awareness and Numeracy.
Applicants for Hackney Carriage driver licences will need to pass a route test that
involves correctly naming all the roads taken on the shortest route between 2 points
within the Borough. A pass mark of 8 out of 10 on the routes test is required.

6.4      Private Hire Geographical Knowledge Test

This test consists of 80 questions as above; an applicant must achieve 75% correct
answers in each section in order to pass. If there are any difficulties anticipated with the
knowledge test, applicants must make the Licensing Section aware within sufficient time
prior to the actual date to the test.

6.5 Applicants who wish to be exempt from sitting the Council’s knowledge test must
provide detailed information why the Council should deviate from this policy.

6.6 Child Exploitation (CE) and Disability Awareness & Handling Training

All applicants are required to undergo Child Exploitation, Safeguarding awareness and
Disability Awareness & Handling Training. Applicants undertaking the Child Exploitation,
safeguarding awareness and  Disability Awareness & Handling Training must inform the
Licensing section and must supply a pass certificate prior to their knowledge test.
Applicants who fail the Child Exploitation and Disability Awareness & Handling Training
will be required to re-sit the training and pass before a licence can be issued.

7.        Knowledge Test - General Information

7.1       No mechanical/electrical devices or other means of assistance will be allowed into the
test.

7.2       Applicants are required to provide photographic identification on the day of the test. (e.g.
passport or photographic DVLA licence). If an applicant fails to bring a photographic ID
his/her test will be cancelled.

7.3      The cost for the first knowledge test is included in the initial fee; subsequent tests are
charged for. Tests cancelled because of failure to provide the required ID on the day are
charged for.

7.4      The cost of the Child Exploitation, safeguarding awareness and Disability Awareness &
Handling Training is charged to the applicant and must be paid at the time the
application is submitted. If applicants fail the Child Exploitation, safeguarding awareness
and Disability Awareness & Handling Training they must pay for their next training
session in advance.

7.5 Tests are conducted and controlled by Officers of the Council at the Licensing Office or
at a training site. The applicant will be informed of the results from the computer test
immediately but the Licensing Office has up to 10 days to inform an applicant of the
route test. Providing all other criteria have been met and there are no outstanding
issues, an appointment may be made to arrange the issue of the Licence applied for.  

8. Proof of Identity
53

67



8.1 Applicants must submit 2 forms of photo identification, one of which must be a Passport
(or for EU/EEA Member States a National Identity Card is acceptable). The following
documents may also help to support proof of identity; however, they will not be accepted
as an alternative to adequate photographic identification (Please note only original
documents/certified copies will be accepted).

● Birth Certificate
● P45/P60
● Photo/Paper driving licence
● Marriage Certificate
● Applicants must submit 2 forms of proof of address, from the list below.

 Please note, these documents must be no more than 3 months older than
the date of issue.

● Utility bill (not mobile phone bill)
● Credit Card Statement, Bank Statement or Mortgage Statement
● Rent Account or Council Tax Record

8.2 Please ensure that the name, date of birth and address corresponds on all forms of
identification provided. If names are not identical on each document the application will
not be accepted until all the documents show the same name.

8.3 Applicants must provide printed proof of their National Insurance Number. E.g. Wage
slip or P60.

9. Fees and Charges

9.1 The cost of the Council’s Hackney Carriage & Private Hire licence fees and charges can
be obtained from the licensing office.

10. Border and Immigration

10.1 Applicants must satisfy Border & Immigration that the conditions of the applicant’s
passport and residency permission are compatible with the licence applied for.

10.2     Applicants are advised that it is the Council's policy to consult with Border & Immigration
if it deems necessary, to ensure that the applicant’s rights of residency are compatible
with the licence applied for.

10.3     At the current time, applicants who reside in the UK on the strength of a Student Visa
cannot work on a self- employed basis. They must provide written confirmation that they
intend to be employed and plan to work no more than 20 hours per week. They will also
be required to provide details in writing of the Private Hire Operator intending to act as
their employer, who will be required to complete the appropriate form. Copies of both
forms are then forwarded to HM Revenue & Customs or any other organisations that the
Council deems relevant.   

11. General Guidance

11.1     Upon completion of an application for either a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire drivers
licence the Licensing staff will check through the application to ensure that it has been

54
68



completed correctly and in full. If the applicant does not complete the application fully
then it will not be processed and the application will be returned.

11.2    When issued, the Enhanced DBS disclosure will detail all known offences to the
Licensing Authority, any disclosed information may be used by the Council to determine
whether an applicant is a ‘fit and proper’ person to be issued a Private Hire or Hackney
Carriage driving licence.

11.3    The Council will give due consideration to the merits of each individual case and if further
investigation is required, the ‘disclosure form’ certificate may be retained on the
applicant's file until the outcome of the case or for a maximum period of 6 months. All
files are kept in a secure area and are only available to the appropriate staff. If no
offences are disclosed the ‘form’ certificate’ is destroyed.

11.4     Once all the forms have been completed and have been checked by the Licensing staff
the DBS, DVLA and Border & Immigration checks will be sent for processing by the
relevant agencies.

11.5    On return of the DVLA driving licence check and any feedback from Border &
Immigration, the Licensing Officer will review each response. The DBS disclosure will be
returned to the applicant and must be submitted as soon as possible at the Licensing
office. If the Officer considers the records revealed to be acceptable and the Driving
assessment certificate has been submitted satisfactorily the applicant may apply for a
knowledge test date.

11.6 If the DBS or DVLA checks reveal relevant cautions, convictions, fixed penalties, or
Border & Immigration have concerns, the Licensing Officer may contact the applicant to
arrange for an interview. The interview will allow the Council to discuss the full
circumstances concerning the incidents revealed. The applicant will then be offered the
opportunity to put all explanations of such cautions, convictions or incidents in writing, to
support the application. After the interview has been completed, a report will be
submitted for the consideration of the Head of Service or it may be referred to the
Licensing Committee for consideration at hearing. The applicant will be notified in writing
of the Council’s decision.

11.7     The Licence will be issued subject to the laws governing the licence and Council’s own
standard conditions.  A copy of these conditions is included in the application pack and
will be supplied on the grant of any licence issued.

11.8     Hackney Carriage and Private Hire driver licences will be granted for 3 years. However,
the Council may licence for a shorter period, should this be appropriate in special
circumstances.

11.9     Applicants are also required to advise the Council's Licensing Section of any change(s)
to their circumstances i.e. medical condition, criminal incidents, driving licence, address
etc., from the time the application is submitted, to the time of issue.

55
69



Appendix J

Private Hire Driver Conditions of Licence

1.         A licensed driver shall behave in a civil and orderly manner and shall take reasonable
precautions to ensure the safety of persons conveyed in or entering or alighting from the
licensed vehicle.

2.        The driver shall be clean and tidy in appearance at all times and dressed smartly in a
long or short sleeved shirt or blouse and long trousers, tailored shorts or skirt. Suitable
footwear for driving must be worn.

3.         A licensed driver who has agreed to be in attendance at a certain time at a specified
place  or whose operator has informed him he/she must be in attendance at a certain
time at a specified place shall, unless delayed or prevented by unpreventable
circumstances, punctually attend with a licensed vehicle at the appointed time and
place.

4.        A licensed driver must:

● carry in the vehicle any luggage which a passenger requests be carried in the
vehicle provided that it can be properly secured with the luggage retrains fitted to
the vehicle;

● provide reasonable assistance in loading and unloading such luggage;
● provide reasonable assistance in removing it to or from the entrance of any

building, station or place at which he may take up or set down a passenger.
● provide reasonable assistance to any passenger in alighting or entering the

vehicle.  

5.        The licensed driver of a vehicle equipped with a taxi meter or PDA shall set the device
into operation at the point at which the hirer commences his journey unless the hirer
expresses at the time of hiring his desire to engage by time.

6.        The licence holder shall at all times when acting as a Private Hire driver wear the badge
issued by the Council around his/her neck on the lanyard or clip supplied by the Council.

7. Where any property is left in the vehicle by a passenger the licence holder must, in all
cases, take reasonable steps to trace the owner and should report all unclaimed lost
property on line to Sussex Police within 48 hours at:
https://www.sussex.police.uk/ro/report/lp/lost-or-found-property/

8.        The licence holder must not allow a passenger into their vehicle unless they have first
confirmed that there is a booking in place for that passenger made by their operator.

9. Where the licence holder is issued with a fixed penalty by a police officer for a driving
related offence, he/she must notify the Council’s Licensing Office of this fact in writing (or
by email to taxi.licensing@adur-worthing.gov.uk). The licence holder must ensure that
the notification is delivered to the Council by the next working day.

56
70

https://www.sussex.police.uk/ro/report/lp/lost-or-found-property/
mailto:taxi.licensing@adur-worthing.gov.uk


10. Where any of the following occur, the licensed driver must notify the Council of this fact
and must do so in writing (or by email) so that the notification is delivered to the Council
within 7 days:

11. Any change to the licence holder’s personal details including home address, contact
telephone number or email address.

12. If the licence holder is charged with any criminal offence including any motoring offence.

13. Any convictions or police cautions given for any criminal offence, including any motoring
offence.

14. If they change from one Private Hire operator to another.

15. A licensed driver shall not at any time permit the noise from any radio or sound system
in the vehicle to be a source of nuisance or annoyance to any person, whether inside or
outside the vehicle.  The licensed driver must turn off their radio/stereo if requested by a
passenger.

16. A licensed driver shall not between the hours of 23:30 and 07:00 sound his horn to notify
the hirer of his presence.

17. A licensed driver shall not, without the consent of the hirer, convey any other person in
the vehicle other than the hirer.

18. A licensed driver shall, if requested by the hirer, provide him or her with a written receipt
for the fare paid.

19. A licensed driver must supply on request his badge number or plate number to any
person who requires it.

20. Any occupied wheelchair being transported in a wheelchair accessible vehicle must
be safely secured using the restraint system carried in the vehicle, provided such
system is compatible with the wheelchair being transported.

21. The operator must notify the Council in writing of any change of his/her address,
(whether this is a home address or the address from where he/she operates) during the
period of the licence, within 7 days of such a change taking place or, preferably, before
this takes place.

22. A licence holder stopped by a Police or Licensing Officer, must be able to produce their
licence on demand.

57
71



Appendix K

Private Hire Operator’s Licence Conditions

1.         Provision and Furnishings of Private Hire Vehicles

1.2 Should it come to the operator’s attention that a vehicle on his/her/its circuit is not in a
clean and tidy condition, he shall notify the proprietor and/or the driver and ensure that
no jobs are given to the driver of that vehicle until the operator is satisfied that the
vehicle is in a clean and tidy state.

2. Display of Licence Plates, Signs and Advertising

2.1 The operator shall ensure that the licence plate issued and allocated by the Council is
affixed to the outside of the carriage, on or adjacent to the rear bumper, or in such other
position as may be approved by the Licensing Officer.  

2.2 The operator shall ensure maintenance of such licence plates in a clean and legible
condition and shall inform the Council immediately should it be lost or broken or become
defaced.

The operator may display on the outside or inside of the vehicle the following:

● Private Hire car sign (which may be issued by the Council) on the windscreen
● Vehicle Licence plate
● Approved West Sussex County Council School Transport Sign when operating in

conjunction with school contracts and
● Anything else that is required to be displayed by law
● But may not without first applying for and obtaining the council’s permission,

allow any other sign to be affixed to any part of a vehicle.

3. Records

3.1 The operator shall keep a permanent record of every booking of a Private Hire vehicle
invited and accepted by him, whether direct from the hirer or by undertaking the
bookings at the request of another operator. The records shall be made available for
inspection by a Council Officer or Police officer upon request. The record entries must
be made before the commencement of each journey and shall include:

• the name of the passenger
• the time of the request
• the pick up point
• the destination
• the name of the driver
• the drivers licence number
• the vehicle registration number of the vehicle
• the name of any individual that responded to the booking request
• the name of any individual that dispatched the vehicle

58
72



3.2 All records kept by the operator pursuant to Condition 3.1 above shall be preserved for a
period of at least 12 months from the date of the journey.

3.3 The operator shall keep written records of the particulars of all Private Hire vehicles
operated by him and shall include a copy of the licensed driver’s Private Hire licence,
details of the proprietor of each vehicle, the registration number of each vehicle and
driver/s of each vehicle together with any radio call sign used.  

3.4 The operator shall ensure that each driver is allocated their own unique call sign.

3.5 The Operator will securely retain a copy of the licenses of all drivers (whether Private
Hire or Hackney Carriage) engaged to work for them and make them available for
inspection by a Council officer or Police officer upon request.

3.6 The operator must ensure that every driver that works on his circuit holds a current
Private Hire driver’s licence at all times the driver is undertaking work on the circuit.

3.7 During all times that a vehicle is being operated by the licence holder under this licence,
the licence holder must ensure that the vehicle has:

● a valid certificate of insurance for the vehicle to be used for hire and reward for
those vehicles licensed as Private Hire vehicles or a valid public hire insurance
policy for those vehicles with a Hackney Carriage vehicle licence.

● a valid Certificate of Compliance
● a valid Private Hire vehicle Licence or Hackney Carriage proprietor licence.
● a valid road fund licence

The operator is required to keep a record of all the above and allow a Council officer or
Police officer to inspect them upon request.

3.8 If any documents (as above in condition number 3.7) expire the operator must ensure
the driver does not work on the circuit until valid documents have been submitted to the
operator.

3.9 The operator must provide a register of staff taking bookings and dispatching vehicles
monthly to the Council and/or if any changes occur.

3.10 All staff taking bookings and dispatching vehicles must provide a basic DBS check on
employment and thereafter every 12 months. It is the responsibility of the operator to
ensure compliance.

3.11 The operator must supply a copy of their policy on employing ex-offenders

3.12 The use of a driver who holds a PCV licence and the use of a public service vehicle
(PSV) such as a minibus to undertake a private hire vehicle booking should not be
permitted as a condition of the private hire vehicle operator’s licence without the
informed consent of the booker.

3.13 Private hire vehicle operators have a duty under data protection legislation to protect
the information they record. The Information Commissioner’s Office provides
comprehensive on-line guidance on registering as a data controller and how to meet
their obligations

59
73



4. Conduct of Operator

4.1 The licence holder must not accept a booking by any person to hire a Private Hire
vehicle unless the passenger or someone on his behalf previously requested the hiring
by telephone, letter, email, text or personal call to the office or business premises of the
licence holder.

4.2 The licence holder must not accept a request for hire (a booking) which has been
communicated to them via a driver operating a Private Hire vehicle. To be clear:  the
licence holder must not accept a booking from a potential passenger made on that
person’s behalf by a driver in circumstances where the person approached the driver in
the street seeking to hire the vehicle.

4.3 The operator must ensure that none of his office staff or agents touts for business on the
street whether or not this is nearby the operator’s offices. In this context, ‘tout for
business’ means approaching any person on the street and asking if they want to book a
vehicle where that person has not approached the operator’s staff first.

5. Complaints

5.1 The operator shall notify the Council in writing of any complaints concerning a
contract for hire arising from his business that he feels prudent to do so, for
example for his own protection against frivolous or vexatious complaints.
Such notification must include the action taken, or proposed, as a result of the
complaint.

6. Miscellaneous

6.1 The operator may only operate from an address within the borough of Worthing.

6.2 The licence holder must notify the Council at least 7 days prior to any intended change
of address from which the licence holder intends to operate under this licence.

6.3 The licence holder may only trade under this licence using one of the following names:
(a) his/her/its own name, or
(b) the trading name or one of the names which the licence holder included on the

licence application form; or
(c) another trading name provided that the operator notifies the Council at least

14 days prior to the intended change to name under which the operator
intends to trade.

6.4 This licence must be kept in the possession of the operator and must be produced when
requested by a Council officer or any police officer.

6.5 In the event of loss or damage to this licence the Council’s Licensing Section Office
must be informed immediately so that a replacement licence can be issued.

6.6 This licence must not be altered or defaced in any way.

6.7 The operator must take all reasonable steps to ensure that there is no radio scanning
equipment in the vehicles at any time.

60
74



6.8 The operator must not refuse a booking because the person wishing to make the
booking proposes that his/her guide dog is to travel in the vehicle with them.  The
operator must not make an additional charge for the carriage of a passenger’s
assistance dog.  

6.9      The operator must not operate more vehicles than the total number of vehicles specified
in their licence.

6.10     Upon the grant of an operator’s licence, the Council will specify the address from which
the operator may operate. This will be the registered premises where the records are
kept and where bookings are accepted.

6.11 Where the licence holder is a person, he/she must notify the Council in writing (or by
email to: taxi.licensing@adur-worthing.gov.uk) if any of the following occur, and must do
so within 7 days of the event occurring

● Any change to the licence holder’s personal details including home address
(or where the licence holder is a company, the registered address), contact
telephone number or email address.

● If the licence holder is charged with any criminal offence including any
motoring offence.

● Any convictions or police cautions given for any criminal offence, including any
motoring offence.

6.12 Where the licence holder is a company, a director or the secretary, they must notify the
Council in writing (or by email: taxi.licensing@adur-worthing.gov.uk ) if any of the
following occur, and must do so within 7 days of the event occurring

● Any change to the licence holder’s personal details including the registered
address, contact telephone number or email address.

● If the licence holder is charged with any criminal offence.
● If any director or the company secretary is charged with any criminal offence or

motoring offence.
● If any director or the company secretary is convicted or given a police caution for

any criminal offence or motoring offence.
● The details, including full name, home address and telephone contact number, of

any director or company secretary appointed after the licence was granted.

61
75

mailto:%20taxi.licensing@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:taxi.licensing@adur-worthing.gov.uk


Appendix L

Enforcement

In most cases where there are reasons to believe that enforcement action against a licence
holder may be required the procedure to be followed is that set out in the Council’s
Environmental Health Enforcement (available on the Council’s website at
www.adur-worthing.gov.uk), in particular the procedure relating to enforcement reviews.  The
following should therefore be read in conjunction with, and is in addition to, the Council’s
General Enforcement Policy.

Private Hire & Hackney Carriage Drivers and Private Hire Operators

The Council has considered the Department for Transport’s 2010 Best Practice Guidance and
in particular notes that in paragraph 59 councils are encouraged to have a clear policy for the
consideration of criminal records.  

Set out below are the factors, both in relation to criminal activity, other types of unacceptable
behaviour and factors of concern, which will be considered when the delegated officer is
considering whether or not they are satisfied that a person is a fit and proper person to hold a
licence.

1. General matters

1.1 Each case will be decided on its own merits.

1.2 Relevance of convictions

1.21 A person with a current conviction for serious crime need not be permanently barred
from obtaining a licence but should be expected to remain free of conviction for 3 to 5
years, according to the circumstances, before an application will be entertained. Some
discretion may be appropriate if the offence is isolated and there are mitigating
circumstances. However, the Council’s overriding consideration should be the protection
of the public.

1.22 Remaining free from convictions will not generally be regarded as sufficient evidence
that a person is a ‘fit and proper’ person to hold a licence. The Council does not confine
itself to convictions but also takes into account non-convictions etc. (in line with Leeds
City Council v Hussain). Some discretion may be appropriate if the offence is isolated
and there are mitigating circumstances. However, the overriding consideration should be
the protection of the public. The following examples afford a general guide on the actions
to be taken where convictions are admitted or discovered.  

2. Dishonesty

2.1 It is essential for the public to have trust in Hackney Carriage and Private Hire drivers.
The practice of delivering unaccompanied property is indicative of the trust that business
people place in licensed drivers. However, there is scope for a dishonest driver to
defraud a passenger by demanding more than the legal or agreed fare or by taking a

62
76

http://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk


longer route to a destination. Visitors are particularly at risk from an unscrupulous driver.
For this reason, the Council will take a serious view of any offences involving dishonesty.
The Council will generally not consider an application until a period of at least 3 years
free from convictions has elapsed. More than one conviction for this type of offence
within the last 5 years will raise serious doubts about the applicant’s fitness to hold a
licence. In such cases, the Council may reject the application.

2.2 In the case of a licensed driver convicted of an offence involving dishonesty, the Council
may refuse to renew, suspend or revoke the licence. If a licence is revoked, no further
application will normally be considered until a period of at least 3 years free from
convictions of this type has elapsed.

2.3 Offences of dishonesty include:
• Theft
• Burglary
• Fraud including benefit fraud
• Handling or receiving stolen goods
• Forgery
• Conspiracy to defraud
• Obtaining money or property by deception
• Other deception

3. Violence

3.1 The Council will take a serious view of any applicant convicted of an offence involving
violence.

3.2 Unless there are exceptional circumstances a licence will not normally be granted where
the applicant has a conviction for one or more of the following offences:

• Murder
• Manslaughter
• Manslaughter or culpable homicide while driving
• Arson with intent to endanger life
• Terrorism offences
• Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit offences) or

offences which replace the above.

In the case of a licensed driver convicted of any of the above offences, unless there are
exceptional circumstances, the Council will normally revoke the licence immediately.

3.3 A licence will not normally be granted where the applicant has a conviction for one of the
following offences in the 10 years immediately prior to the date of application:

• Malicious wounding or grievous bodily harm which is racially aggravated
• Actual bodily harm which is racially aggravated
• Grievous bodily harm
• Robbery
• Possession of firearm
• Riot
• Assault on Police
• Racially aggravated offences
• Violent disorder
• Resisting arrest

63
77



• Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit offences),
which replace the above.

3.4 In the case of a licensed driver convicted of any of the above offences, the Council may
suspend or revoke the licence. If a licence is revoked, no further application will normally
be considered until a period of at least 10 years free from convictions of this type has
elapsed.

3.5 A licence will not normally be granted where the applicant has a conviction for one of the
following offences in the 5 years immediately prior to the date of application:

• Assault occasioning actual bodily harm
• Common assault
• Affray
• Criminal damage
• Harassment
• Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit offences),

or offences which replace the above

3.6 In the case of a licensed driver convicted of any of the above offences, the Council may
suspend or revoke the licence. If a licence is revoked, no further application will normally
be considered until a period of at least 5 years free from convictions of this type has
elapsed.

3.7 A licence will not normally be granted where the applicant has a conviction for one of the
following offences in the 3 years immediately prior to the date of application:

• S.5 Public Order Act 1986 offence (harassment, alarm or distress)
• S.4 Public Order Act 1986 offence (fear of provocation of violence)
• S4A Public Order Act 1986 offence (intentional harassment, alarm or distress)
• Possession of a weapon (other than a firearm)
• Obstruction
• Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit offences),

or offences which replace the above

3.8 In the case of a licensed driver convicted of any of the above offences, the Council may
suspend or revoke the licence. If a licence is revoked, no further application will normally
be considered until a period of at least 3 years free from convictions of this type has
elapsed.

4.0 Drugs

4.1 The Council will take a serious view of convictions for drug related offences.

a) An application will normally be refused when an applicant has a conviction
related to the supply of drugs and the conviction is less than 5 to ten years
prior to the date of application. After 5 years have elapsed, consideration will
be given if an applicant can provide evidence that they can be considered a
‘fit and proper’ person.

b) In the case of a licensed driver who is convicted of an offence linked to the
supply of drugs, the Council may suspend or revoke the licence. If a licence
is revoked, no further application will normally be considered until a period of
at least 5 years free from convictions of this type has elapsed.

64
78



4.2 An application will generally be refused where the applicant has more than one
conviction relating to the possession of drugs and the last conviction was less than 5
years prior to the date of application.

4.3 An application from an applicant who has an isolated conviction for possession of drugs
within the last 3 to 5 years will require serious consideration before a decision is made
regarding their suitability.  The Council may require the applicant to produce additional
information in order to satisfy the Council that they are a fit and proper person to be
granted a licence.

4.4 The Council will take a serious view of a licensed driver convicted of an offence for
possession of drugs. An isolated incident will result in a strict warning about future
conduct. More than one conviction for this type of offence in the last 5 years will raise
serious doubts about the person’s fitness to hold a licence. In such cases, the Council
may refuse to renew, suspend or revoke the licence.  If a licence is revoked, no further
application will normally be considered until a period of at least 5 years free from
convictions has elapsed, and the Council may require that the person submit a medical
examination report from their own GP addressing their drug-use problems when they
re-apply for a licence.  

4.5 See below for offences relating to driving under the influence of drugs and/or alcohol.

5.0 Sexual and indecency offences

5.1 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire drivers frequently carry unaccompanied and/or
vulnerable passengers. The Council will therefore take a serious view of any convictions
for a sexual offence. A licence will not normally be granted if an applicant has more than
one conviction for a sexual offence.

5.2 Unless there are exceptional circumstances, an application will normally be refused
where the applicant has a conviction for an offence such as:

• Rape
• Assault by penetration
• Sexual offences involving children or vulnerable adults
• Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit offences),

or offences which replace the above

In the case of a licensed driver convicted of any of the above offences, unless
there are exceptional circumstances; the Council will in most cases immediately revoke
the licence.

5.3 A licence will not normally be granted where the applicant has a conviction for any of the
following offences in the 10 years immediately prior to the date of application:

• Sexual assault
• Indecent assault
• Possession of indecent photographs, child pornography etc.
• Exploitation of prostitution
• Trafficking for sexual exploitation
• Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit offences),

or offences which replace the above.

65
79



In the case of a licensed driver convicted of any of the above offences, the Council may
suspend or revoke the licence. If a licence is revoked, no further application will normally
be considered until a period of at least 10 years free from convictions of this type has
elapsed.

5.4 A licence will not normally be granted where the applicant has a conviction for any of the
following offences in the 5 years immediately prior to the date of application:

• Indecent exposure
• Soliciting (kerb crawling)
• Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit offences),

or offences which replace the above.

In the case of a licensed driver convicted of any of the above offences, the Council may
suspend or revoke the licence. If a licence is revoked, no further application will normally
be considered until a period of at least 5 years free from convictions of this type has
elapsed.

5.5 Applications will be refused where the applicant is on the Sex Offenders Register or is
subject to a Sexual Offences Prevention Order (SOPO) or any similar order which may
in the future replace SOPOs.

6.        Alcohol Related Offences

6.1 With motor vehicle:

The Council will take a serious view of an applicant convicted for driving or attempting to
drive a vehicle with levels of alcohol in blood, breath or urine in excess of the permitted
limit. A single conviction for any alcohol-related driving offence will normally preclude an
application from being granted a licence for a period of 5 years from the time the
person’s DVLA licence is restored.

More than one conviction for any alcohol-related driving offence represents an
unacceptable risk to the public and an application will normally be refused.

If there is any suggestion that the applicant suffers clinical alcohol dependence, the
Council may require a medical examination to be undertaken and a report submitted to
the Council to consider as part of the application process. If the applicant is found to be
suffering from clinical alcohol dependence, an application will not normally be
considered until a period of at least 5 years has elapsed after completion of treatment of
the condition. The cost of any medical examination and report must be paid for by the
applicant/driver.

The Council will take a serious view of a licensed driver convicted of driving or
attempting to drive a vehicle with levels of alcohol in excess of the permitted limit as this
will raise serious doubts about the person’s fitness to hold a licence. In such cases, the
Council may refuse to renew, suspend or revoke the licence. If a licence is revoked, no
further application will normally be considered until a period of at least 5 years free from
convictions of this type has elapsed.

66
80



If a licensed driver is convicted of driving or attempting to driver a vehicle with levels of
alcohol in excess of the permitted limit where he/she was driving (or attempting to drive
as the case may be) a licensed vehicle (whether Hackney Carriage or Private Hire
vehicle), the Council will view this especially seriously and treat this as an aggravating
factor.

6.2 Without motor vehicle:

An isolated alcohol-related offence (not involving driving) will not necessarily prevent an
applicant being granted a licence, and similarly an isolated alcohol-related offence (not
involving driving) committed by a licensed driver will not usually lead to the suspension
or revocation of the driver’s licence.

However, where an applicant has a number of convictions for alcohol-related offences
may indicate a medical problem. In such cases, the Council may require a medical
examination to be undertaken and a report submitted to the Council to consider as part
of the application process. The cost of any medical examination must be paid for by the
applicant.

7. Minor traffic offences

7.1 Convictions for minor traffic offences, for example obstruction, waiting in a restricted
street, etc., will not necessarily prevent a person from being considered for a licence. If a
new applicant has 6 live penalty points on their driving licence for such offences then the
application may be granted subject to a strong written warning. If an applicant has more
than 6 penalty points on their licence then the application will normally be refused and
no further application will normally be considered until a period of at least 12 months free
from convictions of this type has elapsed.

7.2 In the case of a licensed driver accumulating nine or more penalty points the Council
may refuse to renew, suspend or revoke the licence. If a licence is revoked, no further
application will normally be considered until a period of at least 12 months free from
convictions of this type has elapsed.

8. Major traffic offences

8.1 If an applicant has live endorsements or has been disqualified from driving in respect of
one or more major traffic offences, for example reckless driving or driving without due
care and attention etc., then the application will normally be refused until at least 5 years
after the most recent such conviction.

9.0 Offences by licensed drivers, proprietors or operators

9.1      Where a licensed driver is convicted of more than one offence for alcohol-related offence
this will raise doubts about the person’s fitness to hold a licence. In such cases, the
Council may refuse to renew, suspend or revoke the licence. If a licence is revoked, the
Council may require a medical examination to be undertaken and a report submitted to
the Council to consider as part of a future re-application process.

9.2 Any conviction resulting from an offence committed by any person whilst working as a
Hackney Carriage or Private Hire driver or operator, or when driving a Hackney Carriage
or Private Hire vehicle even if not working as a professional driver, is regarded as

67
81



extremely serious and may lead to a licence being suspended or revoked or an
application to renew the licence being refused.

9.3       The Council also regards as extremely serious offences by licensed drivers and
operators who commit licensing-related offences, especially the offence of illegally plying
for hire, and may lead to a licence being suspended or revoked or an application to
renew the licence being refused.  Licensing-related offences in this context include any
offences contrary to the Town Police Clauses Act 1847, the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 or any breach of licence conditions or bye laws
made under the relevant legislation, but especially the offence of illegally plying for hire.

9.4 More than one conviction for the above would almost certainly lead to the Council
revoking the licence.

9.5 Using a hand-held device whilst driving Where an applicant has a conviction for
using a held‐hand mobile telephone or a hand‐ held device whilst driving, a licence
will not be granted until at least five years have elapsed since the conviction or
completion of any sentence or driving ban imposed, whichever is the later.

10.0 Cautions and Endorsable Fixed Penalties

10.1 For the purpose of these guidelines, simple cautions and endorsable fixed penalty
notices will be taken into consideration when deciding an applicant is fit and proper.

Appendix M Revised

Penalty Points Scheme
1. The Scheme

1.1 Any breach of legislation or the requirements of this Licensing handbook will be fully
considered by authorised officers when determining the use of the penalty point system.
Where it is decided that the penalty point system is appropriate, the points will be issued
in accordance to this appendix. If this appendix allows a range of points for the particular
incident, the authorised officer will determine the appropriate number of points
proportionate to the offence.

1.2 Before penalty points are issued, there must be sufficient evidence to prove, on the
balance of probabilities, the offence or breach of licensing requirements. The licence
holder will be given the opportunity to provide any mitigating circumstances to be
considered. The issuing of penalty points is not a formal sanction in its own right; it is
merely an open and transparent method of how a driver will be assessed in terms of the
‘fit and proper person’ test. The points system is predominantly an internal management
tool for ensuring that licence holders who repeatedly contravene regulations and/or this
Policy are assessed.

68
82



1.3 Points issued will be confirmed in writing within ten working days from the discovery of
the contravention or the conclusion of an investigation into a complaint.

1.4 The maximum number of points that can be imposed in respect of any particular matter
is 10 but it is possible for one incident or inspection to result in more than one set of
points being issued.

1.5 If a licence holder accumulates 10 points or more within a rolling period of 12 months
then their licence will be subject to a review by the Licensing Committee.

1.6 The penalty point system will operate without prejudice to the Council’s ability to take
other action under appropriate legislation

1.7 There is no right of appeal against the award of penalty points by an Authorised Officer
of the Council as this is not a formal sanction in its own right. As stated in paragraph 1.2
above, the licence holder’s penalty offences will be considered in light of any mitigating
circumstances that the licence holder wishes to offer.

1.8 The following tables list the breaches of legislation, bye laws and conditions of licence
that attract penalty points.

Reference to HC is Hackney Carriage and PH is Private Hire.

Private Hire

A           Offences under the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976                                                                                                    Points

1 Vehicle not displaying plates. (Sec.48(6)(a) 5

2 Failure to notify vehicle transfer. (Sec.49(1) 5

3 Failure to present vehicle for inspection. (Sec.50(1) 5

4 Failure to inform Authority where the vehicle is stored. (Sec.50(2) 5

5 Failure to report an accident.(Sec.50(3) 5

6 Failure to produce a vehicle licence and insurance certificate.(Sec50(4) 5

7 Failure to wear driver badge.(Sec.54(2) 5

69
83



8 Failure by Operator to keep records of bookings.(Sec.56(2) 5

9 Failure by Operator to keep records of vehicles.(Sec.56(3) 5

10 Failure to produce a PH Operators licence.(Sec 56(4) 5

11 Making false statement or withholding information to obtain a licence.(Sec.57(2) 5

12 Failure to return vehicle plate after notice given.(Sec.58(2) 5

13 Failure to surrender driver licence after suspension.(Sec.61(2) 5

14 Charging more than the meter fare when HC used as a PH.(Sec.67) 5

15 Unnecessarily prolonging a journey.(Sec.69) 5

16 Obstruction of an authorised officer or constable.(Sec.73(1)(a) 5

17 Failure to comply with requirement of an authorised officer or constable.(Sec 73(1)(b) 5

18 Failure to give information or assistance to an authorised officer or constable.(Sec.73(1)(c) 5
B                 Offences under the Transport Act 1980                                                                                        Points
Section
64
(2) (a)

Driving a vehicle with a sign above its roof which consists or includes the word  'taxi' or 'cab'
whether alone or part of another word 5

64
(2) (b)

Causes or permits a vehicle to have a sign above its roof which consists or includes the word
'taxi' or 'cab' whether alone or part of another word. 5

C               Conditions of licence

All breaches of licence conditions shall attract 5 penalty points.

Hackney Carriage

A               Offences under the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976                                                                                                Points

1 Failure to notify vehicle transfer (Sec.49(1) 5

2 Failure to present vehicle for inspection. (Sec.50(1) 5

3 Failure to inform Authority where the vehicle is stored. (Sec.50(2) 5

4 Failure to report an accident.(Sec.50(3) 5

5 Failure to produce a vehicle licence and insurance certificate.(Sec50(4) 5

6 Failure to produce HC driver licence.(Sec.53(3)

70
84



5

7 Making false statement or withholding information to obtain a
licence.(Sec.57(2)

5

8 Failure to return vehicle plate after notice given.(Sec.58(2) 5

9 Failure to surrender driver licence after suspension.(Sec.61(2) 5

10
Charging more than the fare shown on the meter for a journey ending outside
the district without prior agreement 5

11 Charging more than the meter fare when HC used as a PH.(Sec.67) 5

12 Unnecessarily prolonging a journey.(Sec.69) 5

13 Obstruction of an authorised officer or constable.(Sec.73(1)(a) 5

14 Failure to comply with requirement of an authorised officer or constable.(Sec
73(1)(b)

5

15 Failure to give information or assistance to an authorised officer or
constable.(Sec.73(1)(c)

5

B                 Offences under the town Police Clauses Act 1847

Section Offence Points

48 Failure by HC Proprietor to hold a copy of HC driver licences of persons who
use the vehicle

5

59 Carrying other person than the hirer without consent 5

C                Offences under the Byelaws

All breaches of hackney carriage byelaws shall attract 5 penalty points.

D                  Conditions of Licence

All breaches of licence conditions shall attract 5 penalty points.

Equalities Act 2010
Section Offence Points

168
Refusal to carry a guide, hearing, or other assistance dog in a
hackney carriage without a valid certificate of exemption 10

168 Charging an additional cost for the carrying of an assistance dog in a hackney
carriage 10

170 Refusal to carry a guide, hearing, or other assistance dog in a private hire
vehicle without a valid certificate of exemption 10

170 Charging an additional cost for the carrying of an assistance dog in a
private hire vehicle 10

71
85



Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy

Breach of policy requirement Points
Failure to wear a driver’s badge 5

Failure to ensure the safety of passengers 5

Concealing or defacing a vehicle Licence Plate 5

Failure to attend on time for a prearranged booking without reasonable cause

5
Conveying a greater number of passengers than permitted 5

Failure to give reasonable assistance with passenger’s luggage 5

Private hire vehicle soliciting for hire or accepting a fare that is not pre-booked

5
Operating a vehicle that is not clean and tidy 5

Driving without the consent of the proprietor 5

Drinking or eating in the vehicle whilst carrying passengers 5

Smoking in a licensed vehicle at any time 5

Cause excessive noise from any radio or sound-reproducing equipment

5
Allowing a private hire vehicle to stand in such a position as to suggest that it is plying for hire
or using a hackney carriage stand 5

Using a non-hands free mobile telephone whilst driving 10

Failure to advise of a relevant medical condition 5

Failure to provide a receipt for a fare when requested 5

Failure to operate the meter from the commencement of the journey
and/or charging more than the fixed charge for hire of hackney carriages 5

Failure to notify the Council of any amendment to the details of a licence within fourteen days

5
Failure to surrender a driver’s licence, badge or plate upon request 5

Failure of a licence holder to disclose pending prosecution or convictions within seven days of
notification 5

Failure to switch the CCTV on whilst working (If the first offence is serious the licence should be
immediately referred to the Licensing & Control committee for a Review)

5

Breach of policy requirement Points

Failure to take found property to the Police 5

Failure to report an accident within seventy two hours 5

72
86



Failure to comply with the requirements for the safe carrying of a Wheelchair

5
Operating a vehicle which is not maintained in a sound and roadworthy condition

5
Failure to carry an approved fire extinguisher 5

Failure to carry an approved first aid kit 5

Operating a vehicle which is not maintained in a clean and/or safe condition internally or
externally 5

Modifying a vehicle without the consent of the Council 5

Displaying a sign or advertisement on a licensed vehicle contrary to
the Policy requirements or has not been approved by the Council 5

Driving with no insurance or inadequate insurance for the vehicle 10

Failure of a private hire operator to ensure that all vehicles operated
by him are adequately insured 5

Any other contravention of the Policy not covered above 5

73
87



This page is intentionally left blank



Handbookreview
1 message

7 September 2021 at 11:09
To: taxi.licensing@adur-worthing.gov.uk

 

Good morning,

1 would like there to be a review onthe tinted window policy now we have CCTV.| personally think CCTV covers the
safety requirements for using a taxi.

Whenpurchasing a vehicle these daysit’s very difficult to not have tinted windowswe already have to consider many
options without this out dated rule. . | believe this is a reasonable request and would appreciate this to be lookedat.

Manythanks

Jamie Smytherman
Badge no PD7167
 

Adur & Worthing Councis|
Sent from my iPhone

Licensing Unit |RECEIVE

|
07 SEP zuc!

 

 

setecag citwesnaennnnaeniciies Initials
el

89







My view of the current /future handbook.
1 message

26 September 2021 at 12:45

To: "taxi.licensing@adur-worthing.gov.uk" <taxi.licensing@adur-worthing.gov.uk>

Good morning,
| have been wanting this moment to give my thoughts about the way "We"(Worthing taxi drivers) are unfairly treated.|

beg you to please show Theresa and even Simon this email as they are the people with decisions which wefeel do
Not protect our residents in Worthing.

1. You allow other cars from different boroughs( especially Chichester) to come and work in Worthing, carrying our

people around with No wayof monitoring their safety at all. That really has to change, | know you alwayssaythat

there is nothing you can do aboutthat, but you are the councillors and can surely vote in local laws which would

prevent an outsider to come and make a mockery of our local laws/rules.
2. As an example of how weakthe currentrules are; | know ofa driver/ drivers who are currently working for Arrow

whowere bannedin Worthing, appealed but their appeals fail because of the gravity of what they did, but went to

Chichester, got a licence there so easily, came back straight to Arrow and now work here with a Chichester badge
carrying the same people you were supposedto protect them from carying.

Now,youtell me that is Not making a mockery of our laws, andit is dangerous as you are allowing criminals to work
here putting our residents lives in danger. My suggestion is: have a system in place that any driver who is banned /
disqualified as a taxi driver should Not be allowedto just go round and comebackwith a different badge but the same
dangerousperson. Contact Chichester council and find out what systemsare in place to prevent unqualified/

disqualified drivers from others boroughs from going there and given licences to then go and make a mockery of

other boroughs.

3. You are losing so many Worthing licensed drivers to Chichester becausethereis virtually No checks donein
Chichester, many people are going there to get licences becauseit is so easy to get it there and come and work for

Arrow in Worthing, | would like to ask this question: has any councillor from Worthing been to an Arrowoffice in

Chichester?? | know there is one in Littlehampton that all, does that give them the right to employ Chichester cars??
My suggestionis: be fair to Worthing drivers and relax someof the unnecessary checks which are makingit hard to

anyonefor wanting to becomeone.

4. Oneof the really unnecessary requirements is : the GLASS TINT; please please please this Has to be removed,
the new handbook should Not have this. you are making ourlives sooo hard to find a car to buy becauseall cars

comewith slightly tinted glasses from the manufacturer, why do you haveto force us to go and removethese, tofit

clear glasses at a very expensive cost, while we have Chichester cars doing the samejob as us with heavily tinted
cars??

We have CCTVsin ourcars, howis a tinted glass protecing our residents more than the CCTV??pleaseif this is Not
changed, | am also getting a Chichester licence soon, which will lose the council my anual badge fee and vehicle

licence fee to Chichester. Is this really what you want?? | know of many of my friends who have found No point

having a worthing licence with all these requirements yet you can go to Chichester get a licence where you do Not
need a CCTVin your car, yourcarfilled with Arrow stickers, a roof light, Tinted glasses, No car agerestrictionsetc...

and weall work for Arrow , doing the samejob in the same town.

You can see that Worthing taxi drivers are unfairly treated,and unless you do something aboutit you will soon have
No PVhire drivers paying for badges in Worthing.

Thank you. | ask for my email to be kept anonymousand Notpublish it as | know Arrow taxis Will Not be happy with

me mentioning all what | have said and will therefore tell me to Not work for them yet I really love my job and | can

Not see myself working for anyone else in Worthing other than Arrow, but we are just asking for all of us to be treated

fairly.

Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android

 

Adur & Worthing Councils
Licensing Unit
RECORIVYED

27 SEP 2021

suyeveqteteaat WexsleveSt..... Initials

90



  

Adur & Worthing Councils
Licensing Unit

. ; - RECEIVEN
Re: Worthing Taxi and Private Hire Handbook Gonsutation OG OCT 2021
1 message

 

6 October 2021 atl 15:52
To: Taxi Licensing <taxi.licensing@adur-worthing.gov.uk> fe Initials   
To the Licensing Committee,
| am sending you this email today in the hope of changing the rule on tinted windows.| myself am
currently looking for a new carto buy but keep getting knocked backby the vast majority having rear
windowsthat are tinted, | would say for the type of car | wasafter, like a Skoda Superb or Ford Mondeo
it would bein the region of 9 out of 10 that have them. It seems the more you wantto payorthe better
the vehicle like an executive modelit comesas standard.I'm sure you would rather us driving round
Worthing in nice looking cars than not so.
When| wasabout to buy a Skodawith tinted windows| did go to the dealership in Broadwater Rd and
got quoted £1,110 to get them replaced which whenyourpaying anything around £12,000 for a new car
is something you can do without especially with takings being vastly reduced overthe last 18 months or
So.
Also as wehaveto have internal CCTV camerasfitted | would ask why we havethis rule.
| have also read that a numberof councils across the country have decided to do awaywiththis rule to
help out the drivers and | am asking WBCto do the same. Many thanks

Yours sincerely Gary Botting (PH 2001)

Get Outlook for Android

From: teresa.bowley@adur-worthing.gov.uk <teresa.bowley@adur-worthing.gov.uk> on behalf of Taxi

Licensing <taxi.licensing@adur-worthing.gov.uk>

Sent: Wednesday, September 1, 2021 11:30:27 AM

Subject: Worthing Taxi and Private Hire Handbook Consultation

1

September 2021

Worthing Borough Council Taxi and Private

Hire Handbook Consultation

Adur

& Worthing Councils review of their Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Handbooks normally every 5

years but both Licensing Authorities reserve the right to review them at any time that membersfeelit is

aquired. Both handbooks have been subjectto interim

reviews in recent years but a full review is now duefor both.

The

councils recognisethatit is good practice for local authorities to consult regarding anysignificant

proposed changesin licensing rules. Therefore, any consultation should include not only the taxi and

PHVtrades but also groupslikely to be the trades’

customers. Examples are groups representing disabled people,Chambers of Commerce,organisations

with a widertransport interest (e.g. Royal national institute for the blind, Guide dogsfor the blind, british

deaf association, Campaign for Better Transport,

Access & Mobility Groups and othertransport providers), minority & womens’ groups,local traders and

otherinterested parties.

The

council's review of their Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Handbooksis now taking place for the next

6 weeks, you are invited to make any representation during this formal consultation process from

Tuesday 1 September to Tuesday 12 October 2021.

91





 

 TAXI HANDBOOK REVIEW '
Adur & Worthing Councils
  

1 message ; ;
° LicensingUnit

Zoom Worthing Office <office@zZoomworthing.co.uk> RECEIVED 9 October 2021 at 20:25
To: Taxi Licensing <taxi.licensing@adur-worthing.gov.uk> 44 OCT 2021
Cc: Teresa Bowley <teresa.bowley@adur-worthing.gov.uk>

  HileresaSteam,

joqj.-=qj.j-

 Wrrsisssiesesemecsnamasesncocmustine Initials 

| would like to make a representation requesting a changeto the current rules that Worthing Licensing Authority have
on tinted windows.

Ask any Private Hire or Hackneydriver in Worthing how easyit is to find a vehicle that meets the currenttint
standards, and theywill all give you the same answer. Almost impossible.It is a rule that adds massively to the stress

that all Worthing licensed drivers face when changing vehicles, andit is completely without grounds for enforcement.

It needs changing now.

The simple fact is that almost all modern cars are now madewith a reasonably heavytint on the rear windows. The

reasonsforthis are:

1. It reduces harmful UV rays and therefore improvers passengerhealth and safety;
2. It reduces glare coming through the rear windows, therefore improving passenger comfort;

3. It reduces the temperature in the car on sunny days, reducing the needfor air conditioning, which in turn

reduces harmful emissions

The almost impossible task to find a car that can be licensed in Worthing is compoundedbythe fact that almostall of
us buy our cars on the second hand market, wheretinted windows are on 99% ofcars.Is it really fair that we are
forced to travel sometimes hundredsof miles to buy a used car that we hopewill be licensed, only to find on

presenting the carto the licensing officer that the tint is too dark? And then having to spend a further £1000 to get the

glass replaced?

If this measure has been putin place for the safety of customers, whereis the evidencethatit is a factor? A recent
Freedom Of Information request was sentto all police forces in the UK which asked:

“Has the fact that a vehicle has tinted windows ever been considered to be a factorin any taxi or private hire related

incident? ”

The answerfrom all forces was a resounding “No”.

Furtherto this, the current rules on windowtint could well be in violation of the Regulator’s Code 2014, which states:

Whendesigning and reviewing policies, operational procedures and practices, regulators should consider

how they might support or enable economic growth for compliant businesses and other regulated entities,

for example, by considering how they can best:

e understand and minimise negative economic impacts of their regulatory activities;

e minimise the costs of compliance for those they regulate;

Another major factor to consider is that this has becomesuch anissue in Worthing, that a large numberof previously
Worthing licensed drivers have switched to a neighbouring authority, where there are no such rules on windowtint.
You can’t help but notice that literally half of the Private Hire vehicles working in Worthing are now on Chichester92



’ licenses, and have heavyrear windowtint.If this trend continues, the long term budgetary affect this will have on
Worthing Licensing Authority is obvious.

Taking all of this into consideration, it is my recommendation that there is no set limit on rear windowtint in the
revised Handbook.| believe that all other current standards on vehicles should remain unchanged.| also believe that

the standards of the new handbookshould apply to both Worthing and Adur boroughs.

Kind Regards,

Andy Hall — Director Zoom Private Hire.

93





Handbookproposed challenges 2021

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makes it very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

| feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay anyattention to the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

The non-allowance of windowtinting is completely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsoryto all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: g- [a-v\|

Company: €_ WN( ro “oo UAL

Namer ASDC wy COHN

Ph/Hackney number

94







Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

| feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

Cost of replacementglass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found not to be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsoryto all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: %4-\0 - 3).

om OW.
mnjneckne,nage! 9 N) “THO iy) as

HD S200 PLATE 20.

95









Handbook review objections/suggestions amended

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

| feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

Cost of replacement glass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactoryfitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto beat fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsoryto all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide boroughcouncil database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banned drivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: 7 | ya fet

Company: a COL. | .

Name: Mira Vv ny

Ph/Hackney number SO i

96









Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

| feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windows offer someprivacy.

Cost of replacementglass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council orpolice:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: OG- /0-2/

Company: — ‘hLocow

Name: aA OAM St Ty

Ph/Hackney number Aig ¥

97









Handbook proposed challenges 2021

Removal of windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

| feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay any attentionto the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

The ron-allawanee aen tinting is completely unnecessary.

CCTV requestsbe paid by council orpolice:

Whendriveris foundfot to be at fault
2

Oris just a general request for information

x

ew

eCrv screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

perros

Dates ©OG6 -(o-2I

Company: Aen

Name: Avan Sains

Ph/Hackney number “WG %

98







Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

 

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

1 feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

Cost of replacementglass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimes in vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banned drivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: a —\Oor-2A.

Company: ALE CORRS: >

Name: BOR Gcr1rGS— GENSss>

Ph/Hackney number Rk} “eSO

99













«

Handbookproposed challenges 2021

Removal of windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windows offer someprivacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles come factory fitted with tinted glass

| feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay anyattention to theactivities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

The non-allowance of window tinting‘is completely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general request for information a on

we

oO”

€CTV screens to be made compulsory toall CCTVin vehicles:

To detercrimesin vehicles(a visual deterrent) ov

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide boroughcouncil database on revoked drivers;

Tostop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

=

Date: zz—\o72s“

Name; QGCAAN CeASE

Ph/Hackney number OkH2SD

100











Statementof facts for Handbook review

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

Cost of replacementglass

Vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customers who would prefer privacy

Majority of cars are built with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto beat fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsoryto all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles

Drivers are not awarethat CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: 5/10 2).

Company: ZO"

Name: CHeaicRust

PH/Hackney number: ,; ,
HD Io! ©:

101







Statement offacts for Handbook review

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

Cost of replacementglass

Vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customers who would preferprivacy

Majority of cars are built with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by councilorpolice:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general requestfor information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles

Drivers are not awarethat CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banned drivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: G -\O- Q\

Company: 200 mM

Name: x LAGU Ss MO(AT \N

PH/Hackney number: AD SO2°A\

102







Statement of facts for Handbook review

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

Cost of replacementglass

Vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customers who would prefer privacy

Majority of cars are built with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto be atfault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsoryto all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide boroughcouncil database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granteda licence in another borough.

Dates OT-\0-2oZ |

Company: 2c

Name) CM LODGE

PH/Hackney number: /iATE WSO - LOLS

103







Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

| feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windows offer someprivacy.

Cost of replacement glass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: theofa

Company: ALCPrand

Name: cl erQ_ in ALE

Ph/Haekneynumber 70 Ok

104







Handbookproposed challenges 2021

Removal of windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windows offer someprivacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles come factory fitted with tinted glass

| feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay anyattention to the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.
eessre

The non-allowance ofwindow tinting is completely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just ageneral requestfor information

’

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not,aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.
—

Date: ifiof>/

Company: AG2On)

Name: Cli AL_ Yi ARERR

Ph/Hackneynumber 7OO°L

105







Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

| feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windows offer someprivacy.

Cost of replacementglass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriver is found not to be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory toall CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide boroughcouncil database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: es, \o sy)

Company: ApPow]

Name: MA CORY
(/Paphackney number 5% [| O

106







Handbookproposed challenges 2021

Removal of window tint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles come factory fitted with tinted glass

1 feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay anyattentionto the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

The non-allowanceofwindowtintingis completely unnecessary.

CCTV requestsbe paid by council or police: fo i

Whendriveris found notto be at fault é

f a fr f po

Oris just a general request for.information i fo J
Z fr Va f

ge ° o po . /

Pd fo PY ; yi f

CCTV screens to be made compulsory toall CCTVin vehicles: i /

fi /
To detercrimesinvehicles(a visual deterrent) Z /

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banneddrivers inva boroughfrom being granted a licence in anotherborough.

Date: O*¥)0. Daf

Company: AePowe (

Name: SAY CLOCY

(Ceryackney number “% 4 {oO

107







Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

| feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

Cost of replacementglass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by councilorpolice:

Whendriveris found not to be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: ob | lO 202)

Company: ARRou} TMHXKis

Name DAVID, MANGA
Ph/Hackney number PDt L-S&

 

108















Handbookproposed challenges 2021

Removal of windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

1 feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay any attention to theactivities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

The non-allowanceof windowtinting is corfipletely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general requestfor information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory toall CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stopbanneddrivers in a borough from being granteda licence in another borough.

eectininiercimeinnmeane een —

pate: O6[io[| toe!
Company: JVBPow TACs
Name: DANIID MANGA
Ph/Hackney number pp a LSE

 

109















Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

1 feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

Cost of replacementglass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general requestfor information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: +} - pote

Company: f}Cow

Name: DAVID Pex

Ph/Hackney number PpDd Fs! v

110













Handbook proposed challenges 2021

Removal of windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

| feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay any attention to the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

The non-allowance of window tinting is completely unnécessary.

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriver isfound not to beatfault
s

7

Oris justa’general requestfor information
i i

f

CCTV screens to be made compilsory to all CCTV in vehicles: f

To detercrimesin vehicles‘(a visual deterrent)

. “ : .
Drivers are not awarethat CCTV is operational

4

po ,JO if
op ~

J o
Zo

. * A > fr .

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;
fe geji iF

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from-being granted licence in another borough.
¥,

Date: Zt -C

Company: iH2(Ce WU

Name: Y) Wu Do PECK

Ph/Hackney number (7 {_)F< | oT

fi(or

111













*

Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

| feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

Cost of replacement glass fk YOC-00

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council orpolice:

Whendriveris found not to be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide boroughcouncil database on revoked drivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: ef vol a1

Company AR RAL)D

Name: SAVID LickiwSon

Ph/Hackney number (A ~/ £ oO

112







 

Handbookproposed challenges 2021

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

| feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay any attention to the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.
‘eo

The non-allowance of windowtinting is completely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsoryto all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not awarethat CCTV is operational

Nationwide boroughcouncil database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banned drivers in a borough from being granteda licence in another borough.

setmeanencnas

Date: Q fie [ Zi

Company: AR Roti»

Names NAVIN Loinkinson

Ph/Hackneynumber PS V/& o

113







Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

| feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windows offer someprivacy.

Cost of replacement glass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by councilor police:

Whendriveris found notto beatfault

Oris just a general requestfor information

CCTV screens to be made compulsoryto all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide boroughcouncil database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: onl ite) lay

Company: Zaom\

Name: Eiucy Reancey

Ph/Hackney number 15

114







Statementof facts for Handbook review

Removal of windowtint rule from handbook:

Cost of replacementglass

Vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customers who would preferprivacy

Majority of cars are built with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council orpolice:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles

Drivers are not awarethat CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: CD G \os\ ZA\

Company: \PrnXvaa2_ ch>

Name: C—VV\Vr WARC Ce

PH/Hackney number: (>DFG2=G

115









Jo

Handbookproposedchallenges 2021

Removal of windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

| feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay anyattention to the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

The non-allowance of windowtinting is completely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

When driver.is found not to be at fault

Oris justa general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsoryto all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

4a

Date) C>G \o@ =\ a\

Company: PXyvut

Name: GoW AY WARKCe

Ph/Hackney number e D=Q26

116







Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

1 feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

Cost of replacementglass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by councilor police:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsoryto all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: “) | 10/2)

Company: “7OOM

Name: CAC] (S07eG

Ph/Hackney number rP\\ ZOO |

fo bd

117













Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

Removal of window tint rule from handbook:

I feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

Cost of replacementglass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsoryto all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: pbholn

Company: AdAaev CHUS

Name: @4”0Y fr /LlCS

Ph/Hackney number “7S 39

118







Handbookproposedchallenges 2021

Removal of window tint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

| feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay any attention to the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

The non-allowance of windowtinting is completely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paid by councilor police:

Whendriveris found not to be at fault

Oris just a general- requestfor information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles(a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted licence in another borough.

Date: 0% [10 /2)

Aner CHA”NS
Company:

Name: (OY ices

Ph/Hackney number 75 % o

119







Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

Removalof window tint rule from handbook:

| feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windows offer someprivacy.

Cost of replacementglass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not awarethat CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: 6fie/2]

Company: Anan)

Name: C,ha

Ph/Hackney number JO ys g

120







Handbookproposed challenges 2021

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makes it very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

| feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay any attention to the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

Thenon--allowance of window tinting is completely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto beat fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granteda licence in another borough.

Date:Zt of|of

Company:jpecs

Name:C

Ph/HackneyFon “7E>“Q

121







Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

| feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windows offer someprivacy.

Cost of replacementglass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsoryto all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted licence in another borough.

Date: 6 -\O = we, ,

company: FYYOW ~TA-F\
Name: (t Se HA S

Ph/Hackney number Hv) CBO

122







Handbookproposed challenges 2021

Removal of windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makes it very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

| feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay any attention to the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

The nexallowance of window tinting is completely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paid bycouncil or police:

Whendriveris found‘hot to be at fault

Oris justa general request for information

5Y

CIV screens to be made compulsorytoall CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

Tostop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

vate: (5 a \O7a Pa \ \

Company: Avraw 1h+\

Name: Cr SY Pha S

Ph/Hackney number EAU Ge

123







Handbookproposed challenges 2021

Removalof window tint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

| feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay any attention to the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

The non-allowance of windowtinting is completely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto beat fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

pate: o7/ l0/toz(

Company: Arvo Taxi Grovp

name Goenwn UPS EY
Ph/Hackney number 7 3 wa ?

124







Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

Removalof window tint rule from handbook:

| feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

Cost of replacement glass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found not to be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To detercrimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: 6/" / L

Company: Povey)

name, Cusvtlh
Ph/Hackney number PO F004

125







Handbook proposed challenges 2021

Removal of window tint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

| feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay anyattentionto the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

The non-allowance of window tinting is completely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paidby Council or police:

Whendriveris foundnotto beat fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsoryto all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted:a licence in another borough.

me G/U
Company: _Accow

Name: —\, Cy \ vt

Ph/Hackney number P' 7] 00 yy

126











Statementof facts for Handbook review

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

Cost of replacementglass

Vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customers who would preferprivacy

Majority of cars are built with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by councilor police:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: F/lefe

. Zoom / » A.W
Company: J A aly

Name:

PH/Hackney number:? 62 ¢ q

127









Statementof facts for Handbook review

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

Cost of replacementglass

Vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customers who would prefer privacy

Majority of cars are built with tinted glass

CCTV requests bepaid by councilor police:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsoryto all CCTVin vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banned drivers in a borough from being granteda licence in another borough.

Date! & 10 202)
Company: Boom

Name: WD MCCARDHUAH

#AB/Hackneynumberr Os

 
128













Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

1 feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

Cost of replacementglass

It makes it very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto beatfault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banned drivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: Jie},

Company: Y)4oW/ .

Name: OchaWuAm \

Ph/Hackney number “724h

129







Handbook proposed challenges 2021

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer some privacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

1 feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay anyattention to the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

“The1ron-allowancé of windowtinting is completely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just’a general request for information

“ CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimes in vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banned drivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: a Iv | 2

Company: AANA

Name: Touw WhLiai

Ph/Hackney number a iY

130







Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

| feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

Cost of replacementglass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found not to be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimes in vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: € fro] cA

Company: PSG

Name: Lesh Gos

Ph/Hackrey-number “*

131







Handbookproposed challenges 2021

Removal of windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

1 feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay any attention to the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

The non-allowance of window tinting is completely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

_/Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screensto be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivérs are not aware that CCTV is operational
7

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;
A

To stop banned_drivers in a borough from being granteda licence in another borough.

Date: C/o| c\

Company: ATE

Name: las COD

Ph/HeekneynumberAO

132







Handbook review objections/suggestions amended

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

| feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

Cost of replacementglass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory toall CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide boroughcouncil database on revoked drivers;

To stop banned drivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: b-lo-Z!

Company: ARQao TA4\

Name: pr. yReaWw-vL—}4 b

Ph/Hackney number PD 7/64

133







Handbookproposed challenges 2021

Removal of windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

| feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay anyattention to the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

‘Thenon-allowance of window tinting is completely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriver is found notto beat fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

' Nationwide boroughcouncil database on revoked drivers;

To stop banned driversina borough from being granteda licence in another borough.

feeeesccor tsar

Date: G-le- DL)

Company: 2% Row Tpd

Name: WA. |AEAW-VL-WA#

Ph/Hackney number P O11 9%

134







Handbookproposed challenges 2021

Removal of windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windows offer someprivacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

1 feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay any attentionto the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

The non-allowanceof windowtinting is completely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto beat fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory toall CCTV in vehicles:

To detercrimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banned drivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Dates OSOGT? |

Company: AkPeQaw CARS

Name: UARK FoDER

Ph/Hackney number 72% 4

135







Statementof facts for Handbook review

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

Cost of replacementglass

Vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customers who would preferprivacy

Majority of cars are built with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by councilor police:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsoryto all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: 7 ie] ai

Company: 2saa

Name: Made Nin) a AA

-PH/Hackney number: 24}

136







Statementof facts for Handbook review

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

Cost of replacementglass

Vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customers who would prefer privacy

Majority of cars are built with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found not to be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsoryto all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: O5.A4 . 2024

Company: AR ROW

Name: MieosLav illiev

PH/Hackney number:

137





Statementof facts for Handbook review

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

Cost of replacementglass

Vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customers who would prefer privacy

Majority of cars are built with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by councilor police:

Whendriveris found not to be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Dates W-lo D {

Company: jayertern)

Name: (te. ft:(aes)

PH/Hackney number:

TE

138







Handbook proposed challenges 2021

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

| feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay anyattention to the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

“The non-allowanceof window tinting is completely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto be atfault

Or is just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsoryto all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from beinggranted a licence in another borough.

Date: lo ~ LG. 2

Company: WIEANWNS

Name: te (1 -iCASRSAN

Ph/Hackney number

ley |

139







Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

| feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

Cost of replacement glass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto beatfault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles(a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: joj2 I

Company: Arod:

Name: WN - [tegndld

Ph/Hackneynumber 9 § S9

140







Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

| feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windows offer someprivacy.

Cost of replacementglass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council orpolice:

Whendriveris found not to be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To detercrimesin vehicles(a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: OG. ‘Oo

Company:

me” SaveLosaPh/Hackney number Z| 2

141







Handbook proposed challenges 2021

Removal of windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

1 feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay anyattention to the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

The non-allowance of window tinting is completely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paid by council orpolice:

Whendriver is foured notto beatfault

Oris just a general requestfor information

/
fe

4

CCTV screens to be made compulsory toall CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: Oe. /OOY

‘om Borate1s
Ph/Hackney number 7 | 4 y

142







Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

| feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windows offer someprivacy.

Cost of replacementglass

It makes it very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by councilor police:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsoryto all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide boroughcouncil database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banned drivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: \-~io- VU

Company: 20°

Name: Q. Siew

Ph/Hackney number SO\S

143







Handbook review objections/suggestions amended

Removalof window tint rule from handbook:

1 feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

Cost of replacementglass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council orpolice:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general requestfor information

CCTV screens to be made compulsorytoall CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banned drivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: PF- 10-7 \

Company: “=7c><> (\“.

Name: PALL. pick

Ph/Hackney number | J) SQ}| uo]

f

144











Handbookproposed challenges 2021

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customers is that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

1 feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay anyattention to the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

The non-allowance of windowtinting is completely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To detercrimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: OF/ |07 ZI

Company: firca Tax: GrouP

Name: Pans WE OWNmacy

Ph/Hackney number PL J G 4O

145







Statementof facts for Handbook review

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

Cost of replacementglass

Vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customers who would prefer privacy

Majority of cars are built with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found not to be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsoryto all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide boroughcouncil database on revoked drivers;

To stop banned drivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

ate, Gf10/21
Company: 77>0M

Name: Piaip Heved
PH/Hackney number: Hnvpinery” PLETE ||

146







Statement offacts for Handbook review

Removal of windowtint rule from handbook:

Cost of replacementglass

Vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customers who would prefer privacy

Majority of cars are built with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council orpolice:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsoryto all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide boroughcouncil database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: 6- 10 ~ 3 |

Company: 2govt
Name: P40PE
B/Hackney number: S Lt

147













Statementof facts for Handbook review

Removalof window tint rule from handbook:

Cost of replacement glass

Vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customers who would prefer privacy

Majority of cars are built with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council orpolice:

Whendriveris found notto beat fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsoryto all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimes in vehicles

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide boroughcouncil database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: b- io = |

Company: “Dom

Name: D uyADDuy

-PH/Hackney number: |

148







|S!
Handbook review objections/suggestions amended

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

1 feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

Cost of replacementglass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriver is found not to be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banned drivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: 6/10 [ui

Company: CO (/

Name: Ain WVIKKMAE -ESHUTHY

Ph/Hackney number
141)

149







VV
)

Handbookproposed challenges 2021

Removal of windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

1 feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay any attention to the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

The non-allowanee of witdow tinting is completely arfjecessary:

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto beat fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

_ Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddriversin a borough from beinggranted a licence in another borough.

owe 6/10 /2
Company: ARO CARS

Name: Larain IVKKHAH -ESHGH/
Ph/Hackney number

CAI!

150







Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

| feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

Cost of replacementglass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council orpolice:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles(a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide boroughcouncil database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Dates O6-10-202I

Company: ARROW UARS

Name: REcANDHAS SAQinuLoVAS

Ph/Hackney number

151





Ly \s

Handbook proposed challenges 2021

Removal of windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makes it very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

| feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay anyattention to the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

Thenon-allowance of window tinting is completely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paid by councilor police:

Whendriveris found notto beat fault

Oris just ageneral request for information

“CCTV screens to be made compulsory toall CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimes in vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date. OG~ 10-202)

Company: ARROW CARS

Name: 20CAUDHS SAIBULZOVAS

Ph/Hackney number

152





Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

Removalof window tint rule from handbook:

| feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

Cost of replacementglass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto beat fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: ve[io] 2!

Company: anos
f

i _. / ?

Name: (CIASTIAvo fescyiun /

Ph/Hackney number ~/ a b S§

153









Handbookproposed challenges 2021

Removal of windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makes it very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

| feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay anyattention to the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

‘The non-allowance of windowtinting is completely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto beat fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted licence in another borough.

nate: po] 10/2!

Company: DAN
G |

Name: SEDASTIFWO foscdiwv |

Ph/Hackney number Tz. 6 S

154







Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

Removal of windowtint rule from handbook:

| feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

Cost of replacementglass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by councilor police:

Whendriveris found not to be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide boroughcouncil database on revoked drivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: Gock CaZl(

Company: fA Zar
Name: Sion LUCET

Ph/Hackney number 7 / Ce

155







Handbookproposed challenges 2021

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer some privacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

1 feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay anyattention to the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

“Thetnoerallowanee of ainda tinting is completely4

CCTV requests be paidby councilor police:

Whendriveris fourtd not to be at fault

Or is just a gefieral request for information

fo

CCTV screensto be made compulsorytoall CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stopbanneddrivers in a borough frombeing granted a licence in another borough.”

Date: OC Ocke Co2t(

Company: /\ (2 (2OW)

Name: Swoon aN eVCX

Ph/Hackney number 7 ¢ ag

156







Statementof facts for Handbook review

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

Cost of replacementglass

Vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customers who would prefer privacy

Majority of cars are built with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by council or police:

Whendriveris found notto be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsoryto all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide boroughcouncil database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: & lio lao2\%

Company: Boon

Name: STEecenWAmac 6

PH/Hackney number: 33

157







Handbookreview objections/suggestions amended

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

| feel it is unnecessary that vehicles already have CCTV in vehicles

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

Cost of replacementglass

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

CCTV requests be paid by councilor police:

Whendriveris found not to be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: © lo Ql

Company: MLS

Name: S Proelh

Ph/Hackney number “7-3 5~&

158







Handbook proposed challenges 2021

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

| feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay any attention to the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

- Thenon-allowance of windowtinting iscompletely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paid by councilorpolice:

Whendriveris found not to be at fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banned drivers ina borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

pecan eee

Date: 6G lo Zi

Company: NZLS OQ

Name: OIeve Ror

Ph/Hackney number £3 vy

159







Handbook proposed challenges 2021

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

| feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay any attention to the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

The non-allowance of windowtinting is completely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paid by councilor police:

Whendriveris found notto beat fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsoryto all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revoked drivers;

To stop banneddrivers in a borough from being granteda licence in another borough.

Date: —_ LO ws ‘7. \

Company: WAGLow
Name: \/ Vi w/ Cw vn \? gu

Ph/Hackney number W7 oy \

160







Handbookproposed challenges 2021

Removalof windowtint rule from handbook:

Feedback from wheelchair customersis that tinted windowsoffer someprivacy.

It makesit very problematic to purchase as a majority of vehicles comefactory fitted with tinted glass

1 feel the reasoning wasandis flawed. The absolute vast majority of vehicles with factory fitted tints

allow sufficient light and therefore sight into the vehicle. The flaw lending that 99.9% of the public are

not going to pay any attention to the activities in the vehicle. You add the fact that the vehicle has CCTV

for the deterrent factor/evidential factor.

The non-allowance of window tinting is completely unnecessary.

CCTV requests be paid by councilor police:

Whendriveris found notto beat fault

Oris just a general request for information

CCTV screens to be made compulsory to all CCTV in vehicles:

To deter crimesin vehicles (a visual deterrent)

Drivers are not aware that CCTV is operational

Nationwide borough council database on revokeddrivers;

To stop banned drivers in a borough from being granted a licence in another borough.

Date: 4 jo-]2!

Company: Aco

Name: Ser é

Ph/Hackneynumber— 26 oD ,

161







f

-*
a

ae :
SemNet aS. evi a TentsNhe ADA AS Save as od

Dear Theresa

Re: Taxi Handbook

Please may| kindly ask you to draw your attention to the revised Handbook,

oneof my biggest concernsis the rule of “tinted windows”. It's almost

impossible to find a new or replacement taxi/PH vehicle, and will only get

worseas so few brand newcarsarefitted without rear tinted glass. This policy

is leading to PH drivers going to other councils to obtain their licence. This

leads to WBC to notonly losing control of supervision of the driver but also

much needed revenue to WBC.

The second area of concern to meis the complexed knowledgetest, whichis

much more “taxing” (excuse the pun), then neighbouring councils whichis

leading to new PH drivers just by-passing WBC

Licensing all together.

| would like to point out all the Worthing Private Hire Companies have

excellent PDA dispatch systems which have installed on them Google Maps,

whichgive the driver the instant route to the destination they need, so

reducing a level the knowledge they need to start a new career as a PH driver.

The lack of taxi/PH cars in the town is becominga real worry especially at

weekendsandlate at night, as the night time economyrecovers from Covid a

long wait for a taxi ride home could becomea safety issue for the public.

| recommendthese changeswill hopefully help the trade recruit new drivers

and youngerdrivers to help out at night and to bring the average age ofdrivers

downto ensurethesurvival of Worthing Taxi services.

Your sincerely

Chris Martin

Hackney Driver & Zoom

162





PD 7067: Submission — Janet Jacks. Flat 1, 11, Moat Way. BN12 4DR.

Handbookconsultation October 2021.

e Tinted windows. I wish to object to the restrictions currently imposed, which
I know stand at 55%, which seemsan arbitrary number. As most cars are

now manufactured with tinted windowsthis makes purchasing any vehicle

almost impossible,it is just not realistic and against other licensing authorities
these incursions seem unfair and draconian andI fail to understand the original
justification for such a policy.

e Size of vehicles, that is it would be most helpfulto be able to purchase smaller
vehicles, such as is allowed with by otherlicensing authorities. The cost of

purchasing is now soill affordable thatit is all simply unviable, not to mention
the cost of fuel when these large vehicles are so expensive to run. And I urge

the licensing authority to think outside the box. Perhaps allowing two

passengercars, which are ecological friendly, & cheaperto run.

WhatI see is an industry that is dying, not unlike the issues facing lorry drivers. The
regulations inhibit everything, the costs so exorbitantthereis little motivation to
continue or begin.

The industry desperately needs help to survive, not incursions and hurdles makingit
impossible to purchase without assuming a hugerisk in case your vehicle might fail
because the windowsare too dark. Not to mention the huge cost ofCCTV imposed.

If I was contemplating going into the industry now I simply wouldn’t bother. It was
bad enoughten years ago whenI started but now how can onelookat this and believe
it is remotely viable.
The licensing authority can either support or destroy, if you wish to be detrimental
then you will continue on the same wayas before and not change anything, then

everyonewill be surprised whenthe industry virtually disappears and not one can get
taxis anymore.

Signed,
Janet Jacks.

 Adur & Worthing Councils |
Licensing Unit
RECFIVED

07 OCT wz

Initials

 

163









   

  

bhcta-worhting-25102021 - Page 1 of 2
“amr Teething Councils |

Worthing Borough Council RECEIER.

Licensing Department 25 OCT 202 |

October 25 2021

Initials.
| write with reference to the consultation on the Worthing Hackney Carriage and Private Hire
Handbook

| have already had constructive communications with Adur & Worthing Licensing Officer Teresa
Bowley on an issue which needs to be addressed with regards to the many Adur hackneycarriages
that are predominantly working outside of the AdurDistrict Licensing Authority and in Brighton &

Hove.

At this point | would to clarify that we have not had any reports of Worthing hackneycarriages acting
in the same way.

Underlegislation a hackneycarriage maycarry outprivate hire work in anotherlicensing area but of
course not act as a hackneycarriage in the wayof undertaking street hirings and using ranks which

is strictly limited to working in such a wayin its respective licensing area. Undertaking suchprivate

hire work ‘out of area’ is perfectly legal and has beena part of natural cross borderhiring for many
years.

However,overthe last few years since Uber has been operating in the UK hackney carriages has
been encouragedto work ‘out of area’ under Uber. Forclarification a hackney carriage cannot work
for Uberwithin its own licensing area on the basis that the council controls hackney carriages

charging rates. This modelof the Uber fare charging is based on ‘Surge Pricing’ which may be upto
four times the standard rate as and when Uber decides. However whena hackneycarriage leaves

its respective licensing area there is no council controlof fares.

Brighton & Hove Local Issues

In respect of Brighton & Hove the area was saturated with Lewes hackneycarriages predominantly
working within the Brighton & Hove area out of sight of Lewes Licensing Control.

This meant that the area of Lewes was very much deprived of hackneycarriages as the vast
majority was predominantly working in Brighton & Hove.

The sameapplied to Mid-Sussex hackney carriages that were again working out of sight of Mid
Sussex Licensing Control.

Underthese circumstances wefoundthat such hackneycarriages were flaunting respective
licensing conditions such as either removing rear plates, door signs and roof signs. This didn’t help

that both Lewes and Mid Sussexlicensing allowed magnetic rear plates and door signs. However,in
respect of Lewesthe use of magnetic door signs has now stopped andarebeing replaced with

permanentones.

Because of overwhelming reports we presented to LewesDistrict council of its hackney carriages
neverreturning to the Lewes area wetook the opportunity to take part in the revision of its hackney
carriage and private hire conditions of licence two years ago and recommendedthatit adopted an
‘Intended Use Policy for its hackney carriages and used the conditions of Brighton & Hove as an
example.

Therevision resulted in the following condition being applied to the Lewes DC hackneycarriage
vehicle licences:

164



bhcta-worhting-25102021 Page 2 of 2

Lewes DC Licensing Committee Meeting - February 2019

“The introduction of Intended Use (Hackney Carriagesonly). It is believed that some drivers who
have applied for a licence recently may not be predominantly working within the district. In order that
the Council mayretain local control over the hackney carriagesit licenses, applicants will be asked

as part of the application and renewal process which area they intendto entirely or predominantly

operate from for the purposesoffulfilling pre-bookedhiring’s. It will be incumbent upon the applicant

to demonstrate to the Council’s satisfaction that they intend to ply for hire predominantly within the

District.

Consequently the following conditions of licensing for Lewes DC hackney carriages was adopted:

Intended Use (Hackney Carriages only)

“A hackneycarriage vehicle licensed by onelocal authority can be usedto fulfil prebooked hirings on behalf
ofprivate hire operators licensed by anotherlocal authority. In order that the Council mayretain local
control over the hackneycarriagesit licenses, applicants will be asked as part of the application process
which area they intend to entirely or predominantly operate from for the purposesoffulfilling pre-booked
hirings. It will be incumbent upon the applicant to demonstrate to the Council's satisfaction that they intenc
to ply for hire predominantly within the District.”

If the applicant indicates that they will not predominately work within the District the application will normally
be refused. This section is not intendedto act as a restraint of trade since applicants may make
applications to any local authority in which area they intendto ply for hire

Eastbourne District Council then introduced the same condition as well as Mid Sussex District Council.

Brighton & Hove City Council has had the requirementfor an ‘Intended Use’ declaration on the hackney
carriage vehicle licence application for a numberof years but at the last revision of conditions of licensing
this was specifically put in place in what werefer to as the ‘Blue Bookof conditions of Licensing’.

Summary

AdurDistrict Council has been asked to considerthe introduction of a specific ‘Intended Use Policy’forits
hackneycarriages to ensure that these vehicles do not predominantly work outside of the AdurDistrict
Licensing Authority Area as primarily this means these vehicles are working beyond the control of Adur
Licensing Enforcement Officers.

This ensures that such hackney carriages predominantly serve the streets and ranks of the area of Adur
Licensing Authority area.

This also ensuresthat whilst an Adur hackney carriage can continueto carry out natural cross border
hirings that it cannot predominantly work outside of the Adur Licensing Authority area.

Stressing again that whilst we have not had anyreports of Worthing hackneys predominantly working in
Brighton & Hove the Worthing Licensing Committee maylike to consider introducing an ‘Intended Use

Policy’ for Worthing hackneycarriagesin line with Brighton & Hove, Mid Sussex, Lewes & Eastbourne &
hopefully Adur District Council.

Andrew Peters
Secretary

Brighton & Hove Cab Trade Association

bhcta.co.uk - info@bhcta.co.uk

BMHTA,
Brighton & Hove Cab Trade Association

©} facebook. com‘groups/bheabta Wiorlelad Teoet her

YF @cabsbrighton . ‘

165





AdurDistrict Council and Worthing Borough Council Taxi and Private Hire
Handbook Consultation
1 message

Brian Butcher <Brian.Butcher@rnib.org.uk> 26 October 2021 at 18:20
To: "taxi.licensing@adur-worthing.gov.uk" <taxi.licensing@adur-worthing.gov.uk>

Cc: Roz Naylor-Smith <Roz@sightsupportworthing.org.uk>, Maureen 4SIGHT <maureeneej@gmail.com>

Dearlicensing team,
Please find below feedback on the above consultation from the RNIB & Guide Dogs.

4. Include in the mandatory disability training for all taxi & phv drivers specific training on how to guide passengers
with sight loss.

2. Move the mandatory training from 3 years to every 2 years.
3. Ensure that refusal of assistance dog ownersis highlighted more prominently & ensure thatall drivers are aware
that it may result in them losing their license if they do refuse.
4. Ensure all communications on or within the taxi are accessible to people with sight loss.

a. The numberof the taxi in large numbersin a heavily contrasted print on the rear doors & internally on the back of
the front seats.

b. CCTV recordings for every journey made mandatory. Protecting both passenger& driver.

5. For the widerdisability community we'd like to see a minimum % of WAV’sin the licensing policy & for the council
to adopt a policy of not issuing any furtherlicenses until that percentage has been met.

If you require anyfurther detail or explanation on any of the above then please don’t hesitate to get in touch.

Manythanks.

Brian

Brian Butcher

Community Connection Lead Volunteer,

London & The South East

RNIB(Royal National Institute of Blind People)

Campaign Volunteer, Guide Dogs.

NHS Vaccination champion.

Trustee @ Sight Support Worthing.

NB:This is a volunteer role & am available M,T & Wedsonly.

m: 07500608008
e: Brian.Butcher@rnib.org.uk
w: rnib.org.uk Pace

Adur & Worthing Gounelle
Licensing Unit
RECEIVED

26 OCT 2021
        
  
 
 
wana seteeneeeceensccecenueee.. Initials

 

166













Aeoendtx &,?

Adurand Worthing Borough Council Taxi and Private Hire consultation
1 message

Karishma Shah <Karishma.Shah@guidedogs.org.uk> 26 October 2021 at 18:40
To: "taxi.licensing@adur-worthing.gov.uk" <taxi.licensing@adur-worthing.gov.uk>

Dear Sir/Madam,

Please find attached consultation response from Guide Dogs for The Blind

 

 

    

 

Association.

Bee Unit

Thanks -ECEIVED |

26 OCT 202/

Karishma Shah eneatttenetattteeceeeee inifiate'

Regional Policy and Campaigns Manager (South East)

| use She/Her pronouns

Guide Dogsfor the Blind Association

M: 07554 587 304

E: Karishma.shah@guidedogs.org.uk

W: www.guidedogs.org.uk

®e Guide ey7®

@& Dogs  
MCWtM alla cel ale
people with sight loss
live the life they choose.

guidedogs.org.uk

167









e®e Guide
@° Dogs
Guide Dogs response to AdurDistrict Council and Worthing Borough
Council Taxi and Private Hire Handbook Consultation (September
2021)

12 October 2021

About Guide Dogs:
Guide Dogs provides mobility services to increase the independence of
people with sight loss in the UK. Alongside our mobility, work we

campaign to break down physical and legal barriers to enable people
with sight loss to get around on their own terms.

Introductions:
There are an estimated 35,400 people living with sight loss in the west
sussex area (RNIB, 2019).
Taxis and private hire vehicles (PHVs) and the door to doorservice

they provide are essential for disabled people. They are particularly
important for the independenceof blind and partially sighted people,
whoare unable to drive, and often face barriers when using public

transport. However, accessing taxis and PHVs can be a majorchallenge
for assistance dog owners. A 2019 Guide Dogs survey found that 73% of

assistance dog owners who have experienced an access refusal were

refused by a taxi or PHV driver in a one year period - despite this being
a criminal offence under the Equality Act 2010. Such access refusals

can havea significant impact on assistance dog owners’lives, leading
to feelings of anger and embarrassment and a loss of confidence and

independence.

As guide dog ownersreport:

e “Each refusal is crushing, confidence shattering, rejecting, and
traumatic. | always feel that | don't want to go out after - but
work dictates | must.” Guide dog owner, Stevenage

e “l was left on my ownat the side of the road in the dark. | am
deaf and unable to phone for help and it made mefeel very
vulnerable. It makes me feel afraid to go out.” Assistance dog
owner

168



Key recommendations:

® Highlighting the law: We note that the policy (4.5) states thatall
drivers are under a duty to comply with the Equality Act 2010 to
carry, free of charge, any assistance dog. We advise highlighting

within the policy that this is a legal requirement under the

Equality Act 2010 and failure to do so is a criminal offence.

Zero tolerance: The policy should state that Adur and Worthing
Borough Councils will use its best endeavours to investigate all

reported violations of the Act in a timely manner with a view to

pursuing a conviction.

Test for medical exemption certificate: In 5.6 The policy should
be more specific and state that a medical exemption certificate
for carrying assistance dogs will only be issued when authorised
by a medical practitioner and accompanied by medical evidence,

such as a bloodtest, a skin prick test or clinical history.
The medical exemption certificates should be accompanied by
features distinguishable to vision-impaired passengers, such as an
embossedor raised ‘E’.

Sample purchasing: The policy should state that the Borough
Councils will work together in conjunction with assistance dog
owners to ensure that licensing requirements are being complied

with by various means such as, but not limited to, test purchases
to ensure that licensing requirements are being complied with.

Disability equality training: We welcomethe inclusion (5.16)

that all new applicants will be required to undertake disability

awareness and equality training including awareness of the

Equality Act 2010. We feel that the policy should be clear on
how this training will be delivered and refresher training will be

requirement within a reasonable period.

Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) Guide Dogs welcome any
amendmentsto this policy that will allow the Borough Council to
take further steps in ensuring the safety of passengers, including

children and vulnerable adults.

CCTV: Weare of the view that CCTV has great benefits in
protecting both drivers and passengers from harm, inappropriate

behaviour, abuse and poor customer service. We would ask that a
requirement for audio recording is included. This amendment

would help to resolve disputes by providing important evidence.
For example, if an assistance dog owner makesan allegation of
being refused carriage by a driver, due to the person travelling

with an assistance dog. As part of the proposed disability equality

2
169



training, we would ask that drivers are reminded to makeblind
and partially sighted passengers aware that CCTVis in operation
as they are unlikely to see signs notifying them ofthis.

Highlighting obligations under Equality Act 2010 in respect of
Assistance Dogs

The consequencesof delayed travel, combined with the emotional
impact of facing discrimination and confrontation whentrying to carry

out everydayactivities, take a significant toll on assistance dog

owners. Apart from feelings of anger and embarrassment, refusals can
undermine the independencethat assistance dogs bring to their

owners. Assistance dog ownersalso reported that the stress of refusals
has had a detrimental impact on their mental health and on whether

they feel able to leave the house. This also has a negative impact on
their ability to access work and other opportunities. As guide dog

owners report:

e “l was very upset, it was dark, raining and 10pm at night. | was
scared. | avoid evening invites, as | worry about getting home.|
lose out on the chanceof socialising with friends, which is bad,

as | have no family.” Guide dog owner, Rochester

e “lI used to have a very tough two-hour commuteto work. The taxi
part of the journey wasthe shortest bit travel wise, but it always
ended up being the bit that held me up the most because I was
having to spend time facing drivers who wouldn’t take me with
my dog.... It’s good that my contract was flexi hours otherwise

I’m sure | would have been sacked for being late all the time- it

happened so often.” Guide dog owner, Daventry

Enforcement

While our survey shows that many assistance dog owners have been
refused access over a one-year period, many of these incidents are not

reported. Indeed, research in 2019 found that only 8% of owners who
had been refused access had taken legal action which resulted in
prosecution. In part, the underreporting is due to challenges of

reporting, especially for people with sight loss. However,it is also due
to disappointmentat the lack of action taken following an access

refusal and the low fines issued.

170



Considering the significant impact an access refusal can have on
assistance dog owners and their communities, it is important that

assistance dog owners know thatall cases of access refusals are viewed
very seriously and are investigated.

As mentioned, it is a criminal offence for any operatoror driver to
refuse to carry assistance dogs. On conviction for such an offence,

drivers can be fined up to £1,000. As failure to carry an assistance dog

is a criminal offence, we recommenda zero-tolerance approach to

enforcement of the Equality Act. We therefore recommendthatitis
clearly stated that failure to carry an assistance dog without the
requisite medical exemption certificate will result in immediate
suspension or revocation ofa driver’s license.

Further, the current conditions do not contain any reference to

prosecution of drivers who refuse a passenger. We also recommend a
zero-tolerance approach to enforcement of the Equality Act in seeking
prosecutions and therefore recommendstating that Basingstoke and

Deane Borough Council will use its best endeavours to investigate all
reported violations of the Equality Act in a timely manner, with a view

to pursuing a conviction.

Wealso recommend that the Borough Council works together in

conjunction with assistance dog owners to ensure that licensing

requirements are being complied with by various means suchas, but

not limited to, test purchases to ensure that licensing requirements

are being complied with.

Medical exemptioncertificates

We believe the policy should specify that in order to apply for a
medical exemption certificate for carrying assistance dogs:

1) this must be authorised by a medical practitioner and
2) be accompanied by medical evidence which demonstrates the

driver’s genuine medical condition that is aggravated by
exposure to dogs, such as a blood test, a skin prick test or
clinical history.

Further, it is often difficult for vision-impaired passengers to identify
the validity of exemption certificates. Currently, it is not permissible

for licensing authorities to issue exemption certificates which
incorporate tactile features, as this would alter the certificate’s

171



prescribed form and renderit invalid. We therefore recommend that
Basingstoke and Dean Council issues exemption certificates that are

accompanied by features distinguishable to vision-impaired passengers,

such as an embossed orraised ‘E’ and a braille marker to
accommodatebothbraille readers and non-braille readers. Guide Dogs
would be happy to supply the Borough Council with tactile exemption
cards.

Disability equality training

As stated above,drivers whorefuse to carry an assistance dog are
committing a criminal offence under the Equality Act 2010. A Guide
Dogs survey found that manytaxi drivers are unawareof their legal

obligations and the impact refusals have on assistance dog owners.

The best wayto addressthis is through disability equality training for
all taxi and PHV drivers.

Therefore, to help reduce the numberof access refusals, it is
important that drivers know their legal obligations and how to best
offer assistance to their customers with vision impairments, including

those travelling with a guide dog.

We recommendthat this training, as well as highlighting a driver’s
legal obligations and disabled people’s rights, should focus on the
concept of people being disabled by society’s barriers and attitudes.It
should highlight the role an organisation and individuals play in the
removal of those barriers, while also including awareness elements
such as customer care, etiquette and appropriate communication.

Manyof the positive experiences disabled people report when using
taxis and PHVs come about following disability equality training.
Councils that have introduced disability equality training report very
positive results with fewer refusals and drivers feeling more confident
in assisting passengers with disabilities.

Contact at Guide Dogs
Karishma Shah - Regional Policy and Campaigns Manager (London &

South)

karishma.shah@guidedogs.org.uk

172







Parish Clerk:

a Carol StephensonSOMPTING =ak... Old School House
wweSomptingorg.uk Harriet Johnson Centre, Loose Lane

PARISH COUNCIL see wis086
Tel: 07813484857

Email: clerk@sompting.org.uk

 

 

 

October 2021

DearSir

Adur and Worthing Taxi and Private Hire Consultation.

Formal response from Sompting Parish Council.

Most changesin the main text appear to be measures to update the Safeguarding

provisions. There are no suggested changesto these sections.

However, in Appendix K there are matters that the Council feel require attention:

Appendix K.

Private Hire Operator’s Licence Conditions.

ManyPrivate Hire Companies employoffice staff and Taxi Marshalls who make contact with

Bookers/Passengers and would notbelisted on the records submitted or be subject to DBS

checks with the current wording of the Conditions. Therefore :

e 3.1 Add ‘The nameofanyindividual that is in contact with the Booker or passengers

either electronically, by telephone orin person’.

© 3.9 amend to ‘The operator must provide a monthly register to the Council ofall staff

taking bookings, dispatching vehicles, or in contact with the Booker or passengers

either electronically, by telephoneorin person. All changes mustbenotified

immediately.’

e 3.10 amend to‘All staff taking bookings, dispatching vehicles, or in contact with the

Booker or passengerseither electronically, by telephone or in person. must provide a

basic DBS check on employment and thereafter every 12 months.It is the

responsibility of the operator to ensure compliance.

It is suggested that the following paragraph should be deleted:

e 3.12 The use of a driver who holds a PCVlicence and the use of a public service

vehicle (PSV) such as a minibus to undertake a private hire vehicle booking should

not be permitted as a condition of the private hire vehicle operator's licence without

the informed consentof the booker.

If the intentionis to indicate that a Private Hire Operator can supply a PCVvehicle, providing

the booker/passengers are aware, then the Conditions should indicate that sub- contracting

Sompting Parish Council’s mission: “ To help foster a Sompting community which gives people a
reason to be proud and engagedwith the area wealllive in”

173







to a PCV Operatoris permissible with the Booker/passenger’s permission. However, a

Private Hire Operator whois not familiar with PCV Regulations could follow the proposed

Conditions and use a PCV vehicle against PCV Regulations. In particular, they would need

to be awareofthe following:

« A Private Hire Operator can already sub-contract a PCV Operator to supply a vehicle

and Licensed Driver but cannot use and control a licensed PCV vehicle unless they

are also a Licensed PCV Operator. (Holding a National or International Licence).

* Where a Private Hire Operator also holds a Restricted PCV License, they are only

permitted to carry up to 8 passengers on each journey.

e PCV vehicles cannot undertake shared journeys with passengers who booked

separately. (this would require a Stage Carriage Licence whichis only grantedfor

‘Bus Route’ style regular journeys).

Yoursfaithfully

CSch<NSay

Carol Stephenson Clerk to Sompting Parish Council

Licensing Office

Portland House

Richmond Road

Worthing

BN111HS

174







EX oe , ¥ po wn

06/09/2021 Adur & Worthing Councils Mail - wheelchair friendly cabs eye D

a

Reg (ma il Taxi Licensing <taxi.licensing@adur-worthing.gov.uk>

 

wheelchair friendly cabs
1 message

Thelnsight Team <theinsightteam@adur-worthing.gov.uk> 6 September 2021 at 08:22
To: Taxi Licensing <taxi.licensing@adur-worthing.gov.uk>

Dear worthing council
Please makesure there are more wheelchair friendly cabs on the taxi rank soon orlet the driver
keep there London cabsafter ten years. Twice | waited two hours with none turning up.
From

JamesHazell.

Good morning

Please see commentsreceived on social media

Many thanks

CustomerInsight & Performance Officers

Adur & Worthing Councils
Email: theinsightteam@adur-worthing.gov.uk

Website: www.adur-worthing.gov.uk
Portland House, Richmond Road, Worthing BN11 1HS

HooS

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkdOyUNIA72J5Lb64ItgoX9Fd3duT2eqhqCRpGQxI_TwM9yM5F/u/07ik=913126c90e&view=pt&search=all&per.... 1/1

175





This page is intentionally left blank



  

Statutory Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle 
Standards 

 
 

 

July 2020 

 
 

177



 

   2 
 

Contents 
 
 

Page 
 
1. Introduction .................................................................................................................. 4 

2. Consideration of the Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards ..................... 6 

3. Administering the Licensing Regime ............................................................................ 8 

Licensing polices ..................................................................................................... 8 

Duration of licences ................................................................................................. 9 

Whistleblowing ......................................................................................................... 9 

Consultation at the local level ................................................................................ 10 

Changing licensing policy and requirements ......................................................... 10 

4. Gathering and Sharing Information ............................................................................ 12 

The Disclosure and Barring Service ...................................................................... 12 

The Disclosure and Barring Service Update Service ....................................................... 13 

Common Law Police Disclosure ............................................................................ 13 

Licensee self-reporting .......................................................................................... 13 

Referrals to the Disclosure and Barring Service and the Police ............................ 14 

Working with the Police ......................................................................................... 15 

Sharing licensing information with other licensing authorities ................................ 15 

Multi-agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) ............................................................... 16 

Complaints against licensees ................................................................................ 17 

Overseas convictions ............................................................................................ 17 

5. Decision Making ........................................................................................................ 19 

Administration of the licensing framework ............................................................. 19 

Training decision makers ....................................................................................... 19 

The regulatory structure ........................................................................................ 20 

Fit and proper test ................................................................................................. 21 

Criminal convictions and rehabilitation .................................................................. 21 

6. Driver Licensing ......................................................................................................... 23 

Criminality checks for drivers ................................................................................. 23 

Safeguarding awareness ....................................................................................... 23 

‘County lines’ exploitation ...................................................................................... 24 

Language proficiency ............................................................................................ 25 

178



 

3 
 

7. Vehicle Licensing ....................................................................................................... 26 

Criminality checks for vehicle proprietors .............................................................. 26 

In-vehicle visual and audio recording – CCTV ....................................................... 27 

Stretched Limousines ............................................................................................ 28 

8. Private Hire Vehicle Operator Licensing .................................................................... 29 

Criminality checks for private hire vehicle operators .............................................. 29 

Booking and dispatch staff..................................................................................... 30 

Record keeping ..................................................................................................... 31 

Use of passenger carrying vehicles (PCV) licensed drivers .................................. 31 

9. Enforcing the Licensing Regime ................................................................................ 33 

Joint authorisation of enforcement officers ............................................................ 33 

Setting expectations and monitoring ...................................................................... 33 

Suspension and revocation of driver licences........................................................ 33 

Annex – Assessment of Previous Convictions ................................................................. 35 

Annex – Disclosure and Barring Service information ....................................................... 37 

Annex – CCTV Guidance ................................................................................................. 38 

Annex - Staying Safe: Guidance for Passengers ............................................................. 40 

 

179



 

4 
 

1. Introduction 
 

 There is evidence to support the view that taxis and private hire vehicles are a 
high-risk environment. In terms of risks to passengers, this can be seen in abuse 
and exploitation of children and vulnerable adults facilitated and in some cases 
perpetrated by the trade and the number of sexual crimes reported which involve 
taxi and private hire vehicle drivers. Links between the trade and child sexual 
abuse and exploitation have been established in many areas and other 
investigations continue. Data on reported sexual assaults by taxi and private hire 
vehicle drivers evidence the risk to passengers; data from Greater Manchester 
and Merseyside suggest that, if similar offence patterns are applied across 
England, 623 sexual assaults per year are reported. These figures do not however 
account for the under reporting of crime which is estimated to be as high as 83 
percent in the Crime Survey for England and Wales.  

 The Policing and Crime Act 2017 enables the Secretary of State for Transport to 
issue statutory guidance on exercising taxi and private hire vehicle licensing 
functions to protect children and vulnerable individuals who are over 18 from harm 
when using these services. For the purposes of this document, a child is defined 
as anyone who has not yet reached their 18th birthday; and the term “vulnerable 
individual” has the same meaning as the definition of a ‘vulnerable adult’ for the 
purpose of section 42 of the Care Act 2014, which applies where a local authority 
has reasonable cause to suspect that an adult in its area (whether or not ordinarily 
resident there): 

(a) has needs for care and support (whether or not the authority is meeting 
any of those needs), 

(b) is experiencing, or is at risk of, abuse or neglect, and 

(c) as a result of those needs is unable to protect himself or herself against 
the abuse or neglect or the risk of it. 

 Whilst the focus of the Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards is on 
protecting children and vulnerable adults, all passengers will benefit from the 
recommendations contained in it. There is consensus that common core minimum 
standards are required to regulate better the taxi and private hire vehicle sector, 
and the recommendations in this document are the result of detailed discussion 
with the trade, regulators and safety campaign groups. The Department 
therefore expects these recommendations to be implemented unless there 
is a compelling local reason not to.  

 It should be noted that as policing and criminal justice is not a devolved matter, 
the Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards issued under the Policing 
and Crime Act 2017 will continue to have effect in Wales although responsibility 
for taxi and private hire vehicle policy was devolved to the Welsh Assembly in 
April 2018. Should the Welsh Government introduce legislation to regulate on 
these issues, the standards in this document would, cease to apply.  

180

https://www.whatdotheyknow.com/request/sex_attacks_2
https://www.whatdotheyknow.com/request/taxi_private_hire_related_rapes#incoming-286178
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/articles/sexualoffencesinenglandandwales/yearendingmarch2017#main-points
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/23/section/42/enacted


 

5 
 

 All local authorities and district councils that provide children’s and other types of 
services, including licensing authorities, have a statutory duty to make 
arrangements to ensure that their functions and any services that they contract 
out to others are discharged having regard to the need to safeguard and promote 
the welfare of children. This means that licensing authorities should have in place 
arrangements that reflect the importance of safeguarding and promoting the 
welfare of children. This includes clear whistleblowing procedures, safe 
recruitment practices and clear policies for dealing with allegations against people 
who work with children, as set out in the Working Together to Safeguard Children 
statutory guidance. 

 The Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards reflect the significant 
changes in the industry and lessons learned from experiences in local areas since 
the 2010 version of the Department’s Best Practice Guidance. This includes 
extensive advice on checking the suitability of individuals and operators to be 
licensed; safeguarding children and vulnerable adults; the Immigration Act 2016 
and Common Law Police Disclosure (which replaced the Notifiable Occupations 
Scheme).  

 The standards in this document replace relevant sections of the Best Practice 
Guidance issued by the Department in 2010, where there is a conflict between 
the Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards and the Best Practice 
Guidance the Department issue on taxi and private hire vehicle licensing, the 
standards in this document take precedence.  

181

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/working-together-to-safeguard-children--2


6 

Terminology 

Taxis are referred to in legislation, regulation and common language as 
‘hackney carriages’, ‘black cabs’ and ‘cabs’. The term ‘taxi’ is used throughout 
this document and refers to all such vehicles. Taxis can be hired immediately 
by hailing on the street or at a rank. 

Private hire vehicles include a range of vehicles including minicabs, executive 
cars, chauffeur services, limousines and some school and day centre transport 
services. All private hire vehicle journeys must be pre-booked via a licensed 
private hire vehicle operator and are subject to a ‘triple licensing lock’ i.e. the 
operator fulfilling the booking must use vehicles and drivers licensed by the 
same authority as that which granted its licence. The term ‘private hire vehicle’ 
is used throughout this document to refer to all such vehicles. 

2. Consideration of the Statutory Taxi and Private Hire
Vehicle Standards

 The past failings of licensing regimes must never be repeated. The Department 
has carefully considered the measures contained in the Statutory Taxi and Private 
Hire Vehicle Standards and recommend that these should be put in to practice 
and administered appropriately to mitigate the risk posed to the public. The 
purpose of setting standards is to protect children and vulnerable adults, and by 
extension the wider public, when using taxis and private hire vehicles.  

 The Government set out in the Modern Crime Prevention Strategy the evidence 
that where Government, law enforcement, businesses and the public work 
together on prevention, this can deliver significant and sustained cuts in certain 
crimes. That is good news for victims and communities and it makes clear 
economic sense too. Educating the public on the risks of using unlicensed drivers 
and vehicles, how to identify the licensed trade and appropriate measure to take 
when using these services will protect help all passengers, more information is 
annexed to this document (Annex - Staying safe: guidance for passengers). 

 The Strategy committed to protect children and young people from the risk of child 
sexual abuse and exploitation (CSAE), by working with local authorities to 
introduce rigorous taxi and private hire vehicle licensing regimes. Both the Jay 
and Casey reports on CSAE highlighted examples of taxi/private hire vehicle 
drivers being directly linked to children that were abused, including instances 
when children were picked up from schools, children’s homes or from family 
homes and abused, or sexually exploited. 

 The Casey Report made clear that weak and ineffective arrangements for taxi and 
private hire vehicle licensing had left the children and public at risk. The 
Department for Transport has worked with the Home Office, Local Government 
Association (LGA), personal safety charities, trade unions and trade bodies, 

182

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/509831/6.1770_Modern_Crime_Prevention_Strategy_final_WEB_version.pdf
https://www.rotherham.gov.uk/downloads/file/279/independent-inquiry-into-child-sexual-exploitation-in-rotherham
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/report-of-inspection-of-rotherham-metropolitan-borough-council


 

7 
 

holding workshops, forums, and sharing evidence and good practice with local 
authorities to assist in the setting of the standards.  

 This document is published by the Secretary of State for Transport under section 
177(1) of the Policing and Crime Act 2017 following consultation in accordance 
with section 177(5). 

 The document sets out a framework of policies that, under section 177(4), 
licensing authorities “must have regard” to when exercising their functions. 
These functions include developing, implementing and reviewing their taxi and 
private hire vehicle licensing regimes. “Having regard” is more than having a 
cursory glance at a document before arriving at a preconceived conclusion.  

 “Having regard” to these standards requires public authorities, in formulating a 
policy, to give considerations the weight which is proportionate in the 
circumstances. Given that the standards have been set directly to address 
the safeguarding of the public and the potential impact of failings in this 
area, the importance of thoroughly considering these standards cannot be 
overstated. It is not a question of box ticking; the standards must be considered 
rigorously and with an open mind. 

 Although it remains the case that licensing authorities must reach their own 
decisions, both on overall policies and on individual licensing matters in light of 
the relevant law, it may be that the Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle 
Standards might be drawn upon in any legal challenge to an authority’s practice, 
and that any failure to adhere to the standards without sufficient justification could 
be detrimental to the authority’s defence. In the interest of transparency, all 
licensing authorities should publish their consideration of the measures 
contained in Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards, and the 
policies and delivery plans that stem from these. The Department has 
undertaken to monitor the effectiveness of the standards in achieving the 
protection of children and vulnerable adults (and by extension all passengers). 

 The Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards does not purport to give a 
definitive statement of the law and any decisions made by a licensing authority 
remain a matter for that authority. 

  

183



8 

3. Administering the Licensing Regime

Licensing polices 

 The Department recommends all licensing authorities make publicly available a 
cohesive policy document that brings together all their procedures on taxi and 
private hire vehicle licensing. This should include but not be limited to policies on 
convictions, a ‘fit and proper’ person test, licence conditions and vehicle 
standards. 

 When formulating a taxi and private hire vehicle policy, the primary and overriding 
objective must be to protect the public. The importance of ensuring that the 
licensing regime protects the vulnerable cannot be overestimated. This was 
highlighted in the report by Dame Louise Casey CB of February 2015 on 
safeguarding failings. 

“It will be evident from this report that in many cases the activities of 
perpetrators take place in spheres which are regulated by the Council – taxis 
have been the focus of particular concern. Persistent and rigorous enforcement 
of the regulatory functions available to the council, including the placing of 
conditions on private hire taxi operator licences where appropriate, would send 
a strong signal that the trade is being monitored and would curtail the activities 
of opportunistic perpetrators whereby taxi drivers have solicited children to 
provide sex in return for cigarettes, alcohol or a fare free ride.” 

 The long-term devastation caused by CSAE was summarised in the same report: 

“Victims suffer from suicidal feelings and often self-harm. Many become 
pregnant. Some have to manage the emotional consequences of miscarriages 
and abortions while others have children that they are unable to parent 
appropriately. The abuse and violence continues to affect victims into 
adulthood. Many enter violent and abusive relationships. Many suffer poor 
mental health and addiction.” 

 Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council (‘Rotherham Council’) provides an 
example of how the systematic review of policies and procedures and the 
implementation of a plan to drive improvements in practice can result in a well-
functioning taxi and private hire vehicle sector that is rebuilding local confidence 
in the industry. The history of past failings here and elsewhere is well known, but 
it is the transparency and resolution that Rotherham Council has demonstrated 
and the high standards they now require that are rebuilding public confidence. 

 One of the key lessons learned is that it is vital to review policies and reflect 
changes in the industry both locally and nationally. Licensing authorities should 
review their licensing policies every five years, but should also consider 
interim reviews should there be significant issues arising in their area, and 
their performance annually. 

184

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/401125/46966_Report_of_Inspection_of_Rotherham_WEB.pdf


 

9 
 

Duration of licences 

 A previous argument against issuing licences for more than a year was that a 
criminal offence might be committed, and not notified, during this period; this can 
of course also be the case during the duration of a shorter licence. This risk can 
be mitigated for drivers by authorities to undertaking regular interim checks. To 
help authorities monitor licensees’ suitability, licensing authorities should engage 
with their police force to ensure that when the police believe a licensee presents 
a risk to the travelling public they use their Common Law Police Disclosure powers 
(see paragraphs 4.9 - 4.11) to advise them. 

 The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 (as amended) sets 
a standard length at three years for taxi and private hire vehicle drivers and five 
years for private hire vehicle operators. Any shorter duration licence should only 
be issued when the licensing authority thinks it is appropriate in the specific 
circumstances of the case, if a licensee has requested one or where required (e.g. 
when the licence holder’s leave to remain in the UK is time-limited) or when the 
licence is only required to meet a short-term demand; they should not be issued 
on a ‘probationary’ basis. 

Whistleblowing 

 It is in the application of licensing authority’s policies (and the training and raising 
of awareness among those applying them) that protection will be provided. Where 
there are concerns that policies are not being applied correctly, it is vital that these 
can be raised, investigated and remedial action taken if required. Licensing 
authorities should have effective internal procedures in place for staff to 
raise concerns and for any concerns to be dealt with openly and fairly. 

  
A report into the licensing of drivers by South Ribble Borough Council highlights 
the implications of not applying the agreed policies. In early August 2015, 
concerns were raised regarding decisions to renew the licences of drivers 
where there were potential incidents of child sexual exploitation. An internal 
review concluded that there had been failings in local investigatory procedures 
which might have affected the ability of the General Licensing Committee to 
make proper decisions, and information sharing with the police and data 
recording was not satisfactory. 

185



 

10 
 

 The external investigation in South Ribble concluded “that there had been a lack 
of awareness and priority given to safeguarding and the safety of taxi [and private 
hire vehicle] passengers in the manner in which licensing issues were addressed”. 
We are pleased to note that the report concludes, “The Council have been active 
at every stage in responding to issues and concerns identified. It has taken steps 
to address operational issues in the licensing function and has engaged fully with 
other agencies in so doing. In the light of the above, it is not necessary to make 
any further recommendations.” 

 It is hoped that all licensing authorities will have learnt from these mistakes 
but to prevent a repeat, local authorities should ensure they have an effective 
‘whistleblowing’ policy and that all staff are aware of it. If a worker is aware 
of, and has access to, effective internal procedures for raising concerns then 
‘whistleblowing’ is unlikely to be needed. 

 The Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 (PIDA), commonly referred to as 
whistleblowing legislation, provides protection for those that have a reasonable 
belief of serious wrongdoing, including failure to comply with professional 
standards, council policies or codes of practice/conduct. The PIDA is part of 
employment law. In the normal course of events, if a worker reveals information 
that his employer does not want revealed it may be a disciplinary offence. If 
someone leaked their employer’s confidential information to the press, they might 
expect to be dismissed for that. The PIDA enables workers who ‘blow the whistle’ 
about wrongdoing to complain to an employment tribunal if they are dismissed or 
suffer any other form of detriment for doing so. It is a qualified protection and 
certain conditions would have to be met for the worker to be protected. More 
information is available online for employees and employers. 

Consultation at the local level 

 Licensing authorities should consult on proposed changes in licensing rules 
that may have significant impacts on passengers and/or the trade. Such 
consultation should include not only the taxi and private hire vehicle trades but 
also groups likely to be the trades’ customers. Examples are groups representing 
disabled people, Chambers of Commerce, organisations with a wider transport 
interest (e.g. the Campaign for Better Transport and other transport providers), 
women’s groups, local traders, and the local multi-agency safeguarding 
arrangements. It may also be helpful to consult with night-time economy groups 
(such as Pubwatch) if the trade is an important element of dispersal from the local 
night-time economy’s activities. 

 Any decision taken to alter the licensing regime is likely to have an impact on 
the operation of the taxi and private hire vehicle sector in neighbouring areas; and 
licensing authorities should engage with these areas to identify any 
concerns and issues that might arise from a proposed change. Many areas 
convene regional officer consultation groups or, more formally, councillor liaison 
meetings; this should be adopted by all authorities.  

Changing licensing policy and requirements 

186

http://www.southribble.gov.uk/sites/default/files/FINAL_REPORT_JUNE_2016.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/whistleblowing
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/415175/bis-15-200-whistleblowing-guidance-for-employers-and-code-of-practice.pdf


 

11 
 

 Any changes in licensing requirements should be followed by a review 
of the licences already issued. If the need to change licensing requirements 
has been identified, this same need is applicable to those already in possession 
of a licence. That is not however to suggest that licences should be automatically 
revoked overnight, for example if a vehicle specification is changed it is 
proportionate to allow those that would not meet the criteria to have the 
opportunity to adapt or change their vehicle. The same pragmatic approach 
should be taken to driver licence changes - if requirements are changed to include 
a training course or qualification, a reasonable time should be allowed for this to 
be undertaken or gained. The implementation schedule of any changes that affect 
current licence holders must be transparent and communicated promptly and 
clearly. 

 Where a more subjective change has been introduced, for example an 
amended policy on previous convictions, a licensing authority must consider each 
case on its own merits. Where there are exceptional, clear and compelling 
reasons to deviate from a policy, licensing authorities should consider doing so. 
Licensing authorities should record the reasons for any deviation from the policies 
in place. 

  

187



 

12 
 

4. Gathering and Sharing Information 
 

 Licensing authorities must consider as full a range of information available to them 
when making a decision whether to grant a licence and to meet their ongoing 
obligation to ensure a licensee remains suitable to hold a licence.   

The Disclosure and Barring Service 

 The Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) provides access to criminal record 
information through its disclosure service for England and Wales. The DBS also 
maintains the lists of individuals barred from working in regulated activity with 
children or adults. The DBS makes independent barring decisions about people 
who have harmed, or where they are considered to pose a risk of harm to a child 
or vulnerable person within the workplace. The DBS enables organisations in the 
public, private and voluntary sectors to make safer employment decisions by 
identifying candidates who may be unsuitable for certain work, especially that 
which involves vulnerable groups including children.  

 Enhanced certificates with a check of the barred lists include details of spent and 
unspent convictions recorded on the Police National Computer (PNC), any 
additional information which a chief officer of police believes to be relevant and 
ought to be disclosed, as well as indicating whether the individual is barred from 
working in regulated activity with children or adults. Spent convictions and 
cautions are disclosed on standard and enhanced certificates according to rules 
set out in legislation.  Convictions which resulted in a custodial sentence, and 
convictions or cautions for a specified serious offence such as those involving 
child sexual abuse will always be disclosed on a standard or enhanced certificate. 
Full details of the disclosure rules, and those offences which will always be 
disclosed, are available from the DBS. As well as convictions and cautions, an 
enhanced certificate may include additional information which a chief police officer 
reasonably believes is relevant and ought to be disclosed. Chief police officers 
must have regard to the statutory guidance issued by the Home Office when 
considering disclosure. A summary of the information provided at each level of 
DBS checks is annexed to this document (Annex – Disclosure and Barring 
Service information). 

 It should be noted that licensing authorities must not circumvent the DBS process 
and seek to obtain details of previous criminal convictions and other information 
that may not otherwise be disclosed on a DBS certificate. Whilst data protection 
legislation (not just the Data Protection Act 2018 or General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR)) gives individuals (or data subjects) a ‘right of access’ to the 
personal data that an organisation holds about them, it is a criminal offence to 
require an individual to exercise their subject access rights so as to gain 
information about any convictions and cautions. This could potentially lead to the 
authority receiving information to which it is not entitled. The appropriate way of 
accessing an individual’s criminal records is through an enhanced DBS and 
barred lists check. 

188

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/dbs-filtering-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/statutory-disclosure-guidance


 

13 
 

The Disclosure and Barring Service Update Service 
 Subscription to the DBS Update Service allows those with standard and enhanced 
certificates to keep these up to date online and, with the individual’s consent, 
allows nominees to check the status of a certificate online at any time. 
Subscription to the service removes the need for new certificates to be requested, 
reduces the administrative burden and mitigates potential delays in relicensing. 

 The DBS will search regularly to see if any relevant new information has been 
received since the certificate was issued. The frequency varies depending on the 
type of information; for criminal conviction and barring information, the DBS will 
search for updates on a weekly basis. For non-conviction information, the DBS 
will search for updates every nine months.  

 Licensing authorities are able to request large numbers of status checks on a daily 
basis. The DBS has developed a Multiple Status Check Facility (MSCF) that can 
be accessed via a web service. The MSCF enables organisations to make an 
almost unlimited number of Status Checks simultaneously. Further information on 
the MSCF is available from the DBS. 

 Should the MSCF advise that new information is available the DBS certificate 
should no longer be relied upon and a new DBS certificate requested. 

Common Law Police Disclosure 

 The DBS is not the only source of information that should be considered as part 
of a fit and proper assessment for the licensing of taxi and private hire vehicle 
drivers. Common Law Police Disclosure ensures that where there is a public 
protection risk, the police will pass information to the employer or regulatory body 
to allow them to act swiftly to mitigate any danger. 

 Common Law Police Disclosure replaced the Notifiable Occupations Scheme 
(NOS) in March 2015 and focuses on providing timely and relevant information 
which might indicate a public protection risk. Information is passed on at arrest or 
charge, rather than on conviction which may be some time after, allowing any 
measures to mitigate risk to be put in place immediately. 

 This procedure provides robust safeguarding arrangements while ensuring 
only relevant information is passed on to employers or regulatory bodies. 
Licensing authorities should maintain close links with the police to ensure 
effective and efficient information sharing procedures and protocols are in 
place and are being used. 

Licensee self-reporting 

 Licence holders should be required to notify the issuing authority within 48 
hours of an arrest and release, charge or conviction of any sexual offence, any 
offence involving dishonesty or violence and any motoring offence. An arrest for 
any of the offences within this scope should result in a review by the issuing 
authority as to whether the licence holder is fit to continue to do so. This must not 

189

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/dbs-update-service-multiple-status-checking-guide


 

14 
 

however be seen as a direction that a licence should be withdrawn; it is for the 
licensing authority to consider what, if any, action in terms of the licence should 
be taken based on the balance of probabilities. Should an authority place an 
obligation on licensees to notify under these circumstances, authorities should 
also ensure appropriate procedures are in place to enable them to act in a suitable 
timeframe if and when needed.  

 Importantly, a failure by a licence holder to disclose an arrest that the issuing 
authority is subsequently advised of might be seen as behaviour that questions 
honesty and therefore the suitability of the licence holder regardless of the 
outcome of the initial allegation. 

Referrals to the Disclosure and Barring Service and the Police 

 In some circumstances it may be appropriate under the Safeguarding 
Vulnerable Groups Act 2006 for licensing authorities to make referrals to the DBS. 
A decision to refuse or revoke a licence as the individual is thought to 
present a risk of harm to a child or vulnerable adult, should be referred to 
the DBS. The power for the licensing authority to make a referral in this context 
arises from the undertaking of a safeguarding role. Further guidance has been 
provided by the DBS. 

 The Department recommends that licensing authorities should make a 
referral to the DBS when it is thought that: 

• an individual has harmed or poses a risk of harm to a child or vulnerable adult; 

• an individual has satisfied the ‘harm test’; or 

• received a caution or conviction for a relevant offence and; 

• the person they are referring is, has or might in future be working in regulated 
activity; 

if the above conditions are satisfied, the DBS may consider it appropriate for the 
person to be added to a barred list. 

 These referrals may result in the person being added to a barred list and 
enable other licensing authorities to consider this should further applications to 
other authorities be made. Further information on referrals to DBS is available.  

190

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/dbs-barring-referrals-local-authority-referral-duty-and-power/referral-duty-and-power-for-local-authorities-and-regulatory-bodies#local-authorities-as-regulated-activity-providers
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/making-barring-referrals-to-the-dbs#what-is-the-harm-test
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/making-barring-referrals-to-the-dbs


 

15 
 

Working with the Police 

 The police are an invaluable source of intelligence when assessing whether 
a licensing applicant is a ‘fit and proper’ person. It is vital that licensing authorities 
have a partnership with the police service to ensure that appropriate information 
is shared as quickly as possible. As part of building an effective working 
relationship between the licensing authority and the police, action taken by the 
licensing authority as a result of information received should be fed-back 
to the police. Increasing the awareness among police forces of the value 
licensing authorities place on the information received, particularly on non-
conviction intelligence, will assist furthering these relationships and reinforce the 
benefits of greater sharing of information. 

 This relationship can be mutually beneficial, assisting the police to prevent 
crime. The police can gain valuable intelligence from drivers and operators, for 
example, the identification of establishments that are selling alcohol to minors or 
drunks, or the frequent transportation of substance abusers to premises. 

 To aid further the quality of the information available to all parties that have a 
safeguarding duty, a revocation or refusal on public safety grounds should also 
be advised to the police. 

Sharing licensing information with other licensing authorities 

 As has been stated elsewhere in this document, obtaining the fullest 
information minimises the doubt as to whether an applicant or licensee is ‘fit and 
proper’. An obvious source of relevant information is any previous licensing 
history. Applicants and licensees should be required to disclose if they hold 
or have previously held a licence with another authority. An applicant 
should also be required to disclose if they have had an application for a 
licence refused, or a licence revoked or suspended by any other licensing 
authority. Licensing authorities should explicitly advise on their application forms 
that making a false statement or omitting to provide the information requested 
may be a criminal offence. 

 The LGA’s Councillors’ Handbook on taxi and private hire vehicle licensing 
advises that those responsible for licensing should “communicate regularly with 
licensing committees and officers in neighbouring councils to ensure critical 
information is shared and that there is a consistency and robustness in decision-
making. By working together, local government can make sure that this vital 
service is safe, respected, and delivering for local communities.”. While this 
approach may aid consistency and robustness in decision-making within regions, 
it has obvious inherent limitations as it is unlikely such protocols could be 
established between all licensing authorities. The LGA commissioned the 
National Anti-Fraud Network to develop a national register of taxi and private hire 
vehicle driver licence refusals and revocations (the register is known as ‘NR3’). 
Tools such as NR3 should be used by licensing authorities to share 
information on a more consistent basis to mitigate the risk of non-
disclosure of relevant information by applicants. 

191

https://www.local.gov.uk/councillor-handbook-taxi-and-phv-licensing


 

16 
 

 For these processes to be beneficial, all licensing authorities must keep a 
complete and accurate record as to the reasons for refusal, suspension or 
revocation of a licence in order that this might be shared if requested and 
appropriate to do so. 

 Data protection legislation provides exemption from the rights of data subjects 
for the processing of personal data in connection with regulatory activities. This 
includes taxi and private hire vehicle licensing. The exemption applies only to 
information processed for the core regulatory activities of appropriate 
organisations; it may not be used in a blanket manner. The exemption applies 
only to the extent that the application of the rights of data subjects to the 
information in question would be likely to prejudice the proper discharge of the 
regulatory functions. The Information Commissioner’s Office has published 
guidance to assist organisations to fully understand their obligations and suggest 
good practice.  

 If notification under paragraph 4.20 or 4.21 of a refused or revoked licence is 
disclosed, the relevant licensing authority should be contacted to establish when 
the licence was refused, suspended or revoked and the reasons why. In those 
circumstances, the relevant licensing authority must consider whether it should 
disclose any information in relation to the previous decision, consistent with its 
obligations under data protection legislation. If information is disclosed, it can then 
be taken into account in determining the applicant’s fitness to be licensed. The 
relevance of the reason for refusing/revoking a licence must be considered. For 
example, if any individual was refused a licence for failing a local knowledge test, 
it does not have any safeguarding implications. Conversely, a revocation or 
refusal connected to indecency would. Licensing authorities should not simply 
replicate a previous decision, authorities must consider each application on its 
own merits and with regard to its own polices.  

 Should a licensing authority receive information that a licence holder did not 
disclose the information referred to in paragraph 4.20, for example by checking 
the NR3 register, the authority should consider whether the non-disclosure 
represents dishonesty and should review whether the licence holder remains ‘fit 
and proper’. 

Multi-agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) 

 Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hubs are a way to improve the safeguarding 
response for children and vulnerable adults through better information sharing 
and high quality and timely safeguarding responses. MASHs (or similar models) 
should operate on three common principles: information sharing, joint decision 
making and coordinated intervention. 

 The Home Office report on Multi Agency Working and Information Sharing 
recommended that effective multi-agency working still needs to become more 
widespread. The Children’s Commissioner’s 2013 Inquiry into Child Sexual 
Exploitation in Gangs and Groups found that both police and local authorities still 
identified the inability to share information as a key barrier to safeguarding 
children from sexual abuse and exploitation. 

192

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/338875/MASH.pdf
ttps://www.childrenscommissioner.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/If_only_someone_had_listened.pdf
ttps://www.childrenscommissioner.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/If_only_someone_had_listened.pdf


 

17 
 

 All licensing authorities should operate or establish a means to facilitate the 
objectives of a MASH (i.e. the sharing of necessary and relevant information 
between stakeholders). As has been emphasised throughout this document, one 
of the most effective ways to minimise the risk to children and vulnerable adults 
when using taxis and private hire vehicles is to ensure that decisions on licensing 
individuals are made with the fullest knowledge possible.  

Complaints against licensees 

 Complaints about drivers and operators provide a source of intelligence when 
considering the renewal of a licence or to identify problems during the period of 
the licence. Patterns of behaviour such as complaints against drivers, even when 
they do not result in further action in response to an individual compliant, may be 
indicative of characteristics that raise doubts over the suitability to hold a licence. 
All licensing authorities should have a robust system for recording 
complaints, including analysing trends across all licensees as well as 
complaints against individual licensees. Such a system will help authorities to 
build a fuller picture of the potential risks an individual may pose and may tip the 
‘balance of probabilities’ assessment that licensing authorities must take. 

 Licensees with a high number of complaints made against them should be 
contacted by the licensing authority and concerns raised with the driver and 
operator (if appropriate). Further action in terms of the licence holder must be 
determined by the licensing authority, which could include no further action, the 
offer of training, a formal review of the licence, or formal enforcement action. 

 To ensure that passengers know who to complain to, licensing authorities 
should produce guidance for passengers on making complaints directly to the 
licensing authority that should be available on their website. Ways to make 
complaint to the authority should be displayed in all licensed vehicles. This is likely 
to result in additional work for the licensing authority but has the advantage of 
ensuring consistency in the handling of complaints. Currently, it is more likely that 
a complaint against a taxi driver would be made directly to the licensing authority 
whereas a complaint against a private hire vehicle driver is more likely to be made 
to the operator. An effective partnership in which operators can share concerns 
regarding drivers is also encouraged.  

 Importantly, this approach will assist in the directing of complaints and 
information regarding the behaviour of drivers who may be carrying a passenger 
outside of the area in which the driver is licensed to the authority that issued the 
licence. In order for this to be effective licensing authorities must ensure that 
drivers are aware of a requirement to display information on how to complain and 
take appropriate sanctions against those that do not comply with this requirement. 

 In terms of investigating complaints CCTV footage of an incident can provide 
an invaluable insight, providing an ‘independent witness’ to an event. This can 
assist in the decision whether to suspend or revoke a licence. The potential 
benefits of mandating CCTV in vehicles is discussed in paragraphs 7.7 - 7.12. 

Overseas convictions 

193



 

18 
 

 The DBS cannot access criminal records held overseas, only foreign 
convictions that are held on the Police National Computer may, subject to the 
disclosure rules, be disclosed. Therefore, a DBS check may not provide a 
complete picture of an individual’s criminal record where there have been periods 
living or working overseas; the same applies when an applicant has previously 
spent an extended period (three or more continuous months) outside the UK. It 
should however be noted that some countries will not provide an ‘Certificate of 
Good Character’ unless the individual has been resident for six months or more 

 Licensing authorities should seek or require applicants to provide where 
possible criminal records information or a ‘Certificate of Good Character’ from 
overseas in this circumstance to properly assess risk and support the decision-
making process (. It is the character of the applicant as an adult that is of particular 
interest, therefore an extended period outside the UK before the age of 18 may 
be less relevant. As with all licensing decisions, each case must be considered 
on its own merits. For information on applying for overseas criminal record 
information or ‘Certificates of Good Character’ please see the Home Office 
guidance. 

 Where an individual is aware that they have committed an offence overseas 
which may be equivalent to those listed in the annex to this document (Annex – 
Assessment of previous convictions), licensing authorities should advise the 
applicant to seek independent expert or legal advice to ensure that they provide 
information that is truthful and accurate. 

  

194

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/criminal-records-checks-for-overseas-applicants


 

19 
 

5. Decision Making 
Administration of the licensing framework 

 A policy is only effective if it is administered properly. The taxi and private hire 
vehicle licensing functions of local councils are non-executive functions i.e. they 
are functions of the council rather than the executive (such as the Cabinet). The 
functions include the determination of licence applications, reviews and renewals, 
along with the attachment of conditions when considered appropriate. The 
function may be delegated to a committee, a sub-committee or an officer – which 
should be set out within a clear scheme of delegation. In London the taxi and 
private hire vehicle licensing function is undertaken by Transport for London. 

 Licensing authorities should ensure that all individuals that determine whether a 
licence is issued or refused are adequately resourced to allow them to discharge 
the function effectively and correctly. 

Training decision makers 

 All individuals that determine whether a licence is issued should be 
required to undertake sufficient training. As a minimum, training for a member 
of a licensing committee should include: licensing procedures, natural justice, 
understanding the risks of CSAE, disability and equality awareness and the 
making of difficult and potentially controversial decisions. Training should not 
simply relate to procedures, but should include the use of case study material to 
provide context and real scenarios. All training should be formally recorded by the 
licensing authority and require a signature from the person that has received the 
training. Training is available from a number of organisations including the 
Institute of Licensing and Lawyers in Local Government; the LGA may also be 
able to assist in the development of training packages. 

 Public safety is the paramount consideration but the discharge of licensing 
functions must be undertaken in accordance with the following general principles: 

• policies should be used as internal guidance, and should be supported 
by a member/officer code of conduct. 

• any implications of the Human Rights Act should be considered. 

• the rules of natural justice should be observed. 

• decisions must be reasonable and proportionate. 

• where a hearing is required it should be fairly conducted and allow for 
appropriate consideration of all relevant factors. 

• decision makers must avoid bias (or even the appearance of bias) and 
predetermination. 

• data protection legislation. 

195



 

20 
 

 When a decision maker has a prejudicial interest in a case, whether it be financial 
or a personal relationship with those involved they should declare their interest at 
the earliest opportunity; this must be prior to any discussions or votes and, once 
declared, they must leave the room for the duration of the discussion or vote. 

The regulatory structure 

 It is recommended that councils operate with a Regulatory Committee or Board 
that is convened at periodic intervals to determine licensing matters, with 
individual cases being considered by a panel of elected and suitably trained 
councillors drawn from a larger Regulatory Committee or Board. This model is 
similar to that frequently adopted in relation to other licensing matters. To facilitate 
the effective discharge of the functions, less contentious matters can be delegated 
to appropriately authorised council officers via a transparent scheme of 
delegation. 

 It is considered that this approach also ensures the appropriate level of separation 
between decision makers and those that investigate complaints against licensees, 
and is the most effective method in allowing the discharge of the functions in 
accordance with the general principles referred to in 5.4. In particular, the 
Committee/Board model allows for: 

• Each case to be considered on its own merits. It is rare for the same 
councillors to be involved in frequent hearings – therefore the councillors 
involved in the decision making process will have less knowledge of previous 
decisions and therefore are less likely to be influenced by them. Oversight 
and scrutiny can be provided in relation to the licensing service generally, 
which can provide independent and impartial oversight of the way that the 
functions are being discharged within the authority. 

• Clear separation between investigator and the decision maker – this 
demonstrates independence, and ensures that senior officers can attempt to 
resolve disputes in relation to service actions without the perception that this 
involvement will affect their judgement in relation to decisions made at a later 
date. 

 Avoidance of bias or even the appearance of bias is vital to ensuring good 
decisions are made and instilling and/or maintaining confidence in the licensing 
regime by passengers and licensees. 

 Unlike officers, elected members are not usually involved in the day to day 
operation of the service and as such do not have relationships with licence holders 
that may give the impression that the discharge of a function is affected by the 
relationship between the decision maker and the licence holder.  

 Some licensing authorities may decide to operate a system whereby all 
matters are delegated to a panel of officers; however, this approach is not 
recommended and caution should be exercised. Decisions must be, and be seen 
to be, made objectively, avoiding any bias. In addition, it may be more difficult to 
demonstrate compliance with the principles referred to above due to the close 

196



 

21 
 

connection between the officers on the panel, and those involved in the 
operational discharge of the licensing functions. 

 Whether the structure proposed is introduced or an alternative model is more 
appropriate in local circumstances, the objective should remain the same - to 
separate the investigation of licensing concerns and the management of the 
licence process. Regardless of which approach is adopted, all licensing 
authorities should consider arrangements for dealing with serious matters 
that may require the immediate revocation of a licence. It is recommended 
that this role is delegated to a senior officer/manager with responsibility for the 
licensing service. 

Fit and proper test 

 Licensing authorities have a duty to ensure that any person to whom they 
grant a taxi or private hire vehicle driver’s licence is a ‘fit and proper’ person to be 
a licensee. It may be helpful when considering whether an applicant or licensee 
is fit and proper to pose oneself the following question: 

Without any prejudice, and based on the information before you, would 
you allow a person for whom you care, regardless of their condition, to 
travel alone in a vehicle driven by this person at any time of day or night? 

 If, on the balance of probabilities, the answer to the question is ‘no’, the 
individual should not hold a licence. 

 Licensing authorities have to make difficult decisions but (subject to the points 
made in paragraph 5.4) the safeguarding of the public is paramount. All decisions 
on the suitability of an applicant or licensee should be made on the balance of 
probability. This means that an applicant or licensee should not be ‘given the 
benefit of doubt’. If the committee or delegated officer is only “50/50” as to whether 
the applicant or licensee is ‘fit and proper’, they should not hold a licence. The 
threshold used here is lower than for a criminal conviction (that being beyond 
reasonable doubt) and can take into consideration conduct that has not resulted 
in a criminal conviction. 

Criminal convictions and rehabilitation 

 In considering an individual’s criminal record, licensing authorities must 
consider each case on its merits, but they should take a particularly cautious view 
of any offences against individuals with special needs, children and other 
vulnerable groups, particularly those involving violence, those of a sexual nature 
and those linked to organised crime. In order to achieve consistency, and to 
mitigate the risk of successful legal challenge, licensing authorities should have a 
clear policy for the consideration of criminal records. This should include, for 
example, which offences would prevent an applicant from being licenced 
regardless of the period elapsed in all but truly exceptional circumstances. In the 
case of lesser offences, a policy should consider the number of years the authority 
will require to have elapsed since the commission of particular kinds of offences 
before they will grant a licence. 

197



 

22 
 

 Annexed to this document are the Department’s recommendations on the 
assessment of previous convictions (Annex – Assessment of previous 
convictions). This draws on the work of the Institute of Licensing, in partnership 
with the LGA, the National Association of Licensing Enforcement Officers 
(NALEO) and Lawyers in Local Government, in publishing its guidance on 
determining the suitability of taxi and private hire vehicle licensees. 

 These periods should be taken as a starting point in considering whether a 
licence should be granted or renewed in all cases. The Department’s view is that 
this places passenger safety as the priority while enabling past offenders to 
sufficiently evidence that they have been successfully rehabilitated so that they 
might obtain a licence. Authorities are however reminded that applicants are 
entitled to a fair and impartial consideration of their application. 

 

  

198



 

23 
 

6. Driver Licensing 
 
Criminality checks for drivers 

 Licensing authorities are entitled to request an enhanced criminal record 
certificate with check of the barred lists from the DBS for all driver licence holders 
or applicants. The DfT’s 2019 survey of taxi and private hire vehicle licensing 
authorities shows that all licensing authorities in England and Wales have a 
requirement that an enhanced DBS check is undertaken at first application or 
renewal.  

 All individuals applying for or renewing a taxi or private hire vehicle drivers licence 
licensing authorities should carry out a check of the children and adult Barred 
Lists in addition to being subject to an enhanced DBS check (in section x61 of the 
DBS application ‘Other Workforce’ should be entered in line 1 and ‘Taxi Licensing’ 
should be entered at line 2). All licensed drivers should also be required to 
evidence continuous registration with the DBS update service to enable the 
licensing authority to routinely check for new information every six months. Drivers 
that do not subscribe up to the Update Service should still be subject to a check 
every six months. 

 Driving a taxi or private hire vehicle is not, in itself, a regulated activity for the 
purposes of the barred list. This means that an individual subject to barring would 
not be legally prevented from being a taxi or private hire vehicle driver but the 
licensing authority should take an individual’s barred status into account alongside 
other information available. In the interests of public safety, licensing 
authorities should not, as part of their policies, issue a licence to any 
individual that appears on either barred list. Should a licensing authority 
consider there to be exceptional circumstances which means that, based on the 
balance of probabilities they consider an individual named on a barred list to be 
‘fit and proper’, the reasons for reaching this conclusion should be recorded. 

 Drivers working under an arrangement to transport children may be working in 
‘regulated activity’ as defined by the Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006. 
It is an offence to knowingly allow a barred individual to work in regulated activity. 
The guidance on home-to-school travel and transport issued by the Department 
for Education should be considered alongside this document. Please see 
guidance on driver DBS eligibility and how to apply. 

Safeguarding awareness 

 Licensing authorities should consider the role that those in the taxi and private 
hire vehicle industry can play in spotting and reporting the abuse, exploitation or 
neglect of children and vulnerable adults. As with any group of people, it is 
overwhelmingly the case that those within the industry can be an asset in the 
detection and prevention of abuse or neglect of children and vulnerable adults. 
However, this is only the case if they are aware of and alert to the signs of potential 
abuse and know where to turn to if they suspect that a child or vulnerable adult is 
at risk of harm or is in immediate danger. 

199

https://departmentfortransportuk.sharepoint.com/sites/BusTaxi/Taxis/Control%20of%20Taxis%20and%20PHV/STATUTORY%20GUIDANCE%20(2019)/FINAL%20VERSION%20DOCUMENTS%20(2019)/v.uk/government/statistics/taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-statistics-england-2019
https://departmentfortransportuk.sharepoint.com/sites/BusTaxi/Taxis/Control%20of%20Taxis%20and%20PHV/STATUTORY%20GUIDANCE%20(2019)/FINAL%20VERSION%20DOCUMENTS%20(2019)/v.uk/government/statistics/taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-statistics-england-2019
https://departmentfortransportuk.sharepoint.com/sites/BusTaxi/Taxis/Control%20of%20Taxis%20and%20PHV/STATUTORY%20GUIDANCE%20(2019)/FINAL%20VERSION%20DOCUMENTS%20(2019)/w.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/47/contents
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/home-to-school-travel-and-transport-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/dbs-check-applicant-criminal-record/get-a-standard-or-enhanced-dbs-check-for-an-employee


 

24 
 

 All licensing authorities should provide safeguarding advice and guidance to the 
trade and should require taxi and private hire vehicle drivers to undertake 
safeguarding training. This is often produced in conjunction with the police and 
other agencies. These programmes have been developed to help drivers and 
operators: 

• provide a safe and suitable service to vulnerable passengers of all ages; 

• recognise what makes a person vulnerable; and 

• understand how to respond, including how to report safeguarding concerns 
and where to get advice. 

 Since 2015, the Department for Education (DfE) has run a nationwide campaign 
– ‘Together, we can tackle child abuse’ which aims to increase public 
understanding of how to recognise the signs to spot and encourage them to report 
child abuse and neglect. The DfE continues to promote and raise awareness of 
the campaign materials through its online toolkit, for local authorities, charities and 
organisations for use on their social media channels. 

‘County lines’ exploitation 

 County lines is a term used to describe gangs and organised criminal networks 
involved in exporting illegal drugs (primarily crack cocaine and heroin) into one or 
more importing areas [within the UK], using dedicated mobile phone lines or other 
form of “deal line”.   

 Exploitation is an integral part of the county lines offending model with children 
and vulnerable adults exploited to transport (and store) drugs and money between 
locations.  Children aged between 15-17 make up the majority of the vulnerable 
people involved in county lines, but they may also be much younger. We know 
that both girls and boys are groomed and exploited and offenders will often use 
coercion, intimidation, violence (including sexual violence) and weapons to 
ensure compliance of victims.  Children exploited by county lines gangs may have 
vulnerabilities besides their age, such as broader mental health issues, disrupted 
or chaotic homes, substance misuse issues, being excluded from school or 
frequently going missing. 

 The National Crime Agency’s 2018 county lines threat assessment set out 
that the national road network is key to the transportation of county lines victims, 
drugs and cash; with hire vehicles being one of the methods used for 
transportation between locations. 

 Safeguarding awareness training should include the ways in which drivers 
can help to identify county lines exploitation. Firstly, they should be aware of the 
following warning signs: 

• Children and young people travelling in taxis or private hire vehicles alone; 

200

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__tacklechildabuse.campaign.gov.uk_&d=DwMFAg&c=troKkvwivNn_CddsvWCHHPiPoFoTgTGIbXJULvYU158&r=pWkfbO8wDT90SEXeF9GowY2JHpbVlJjhfIuWcSqpmQM&m=fFeqs4P7cc5j0MiDgA_vqM_PIud0cGnyoU8czGJMaZE&s=nMZ5f_AqK1I4Q_O6JJAKws40OkSXl3a3I8i2l5r8hUU&e=


 

25 
 

• travelling at unusual hours (during school time, early in the morning or late 
at night); 

• travelling long distances; 

• unfamiliar with the local area or do not have a local accent; 

• paying for journeys in cash or prepaid. 

 The Home Office is working with partners to raise awareness of county lines 
and has provided material to help taxi and private vehicle hire staff to identify 
victims and report concerns to protect those exploited through this criminal 
activity. 

 Drivers (or any person) should be aware of what to do if they believe a child 
or vulnerable person is at risk of harm. If the risk is immediate they should contact 
the police otherwise they should:  

• use the local safeguarding process, the first step of which is usually to contact 
the safeguarding lead within the local authority;  

• call Crime Stoppers on 0800 555 111. 

Language proficiency 

 A lack of language proficiency could impact on a driver’s ability to understand 
written documents, such as policies and guidance, relating to the protection of 
children and vulnerable adults and applying this to identify and act on signs of 
exploitation. Oral proficiency will be of relevance in the identification of potential 
exploitation through communicating with passengers and their interaction with 
others.  

 A licensing authority’s test of a driver’s proficiency should cover both oral and 
written English language skills to achieve the objectives stated above. 

  

201

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/county-lines-posters-for-taxi-and-private-vehicle-hire-staff?utm_source=HO&utm_campaign=LA


 

26 
 

7. Vehicle Licensing 
 

 As with driver licensing, the objective of vehicle licensing is to protect the public, 
who trust that the vehicles dispatched are above all else safe. It is important 
therefore that licensing authorities are assured that those granted a vehicle 
licence also pose no threat to the public and have no links to serious criminal 
activity. Although vehicle proprietors may not have direct contact with passengers, 
they are still entrusted to ensure that the vehicles and drivers used to carry 
passengers are appropriately licensed and so maintain the safety benefits of the 
licensing regime. 

Criminality checks for vehicle proprietors 

 Enhanced DBS and barred list checks are not available for vehicle licensing. 
Licensing authorities should require a basic disclosure from the DBS and 
that a check is undertaken annually. Any individual may apply for a basic check 
and the certificate will disclose any unspent convictions recorded on the Police 
National Computer (PNC). Licensing authorities should consider whether an 
applicant or licence holder with a conviction for offences provided in the annex to 
this document (Annex – Assessment of previous convictions), other than those 
relating to driving, meet the ‘fit and proper’ threshold. 

 However, it is important that authorities acknowledge that in many cases 
individuals that license a vehicle may already be licensed as a driver. An authority 
which undertakes the biannual DBS checks recommended for its drivers should 
not require those seeking to licence a vehicle to provide a basic DBS check as 
part of the application process; a basic DBS would not provide any information in 
addition to that disclosed under the enhanced DBS and barred lists check used 
for the driver assessment. In these circumstances, the authority should instead 
rely on the fact that the applicant is considered as fit and proper to hold a driver 
licence when considering their suitability to hold a vehicle licence. Should the 
individual cease to hold a driver licence a basic certificate should be required 
immediately. 

 A refusal to license an individual as a driver or to suspend or revoke a driver 
licence does not automatically mean that that individual cannot be issued or 
continue to hold a vehicle or private hire vehicle operator licence; these decisions 
must be independent of a driver licence refusal and based on the appropriate 
information i.e. it should not consider information that would only be available via 
an enhanced DBS check but instead that which would be disclosed on a basic 
check. DBS certificate information can only be used for the specific purpose for 
which it was requested and for which the applicant’s full consent has been given. 

 Private hire vehicle operator and vehicle licences may be applied for by a 
company or partnership; licensing authorities should apply the ‘fit and proper’ test 
to each of the directors or partners in that company or partnership. For this to be 
effective private hire vehicle operators and those to whom a vehicle licence should 
be required to advise the licensing authority of any change in directors or partners. 

202



 

27 
 

 As explained earlier in the context of driver licensing, the DBS cannot access 
criminal records held overseas so other checks must be consider where and 
applicant has lived or worked overseas (see paragraph 4.34 - 4.36). 

In-vehicle visual and audio recording – CCTV 

 Government has acknowledged the potential risk to public safety when 
passengers travel in taxis and private hire vehicles. It is unfortunately the case 
that no matter how complete the information available to licensing authorities is 
when assessing whether to issue any taxi or private hire vehicle licence, nor how 
robust the policies in place are and the rigor with which they are applied, it will 
never completely remove the possibility of harm to passengers by drivers. 

 The Department’s view is that CCTV can provide additional deterrence to prevent 
this and investigative value when it does. The use of CCTV can provide a safer 
environment for the benefit of taxi/private hire vehicle passengers and drivers by: 

• deterring and preventing the occurrence of crime; 

• reducing the fear of crime; 

• assisting the police in investigating incidents of crime; 

• assisting insurance companies in investigating motor vehicle accidents. 

 All licensing authorities should consult to identify if there are local circumstances 
which indicate that the installation of CCTV in vehicles would have either a 
positive or an adverse net effect on the safety of taxi and private hire vehicle 
users, including children or vulnerable adults, and taking into account potential 
privacy issues. 

 While only a small minority of licensing authorities have so far mandated all 
vehicles to be fitted with CCTV systems, the experience of those authorities that 
have has been positive for both passengers and drivers. In addition, the evidential 
benefits of CCTV may increase the level of reporting of sexual offences.  
According to the Crime Survey for England and Wales only 17 percent of victims 
report their experiences to the police, 28 percent of rape or sexual assault victims 
indicated that a fear they would not be believed as a factor in them not reporting 
the crime. The evidential benefits CCTV could provide are therefore an important 
factor when considering CCTV in vehicles.  

 The mandating of CCTV in vehicles may deter people from seeking a taxi or 
private hire vehicle licence with the intent of causing harm. Those that gain a 
licence and consider perpetrating an opportunistic attack against a vulnerable 
unaccompanied passenger may be deterred from doing so. It is however 
unfortunately the case that offences may still occur even with CCTV operating. 

 CCTV systems that are able to record audio as well as visual data may also 
help the early identification of drivers that exhibit inappropriate behaviour toward 
passengers. Audio recording should be both overt (i.e. all parties should be aware 
when recordings are being made) and targeted (i.e. only when passengers (or 

203

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/articles/sexualoffencesinenglandandwales/yearendingmarch2017#main-points


 

28 
 

drivers) consider it necessary). The recording of audio should be used to provide 
an objective record of events such as disputes or inappropriate behaviour and 
must not be continuously active by default and should recognise the need for 
privacy of passengers’ private conversations between themselves. Activation of 
the audio recording capability of a system might be instigated when either the 
passenger or driver operates a switch or button. 

 Imposition of a blanket requirement to attach CCTV as a condition to a licence 
is likely to give rise to concerns about the proportionality of such an approach and 
will therefore require an appropriately strong justification and must be kept under 
regular review. More information and guidance on assessing the impacts of CCTV 
and on an authority mandating CCTV is annexed to this document (Annex – CCTV 
guidance). 

Stretched Limousines 

 Licensing authorities are sometimes asked to license small (those 
constructed or adapted to carry fewer than nine passengers) limousines as private 
hire vehicles, these vehicles may be used for transport to ‘school proms’ as well 
as for adult bookings. It is suggested that licensing authorities should approach 
such requests on the basis that these vehicles – where they have fewer than nine 
passenger seats - have a legitimate role to play in the private hire trade, meeting 
a public demand. It is the Department’s view that it is not a legitimate course of 
action for licensing authorities to adopt policies that exclude limousines as a 
matter of principle thereby excluding these services from the scope of the private 
hire vehicle regime and the safety benefits this provides. A blanket policy of 
excluding limousines may create an unacceptable risk to the travelling public, as 
it may lead to higher levels of unsupervised operation. Public safety 
considerations are best supported by policies that allow respectable, safe 
operators to obtain licences on the same basis as other private hire vehicle 
operators.  

 Stretched large limousines which clearly seat more than eight passengers 
should not be licensed as private hire vehicles because they are outside the 
licensing regime for private hire vehicles. However, in some circumstances a 
vehicle with space for more than eight passengers can be licensed as a private 
hire vehicle where the precise number of passenger seats is hard to determine. 
In these circumstances, the authority should consider the case on its merits in 
deciding whether to license the vehicle under the strict condition that the vehicle 
will not be used to carry more than eight passengers, bearing in mind that refusal 
may encourage illegal private hire operation.  

  

204



 

29 
 

8. Private Hire Vehicle Operator Licensing 
 

 As with driver licensing, the objective in licensing private hire vehicle operators is 
to protect the public, who may be using operators’ premises and trusting that the 
drivers and vehicles dispatched are above all else safe. It is important therefore 
that licensing authorities are assured that those that are granted a private hire 
vehicle operator also pose no threat to the public and have no links to serious 
criminal activity. Although private hire vehicle operators may not have direct 
contact with passengers, they are still entrusted to ensure that the vehicles and 
drivers used to carry passengers are appropriately licensed and so maintain the 
safety benefits of the driver licensing regime. 

Criminality checks for private hire vehicle operators 

 Enhanced DBS and barred list checks are not available for private hire vehicle 
operator licensing. Licensing authorities should request a basic disclosure 
from the DBS and that a check is undertaken annually. Any individual may 
apply for a basic check and the certificate will disclose any unspent convictions 
recorded on the Police National Computer (PNC). Licensing authorities should 
consider whether an applicant or licence holder with a conviction for offences 
provided in the annex to this document (Annex – Assessment of previous 
convictions), other than those relating to driving, meet the ‘fit and proper’ 
threshold. 

 However, it is important that authorities acknowledge that in many cases 
individuals that license as a private hire vehicle operator may already be licensed 
as a driver. An authority which undertakes the biannual DBS checks 
recommended for its drivers should not require those seeking a private hire 
vehicle operator licence to provide a basic DBS check as part of the application 
process; a basic DBS would not provide any information in addition to that 
disclosed under the enhanced DBS and barred lists check used for the driver 
assessment. In these circumstances, the authority should instead rely on the fact 
that the applicant is considered as fit and proper to hold a driver licence when 
considering their suitability to hold a vehicle licence. Should the individual cease 
to hold a driver licence a basic certificate should be required immediately 

 Refusal to license in individual as a driver or to suspend or revoke a driver licence 
does not automatically mean that that individual cannot be issued or continue to 
hold a private hire vehicle operator licence; this decision must be independent of 
a driver licence refusal and based on the appropriate information i.e. it should not 
consider information that would only be available via an enhanced DBS check but 
instead that which would be disclosed on a basic check. DBS certificate 
information can only be used for the specific purpose for which it was requested 
and for which the applicant’s full consent has been given. 

 A private hire vehicle operator licence may be applied for by a company or 
partnership; licensing authorities should apply the ‘fit and proper’ test to each of 
the directors or partners in that company or partnership. For this to be effective 

205



 

30 
 

private hire vehicle operators should be required to advise the licensing authority 
of any change in directors or partners. 

 As explained earlier in the context of driver licensing, the DBS cannot access 
criminal records held overseas. Further information on assessing the suitability of 
those that have spent extended periods in overseas is provided in paragraphs 
4.34 - 4.36. 

Booking and dispatch staff 

 Private hire vehicle drivers are not the only direct contact that private hire vehicle 
users have with private hire vehicle operators’ staff, for example a person taking 
bookings (be it by phone or in person). A vehicle dispatcher decides which driver 
to send to a user, a position that could be exploited by those seeking to exploit 
children and vulnerable adults. It is therefore appropriate that all staff that have 
contact with private hire vehicle users and the dispatching of vehicles should not 
present an undue risk to the public or the safeguarding of children and vulnerable 
adults. 

 Licensing authorities should be satisfied that private hire vehicle operators can 
demonstrate that all staff that have contact with the public and/or oversee the 
dispatching of vehicles do not pose a risk to the public. Licensing authorities 
should, as a condition of granting an operator licence, require a register of 
all staff that will take bookings or dispatch vehicles is kept. 

 Operators should be required to evidence that they have had sight of a Basic DBS 
check on all individuals listed on their register of booking and dispatch staff and 
to ensure that Basic DBS checks are conducted on any individuals added to the 
register and that this is compatible with their policy on employing ex-offenders. 
DBS certificates provided by the individual should be recently issued when 
viewed, alternatively the operator could use a ‘responsible organisation’ to 
request the check on their behalf. When individuals start taking bookings and 
dispatching vehicles for an operator they should be required, as part of their 
employment contract, to advise the operator of any convictions while they are 
employed in this role. 

 The register should be a ‘living document’ that maintains records of all those 
in these roles for the same duration as booking records are required to be kept, 
this will enable cross-referencing between the two records. A record that the 
operator has had sight of a basic DBS check certificate (although the certificate 
itself should not be retained) should be retained for the duration that the individual 
remains on the register. Should an employee cease to be on the register and later 
re-entered, a new basic DBS certificate should be requested and sight of this 
recorded. 

 Operators may outsource booking and dispatch functions but they cannot 
pass on the obligation to protect children and vulnerable adults. Operators should 
be required to evidence that comparable protections are applied by the company 
to which they outsource these functions.  

206

https://www.gov.uk/dbs-check-applicant-criminal-record/get-a-basic-dbs-check-for-an-employee


 

31 
 

  Licensing authorities should also require operators or applicants for a licence 
to provide their policy on employing ex-offenders in roles that would be on the 
register as above. As with the threshold to obtaining a private hire vehicle 
operators’ licence, those with a conviction for offences provided in the annex to 
this document (Annex – Assessment of previous convictions), other than those 
relating to driving, may not be suitable to decide who is sent to carry a child or 
vulnerable adult unaccompanied in a car. 

Record keeping 

 Section 56 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

requires private hire vehicle operators to keep records of the particulars of every 
booking invited or accepted, whether it is from the passenger or at the request of 
another operator. Licensing authorities should as a minimum require private 
hire vehicle operators to record the following information for each booking: 

• the name of the passenger; 

• the time of the request; 

• the pick-up point; 

• the destination; 

• the name of the driver; 

• the driver’s licence number; 

• the vehicle registration number of the vehicle; 

• the name of any individual that responded to the booking request; 

• the name of any individual that dispatched the vehicle. 

 This information will enable the passenger to be traced if this becomes 
necessary and should improve driver security and facilitate enforcement. It is 
suggested that booking records should be retained for a minimum of six months. 

 Private hire vehicle operators have a duty under data protection legislation to 
protect the information they record. The Information Commissioner’s Office 
provides comprehensive on-line guidance on registering as a data controller and 
how to meet their obligations. 

Use of passenger carrying vehicles (PCV) licensed drivers 

 PCV licensed drivers are subject to different checks from taxi and private hire 
vehicle licensed drivers as the work normally undertaken, i.e. driving a bus, does 
not present the same risk to passengers. Members of the public are entitled to 
expect when making a booking with a private hire vehicle operator that they will 
receive a private hire vehicle licensed vehicle and driver. The use of a driver 
who holds a PCV licence and the use of a public service vehicle (PSV) such 

207

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1976/57


 

32 
 

as a minibus to undertake a private hire vehicle booking should not be 
permitted as a condition of the private hire vehicle operator’s licence 
without the informed consent of the booker. 

 Where a private hire vehicle is unsuitable, for example where a larger vehicle 
is needed because more than eight passenger seats required or to accommodate 
luggage, the booker should be informed that a PSV is necessary, and that a PCV 
licenced driver will be used who is subject to different checks and not required to 
have an enhanced DBS check. 

208



 

33 
 

9. Enforcing the Licensing Regime 
 

 Implementing an effective framework for licensing authorities to ensure that as full 
a range of information made available to suitably trained decision makers that are 
supported by well-resourced officials is essential to a well-functioning taxi and 
private hire vehicle sector. These steps will help prevent the licensing of those 
that are not deemed ‘fit and proper’ but does not ensure that those already 
licensed continue to display the behaviours and standards expected. 

Joint authorisation of enforcement officers 

 Licensing authorities should, where the need arises, jointly authorises officers 
from other authorities so that compliance and enforcement action can be taken 
against licensees from outside their area. An agreement between licensing 
authorities to jointly authorise officers enables the use of enforcement powers 
regardless of which authority within the agreement the officer is employed by and 
which issued the licence. This will mitigate the opportunities for drivers to evade 
regulation. Such an agreement will enable those authorities to take action against 
vehicles and drivers that are licensed by the other authority when they cross over 
boundaries. A model for agreeing joint authorisation is contained in the LGA 
Councillors’ handbook. 

Setting expectations and monitoring 

 Licensing authorities should ensure that drivers are aware of the policies that they 
must adhere and are properly informed of what is expected of them and the 
repercussions for failing to do so. Some licensing authorities operate a points-
based system, which allows minor breaches to be recorded and considered in 
context while referring those with persistent or serious breaches to the licensing 
committee. This has the benefit of consistency in enforcement and makes better 
use of the licensing committee’s time.    

 The provision of a clear, simple and well-publicised process for the public to make 
complaints about drivers and operators will enable authorities to target 
compliance and enforcement activity (see paragraphs 4.29 - 4.33). This will 
provide a further source of intelligence when considering the renewal of licences 
and of any additional training that may be required. It is then for the licensing 
authority to consider if any intelligence indicates a need to suspend or revoke a 
licence in the interests of public safety. 

Suspension and revocation of driver licences 

 Section 61 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
provides a licensing authority with the ability to suspend or revoke a driver’s 
licence on the following grounds: -  

(a) that he has since the grant of the licence—  

209

https://www.local.gov.uk/councillor-handbook-taxi-and-phv-licensing
https://www.local.gov.uk/councillor-handbook-taxi-and-phv-licensing


 

34 
 

(i) been convicted of an offence involving dishonesty, indecency or 
violence; or  

(ii) been convicted of an offence under or has failed to comply with 
the provisions of the Act of 1847 or of this Part of this Act; 

(aa) that he has since the grant of the licence been convicted of an 
immigration offence or required to pay an immigration penalty; or 

(b) any other reasonable cause 

 Licensing authorities have the option to suspend or revoke a licence should 
information be received that causes concern over whether a driver is a fit and 
proper person. Where the licence holder has been served an immigration penalty 
or convicted of an immigration offence the licence should be revoked immediately. 
Guidance for licensing authorities to prevent illegal working in the taxi and private 
hire vehicle sector has been issued by the Home Office. As with the initial decision 
to license a driver, this determination must be reached based on the balance of 
probabilities, not on the burden of beyond reasonable doubt.  

 Before any decision is made, the licensing authority must give full consideration 
to the available evidence and the driver should be given the opportunity to state 
his or her case. If a period of suspension is imposed, it cannot be extended or 
changed to revocation at a later date. 

 A decision to revoke a licence does not however prevent the reissuing of a licence 
should further information be received that alters the balance of probability of a 
decision previously made. The decision to suspend or revoke was based on the 
evidence available at the time the determination was made. New evidence may, 
of course, become available later. 

 New evidence may be produced at an appeal hearing that may result in the court 
reaching a different decision to that reached by the council or an appeal may be 
settled by agreement between the licensing authority and the driver on terms 
which, in the light of new evidence, becomes the appropriate course. If, for 
example, the allegations against a driver were now, on the balance of probability, 
considered to be unfounded, a suspension could be lifted or, if the licence was 
revoked, an expedited re-licensing process used. 

 A suspension may still be appropriate if it is believed that a minor issue can 
be addressed though additional training. In this instance the licence would be 
returned to the driver once the training has been completed without further 
consideration. This approach is clearly not appropriate where the licensing 
authority believes that, based on the information available at that time, on the 
balance of probability it is considered that the driver presents a risk to public 
safety. 

  

210

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/613415/A_Licensing_Authority_guide_to_right_to_work_checks_-_England_and_Wales.pdf


 

35 
 

Annex – Assessment of Previous Convictions 
 

Legislation specifically identifies offences involving dishonesty, indecency or violence as a 
concern when assessing whether an individual is ‘fit and proper’ to hold a taxi or private 
hire vehicle licence. The following recommendations to licensing authorities on previous 
convictions reflect this. 
 
Authorities must consider each case on its own merits, and applicants/licensees are 
entitled to a fair and impartial consideration of their application. Where a period is 
given below, it should be taken to be a minimum in considering whether a licence should 
be granted or renewed in most cases. The Department’s view is that this places passenger 
safety as the priority while enabling past offenders to sufficiently evidence that they have 
been successfully rehabilitated so that they might obtain or retain a licence.  

Crimes resulting in death 
Where an applicant or licensee has been convicted of a crime which resulted in the death 
of another person or was intended to cause the death or serious injury of another person 
they will not be licensed. 

Exploitation 
Where an applicant or licensee has been convicted of a crime involving, related to, or 
has any connection with abuse, exploitation, use or treatment of another individual 
irrespective of whether the victim or victims were adults or children, they will not be 
licensed. This includes slavery, child sexual abuse, exploitation, grooming, 
psychological, emotional or financial abuse, but this is not an exhaustive list. 

Offences involving violence against the person 
Where an applicant has a conviction for an offence of violence against the person, or 
connected with any offence of violence, a licence will not be granted until at least 10 
years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. 

Possession of a weapon 
Where an applicant has a conviction for possession of a weapon or any other weapon 
related offence, a licence will not be granted until at least seven years have elapsed 
since the completion of any sentence imposed. 

Sexual offences 
Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence involving or connected with illegal 
sexual activity, a licence will not be granted. 
In addition to the above, the licensing authority will not grant a licence to any applicant 
who is currently on the Sex Offenders Register or on any barred list. 

Dishonesty 
Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence where dishonesty is an element of 
the offence, a licence will not be granted until at least seven years have elapsed since 
the completion of any sentence imposed. 

  

211



 

36 
 

Drugs 
Where an applicant has any conviction for, or related to, the supply of drugs, or 
possession with intent to supply or connected with possession with intent to supply, a 
licence will not be granted until at least 10 years have elapsed since the completion of 
any sentence imposed. 
Where an applicant has a conviction for possession of drugs, or related to the possession 
of drugs, a licence will not be granted until at least five years have elapsed since the 
completion of any sentence imposed. In these circumstances, any applicant may also 
have to undergo drugs testing for a period at their own expense to demonstrate that they 
are not using controlled drugs. 

Discrimination 
Where an applicant has a conviction involving or connected with discrimination in any 
form, a licence will not be granted until at least seven years have elapsed since the 
completion of any sentence imposed. 

Motoring convictions 
Hackney carriage and private hire drivers are professional drivers charged with the 
responsibility of carrying the public. It is accepted that offences can be committed 
unintentionally, and a single occurrence of a minor traffic offence would not prohibit the 
granting of a licence. However, applicants with multiple motoring convictions may 
indicate that an applicant does not exhibit the behaviours of a safe road user and one 
that is suitable to drive professionally.   
 
Any motoring conviction while a licensed driver demonstrates that the licensee may not 
take their professional responsibilities seriously. However, it is accepted that offences 
can be committed unintentionally, and a single occurrence of a minor traffic offence may 
not necessitate the revocation of a taxi or private hire vehicle driver licence providing the 
authority considers that the licensee remains a fit and proper person to retain a licence. 

Drink driving/driving under the influence of drugs 
Where an applicant has a conviction for drink driving or driving under the influence of 
drugs, a licence will not be granted until at least seven years have elapsed since the 
completion of any sentence or driving ban imposed. In the case of driving under the 
influence of drugs, any applicant may also have to undergo drugs testing at their own 
expense to demonstrate that they are not using controlled drugs. 
 

Using a hand-held device whilst driving 
Where an applicant has a conviction for using a held‐hand mobile telephone or a hand‐
held device whilst driving, a licence will not be granted until at least five years have 
elapsed since the conviction or completion of any sentence or driving ban imposed, 
whichever is the later. 
 

  

212



37 

Annex – Disclosure and Barring Service information 

Table 1: Information included in criminal record checks 

Information included Type of check 

Basic 
check 

Standard 
DBS check 

Enhanced 
DBS check 

Enhanced DBS 
(including 
barred list) 

check 

Unspent convictions         Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Unspent cautions 1 Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Spent convictions2 No Yes Yes Yes 

Spent cautions 1 & 2   No Yes Yes Yes 

Additional police 
Information 3 

No No Yes Yes 

Barred list(s)       
Information 4 

No No No Yes 

1. Does not include fixed penalty notices, penalty notices for disorder or any other
police or other out-of-court disposals.

2. Spent convictions and cautions that have become protected under the
Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 (Exceptions Order) 1975, as amended, are
not automatically disclosed on any level of certificate.  Further guidance is
available the DBS filtering guide.

3. This is any additional information held by the police which a chief police officer
reasonably believes to be relevant and considers ought to be disclosed.

4. This is information as to whether the individual concerned is included in the
children’s or adults’ barred lists maintained by the Disclosure and Barring Service
(DBS).

213

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/dbs-filtering-guidance/dbs-filtering-guide


 

   38 
 

Annex – CCTV Guidance 
 

It is important to note that, in most circumstances, a licensing authority which mandates the 
installation of CCTV systems in taxis and private hire vehicles will be responsible for the 
data – the data controller. It is important that data controllers fully consider concerns 
regarding privacy and licensing authorities should consider how systems are configured, 
should they mandate CCTV (with or without audio recording). For example, vehicles may 
not be exclusively used for business, also serving as a car for personal use - it should 
therefore be possible to manually switch the system off (both audio and visual recording) 
when not being used for hire. Authorities should consider the Information Commissioner’s 
view on this matter that, in most cases, a requirement for continuous operation is unlikely 
to be fair and lawful processing of personal data. 
 
The Home Office ‘Surveillance Camera Code of Practice’ advises that government is fully 
supportive of the use of overt surveillance cameras in a public place whenever that use is: 

• in pursuit of a legitimate aim; 
• necessary to meet a pressing need; 
• proportionate; 
• effective, and; 
• compliant with any relevant legal obligations 

 
The Code also sets out 12 guiding principles which, as a ‘relevant authority’ under section 
33(5) of the Protection of Freedoms Act 2012, licensing authorities must have regard to. It 
must be noted that, where a licence is granted subject to CCTV system conditions, the 
licensing authority assumes the role and responsibility of ‘System Operator’. The role 
requires consideration of all guiding principles in this code. The failure to comply with these 
principles may be detrimental to the use of CCTV evidence in court as this may be raised 
within disclosure to the Crown Prosecution Service and may be taken into account. 
 
The Surveillance Camera Commissioner (SCC) has provided guidance on the Surveillance 
Camera Code of Practice in its ‘Passport to Compliance’ which provides guidance on the 
necessary stages when planning, implementing and operating a surveillance camera 
system to ensure it complies with the code. The Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) 
has also published a code of practice which, in this context, focuses on the data governance 
requirement associated with the use of CCTV such as data retention and disposal, which it 
is important to follow in order to comply with the data protection principles. The SCC 
provides a self-assessment tool to assist operators to ensure compliance with the principles 
set of in the Surveillance Camera Code of Practice. The SCC also operate a certification 
scheme; authorities that obtain this accreditation are able to clearly demonstrate that their 
systems conform to the SCC’s best practice and are fully compliant with the Code and 
increase public confidence that any risks to their privacy have been fully considered and 
mitigated.  
 
The Data Protection Act 2018 regulates the use of personal data. Part 2 of the Data 
Protection Act applies to the general processing of personal data, and references and 
supplements the General Data Protection Regulation. Licensing authorities, as data 
controllers, must comply with all relevant aspects of data protection law. Particular attention 
should be paid to the rights of individuals which include the right to be informed, of access 

214

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/surveillance-camera-code-of-practice
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/9/section/33/enacted
https://departmentfortransportuk.sharepoint.com/sites/BusTaxi/Taxis/Control%20of%20Taxis%20and%20PHV/STATUTORY%20GUIDANCE%20(2019)/FINAL%20VERSION%20DOCUMENTS%20(2019)/government/public
https://ico.org.uk/media/for-organisations/documents/1542/cctv-code-of-practice.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/surveillance-camera-code-of-practice-self-assessment-tool
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/surveillance-camera-code-of-practice-third-party-certification-scheme
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/surveillance-camera-code-of-practice-third-party-certification-scheme
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2018/12/contents/enacted


 

39 
 

and to erasure. The ICO has provided detailed guidance on how data controllers can ensure 
compliance with these. 
 
It is a further requirement of data protection law that before implementing a proposal that is 
likely to result in a high risk to the rights and freedoms of people, an impact assessment on 
the protection of personal data shall be carried out. The ICO recommends in guidance that 
if there is any doubt as to whether a Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA) is required 
one should be conducted to ensure compliance and encourage best practice. A DPIA will 
also help to assess properly the anticipated benefits of installing CCTV (to passengers and 
drivers) and the associated privacy risks; these risks might be mitigated by having 
appropriate privacy information and signage, secure storage and access controls, retention 
policies, training for staff how to use the system, etc.  
 
It is essential to ensure that all recordings made are secure and can only be accessed by 
those with legitimate grounds to do so. This would normally be the police if investigating an 
alleged crime or the licensing authority if investigating a complaint or data access request. 
Encryption of the recording to which the licensing authority, acting as the data controller, 
holds the key, mitigates this issue and protects against theft of the vehicle or device. It is 
one of the guiding principles of data protection legislation, that personal data (including in 
this context, CCTV recordings and other potentially sensitive passenger information) is 
handled securely in a way that ‘ensures appropriate security’, including protection against 
unauthorised or unlawful processing and against accidental loss, destruction or damage, 
using appropriate technical or organisational measures. 
 
All passengers must be made fully aware if CCTV is operating in a vehicle. Given that audio 
recording is considered to be more privacy intrusive, it is even more important that 
individuals are fully aware and limited only to occasions when passengers (or drivers) 
consider it necessary. The recording of audio should be used to provide an objective record 
of events such as disputes or inappropriate behaviour and must not be continuously active 
by default and should recognise the need for privacy of passengers’ private conversations 
between themselves. Activation of the audio recording capability of a system might be 
instigated when either the passenger or driver operates a switch or button. As well as clear 
signage in vehicles, information on booking systems should be introduced. This might be 
text on a website, scripts or automated messages on telephone systems; the Information 
Commissioner’s Office (ICO) has issued guidance on privacy information and the right to 
be informed on its website. 
  

215

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/individual-rights/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/security/


 

40 
 

Annex - Staying Safe: Guidance for Passengers 
 
Licensing authorities should provide guidance to assist passengers in identifying licensed 
vehicles and the increased risks of using unlicensed vehicles. The guidance might include 
advice on: 
 

• how to tell if a taxi or private hire vehicle is licensed. 
 
Educate the public in the differences between taxis and private hire vehicles e.g.: 
 

• a taxi can be flagged down or pre-booked. 
• a private hire vehicle that has not been pre-booked should not be used as it will not 

be insured and may not be licensed. 
• what a private hire vehicle should look like e.g. colour, signage, licence plates etc. 
• the benefit of pre-booking a return vehicle before going out. 
• arrange to be picked up from a safe meeting point. 
• requesting at the time of booking what the fare is likely to be. 

 
When using a private hire vehicle, passengers should always: 
 

• book with a licensed operator. 
• confirm their booking with the driver when s/he arrives. 
• note the licence number. 
• sit in the back, behind the driver. 
• let a third party know details of their journey. 

 
When using a taxi, passengers should where possible: 
 

• use a taxi rank and choose one staffed by taxi marshals if available. 
 

216



Licensing & Control Committee B

24 January 2022

Ward: All

Gambling Act 2005
Review of Statement of Licensing Policy

Report by the Interim Director for Communities

1.0 Summary

1.1 Members are invited to review the draft Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy in
relation to the Gambling Act 2005, and then invite Council to endorse its
recommendations and adopt an updated policy on 22 February 2022.

1.2 In accordance with the statutory requirements of the Gambling Act 2005 (the act)
the Council’s Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy has been reviewed following
consultation with the authorities, stakeholders, interested parties and public. The
consultation list is attached at Appendix A.

1.3 There are no fundamental changes to the policy, only minor amendments updating
the policy to reflect changes made to the Gambling Commission's Guidance to
licensing authorities in April 2021(and parts updated in May 2021). There are also
some minor changes to incorporate name & date changes.

1.4 The draft Gambling Policy is attached at Appendix B. All changes proposed to the
existing policy are highlighted in yellow. All changes suggested as a result of
representation during consultation, and which were deemed non-controversial, are
highlighted in orange.

2.0 Background

2.1 The Gambling Commission is the lead agency responsible for the administration
and enforcement of the Gambling Act 2005. Its responsibilities include the licensing
of operators & issuing of personal licences. Local authorities are responsible for the
licensing of premises used for gambling within their area, some local enforcement
and the issuing of permits.

2.2     The provisions of the act require the Council review its Statement of Gambling
Licensing Policy at least every three years.

2.3      Worthing Borough Council’s current statement of Licensing Policy under the
Gambling Act 2005 was endorsed by this committee and subsequently approved by
the Council in October 2019. It was approved following an extensive consultation

217

Agenda Item 5



process. The policy was in accordance with both the act and the statutory guidance
issued by the Gambling Commission that was current at the time.

2.3 The policy, along with the Gambling Commission’s guidance, provides the
framework for officer and member decision making on applications for gambling
premises licences under the act and outlines to applicant’s and current operators
the council’s expectations and business’ obligations.

2.4 As stated the current policy has only been in place since October 2019. However,
the Gambling Commission has requested all Licensing Authorities synchronise their
review periods with all policies running until 31 January 2022 and to accommodate
this request the Policy is being reviewed again and this opportunity has been taken
to update and modernise the policy.

3.0 Consultation

3.1 Between 1st October until 29th October 2021 the draft policy was the subject of an
extensive consultation exercise which included Members, Officers, the general
public, resident groups, voluntary groups, trade & stakeholder groups and the
Responsible Authorities. A list of those directly consulted is attached.

3.2 Only four separate responses were received. These were from:

Stakeholders:
● Jim Bartlett - WSCC Safety & Wellbeing
● Mel Shaw - Early Help & Neighbourhoods Lead, A&W Councils
● Richard Tuset - Chief Executive's Office, A&W Councils

Interested Parties:
● Friends of Shoreham Fort

3.3 Neither Sussex Police or the Gambling Commission made representation

3.4 WSCC Safety & Wellbeing team stated they had no issues or comments to make.

3.5 Mel Shaw - Early Help & Neighbourhoods Lead at A&W Councils provided contact
details of a number of Gambling Addiction Groups and the information provided has
been incorporated into the draft policy at section 30.11.

3.6 Richard Tuset of the Chief Executive's Office at A&W Councils made some
comments and his email is attached at Appendix C

3.7 Sharon Penfold, Secretary of Friends of Shoreham Fort, made some
non-contentious suggestions regarding the layout of the policy and her suggestions
are incorporated.

4.       Consideration

4.1 Under the act rights of representation are granted to Responsible Authorities (the
Council as Licensing Authority, Gambling Commission, Police, Fire & Rescue

218



Service, Planning Service, Environmental Health, HM Customs and Excise), and
Interested Parties (person living close enough to be likely to be effected or having
business interests that might be affected).  Since the Gambling Act came into force
in 2007 none of the applications received by this Licensing Authority, under the act,
have given rise to any representations, and no licensing hearings have therefore
been necessary.

4.2 Complaints regarding low level illegal gambling taking place at unlicensed premises
are occasionally received by this authority and the Gambling Commission. However,
no complaints regarding licensed gambling premises and no calls for a review of a
premises licence have been received by this authority since the Act was introduced.

4.3 The very minimum of amendments have been made to the draft policy that went out
to consultation.

4.4 Only four representations were received regarding the draft policy during
consultation and none of the comments were contentious.

4.5 None of the changes made are considered to change the spirit or direction of the
policy. The Gambling Act 2005 has not proven to have caused major concerns to
this Licensing Authority. No evidence has emerged that the current statement of
Licensing Policy is not appropriate and the changes, for the reasons detailed above,
are therefore recommended.

5.0 Legal

5.1 Section 349 of the Act requires the Council prepare and publish a statement of
principles that will apply in exercising its functions under the Act. This statement of
principles (the policy) should be applied for a period not exceeding three years.
There is no bar to more frequent reviews of the policy and changes can be made to
the policy if necessary for example if there are any significant changes to the
legislation.

5.2. Section 154 of the Act means that only Full Council can approve this policy as the
function cannot be delegated to the Licensing & Control Committee. However, the
Council may take into consideration any recommendations made by the Committee.

5.3      In determining this matter the principles of the Human Rights Act 1998 must be
taken into consideration and the convention rights of both individuals and
businesses given due weight.

5.4     Members must consider each licensing matter on its own merits, and in accordance
with the principles of natural justice, as well as the provisions of the Gambling Act
2005. All relevant factors must be taken into account, and all irrelevant factors must
be disregarded.

5.5     All licensing matters, before Committee, must be considered against the backdrop of
anti-discriminatory legislation, such as the Equality Act 2010 and also in accordance
with the Council's stated policy on Equal Opportunities.

219



5.6     In accordance with Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 the Council
is under a duty to exercise its functions with due regard to the likely effect on, and
the need to do all it reasonably can to prevent, crime and disorder in its areas.  The
possible crime and disorder implications are clearly relevant factors in the
consideration of all applications and this is re-emphasised by the Gambling Act
2005 itself.  In giving "due regard" to these possible implications members will
consider and weigh up all the information available and representations made,
including those from interested parties and the responsible authorities particularly
the Police.

6.0 Implications

6.1 There are no significant equal opportunities or environmental implications. Crime
and disorder considerations are included in the Policy.

7.0 Recommendation

7.1 The Committee is asked to consider and recommend to the full Council the
adoption of the attached draft Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy.

Tina Favier
Interim Director for Communities

Principal Author and Contact Officer:
Simon Jones
Public Health & Regulation – Team Leader Licensing
Tel: 01273 263191 or simon.jones@adur-worthing.gov.uk

Portland House, Worthing

Ref: SJ/Lic.U/WBC Gambling Policy Review
Date:  21 December 2021.

Background Papers:

● Gambling Act 2005
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2005/19/contents

● Guidance issued to Licensing Authorities (April 2021)
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-aut
horities

● Adur & Worthing Community Profile
https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/media/media,123248,en.pdf

220

mailto:simon.jones@adur-worthing.gov.uk
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2005/19/contents
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities
https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/media/media,123248,en.pdf


Appendices:
● Appendix A - Consultation List
● Appendix B - Draft Statement of Licensing Policy
● Appendix C – Representation received during consultation

221



Schedule of Other Matters

1.0 Council Priority

1.1 Statutory requirement.

2.0 Specific Action Plans

2.1 Matter considered and no issues identified

3.0 Sustainability Issues

3.1 Matter considered and no issues identified

4.0 Equality Issues

4.1 Matter considered and no issues identified

5.0 Community Safety Issues (Section 17)

5.1 Matter considered in the body of the report.

6.0 Human Rights Issues

6.1 Matter considered and no issues identified

7.0 Reputation

7.1 Matter considered and no issues identified

8.0 Consultations

8.1 List of those consulted included at appendix A.

9.0 Risk Assessment

9.1 Matter considered and no issues identified

10.0 Health & Safety Issues

10.1 Matter considered and no issues identified

11.0 Procurement Strategy

11.1 Matter considered and no issues identified

12.0 Partnership Working

12.1 Matter considered and no issues identified

222



Gambling Act 2005

DRAFT STATEMENT OF
GAMBLING LICENSING POLICY

CONSULTATION
1st October -  29th October 2021

223



Public Consultation

● Details of the consultation were published on the Adur & Worthing Councils’ Website at:

o https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/

o https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/licensing-consultations/licensing-act-2003/#appli

cations-worthing

Responsible Authorities

● Licensing Authority – Worthing Borough Council

● Gambling Commission

● H M Revenue & Customs

● Sussex Police - West Downs Division

● West Sussex Fire and Rescue Service

● West Sussex County Council  - Head of Child Protection

● Adur & Worthing Councils – Planning Services

● Adur & Worthing Councils – Public Health & Regulation Environmental Team

Other Authorities

● Adur & Worthing Councils – Community Safety & Anti-Social Behaviour Team

● Adur & Worthing Councils – Licensing Team

● Worthing Town Centre Initiative

● Worthing Street Pastors

● Worthing Pubwatch

● Worthing Late Night Partnership

● West Sussex County Council - Community Safety & Wellbeing

● West Sussex County Council – Drug & Alcohol Support

WBC Licensing & Control Committee

● Steve Wills (Chair)

● Charles James (Vice Chair)

● Mike Barrett

● Ferdousi Henna Chowdhury

● Dan Coxhill

● Cathy Glynn-Davies

● Margaret Howard

● Kevin Jenkins

● Sean McDonald

● Richard Mulholland

● Richard Nowak

● Hazel Thorpe

● John Turley

● Nicola Waight

● Rosey Whorlow

224

https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/
https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/licensing-consultations/licensing-act-2003/#applications-worthing
https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/licensing-consultations/licensing-act-2003/#applications-worthing


● All Adur & Worthing Councillors via the Members Bulletin

WBC Officers

● Tina Favier – Interim Director for Communities

● Ed Hele – Public Health & Regulation Manager

Industry Consultees

● Adur & Worthing Chamber of Commerce

● William Hill

● Ladbrooks

● Buzz Bingo

● Blake Morgan LLP

● Poppleston Allen LLP

● Doug Simmonds

● John Gaunt LLP

● Lockett LLP

● WS Law

● LB Law

● Greene King

● Regency Corporation

● TLT Solicitors LLP

● Shoreham Fort

● Shoreham Centre

● Proto Restaurant Group

● MBPLC

● Lidl

Resident Groups

● Becket Residents' Association

● Broadwater (Worthing) Community Association

● Charmandean Residents' Association

● Findon Valley Residents' Association (FVRA)

● Goring Residents' Association

● Heene Residents' Association

● High Street Tarring Residents Association

● High Salvington Residents' Association

● South Broadwater Residents' Association

Other Consultees
● GamCare

● Citizens Advice

● Gamblers Anonymous

● Money Advice Trust

225



This page is intentionally left blank



GAMBLING ACT 2005

DRAFT STATEMENT OF GAMBLING LICENSING
POLICY AND PRINCIPLES

January 2022 (3)

August 2021(1)

1
227



Table of Contents

PART A – THE GAMBLING ACT 2005

1 The Licensing Objectives 4
2 Introduction 4
3 Statement of Policy and Consultation 6
4 Declaration 7
5 Licensable Activities 7
6 Responsible Authorities 7
7 Interested Parties 8
8 Exchange of Information 9
9 Data Protection 9
10 Enforcement 10

PART B – PROMOTING THE LICENSING OBJECTIVES

11 Crime and Disorder 11
12 Fair and Open 11
13 Children and other Vulnerable Persons 12

PART C – PREMISES LICENCES

14 Premises Licence
● Definition of Premises
● Local Risk Assessment
● Local Area Profile
● Conditions
● Door Supervision

15

15 Making Application
● Advertising
● Sending to Responsible Authorities
● Making a Representation
● Irrelevant, Frivolous and Vexatious Representations
● Registering to speak, or be represented, at a Committee Hearing
● Mediation
● Licence Reviews
● Appeals

20

16 Casinos 24
17 Bingo Premises 24
18 Betting Premises 25
19 Adult Gaming Centres (AGC) 26
20 Licensed Family Entertainment Centres (FEC) 27
21 Demand 28

2
228



PART D – PERMITS, NOTICES & REGISTRATIONS

22 Statement of Principles 29
23 Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Permits (UFEC) 29
24 Gaming Machine Permits for Premises Licensed for Alcohol

● Notification
● Permit

32

25 Prize Gaming Permits 33
26 Club Gaming & Club Machine Permits 35
27 Temporary Use Notices 36
28 Occasional Use Notices 37
29 Small Society Lottery Registrations 37

PART E – HEALTH & WELLBEING

30 Gambling related Harm & Its Effects 40

PART F - MISCELLANEOUS

31 Travelling Fairs 46
32 Gaming Machines 46
33 Gaming in Alcohol Licensed Premises 47
34 Human Rights 48
35 Duplication 48
36 Administration, Exercise and Delegation of Functions 49
37 Policy Review & Support 49

APPENDICES

Appendix A: Information & Guidance
● Gambling Act 2005
● Gambling Commission Guidance to Local Authorities
● Categories of Gaming Machines
● Gaming Machine Entitlement

Appendix B: Summary of Terms

3
229



Part A – The Gambling Act 2005

1. THE LICENSING OBJECTIVES

1.1 In exercising its functions under the Gambling Act 2005 Worthing Borough
Council, as the Licensing Authority, must have regard to the Licensing
Objectives as set out in section 1 of the Gambling Act 2005 (The Act).  The
three Licensing Objectives are:

● Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder, or being used to support crime

● Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way
● Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or

exploited by gambling

It should be noted that the Gambling Commission has stated: “The
requirement in relation to children is explicitly to protect them from being
harmed or exploited by gambling”.

1.2 This Licensing Authority is aware that, as per Section 153 of the Act, it has a
legal duty placed on it to aim to permit gambling, in so far as it is considered
to be reasonably consistent with the pursuit of the licensing objectives. The
effect of this duty is that the licensing authority must approach its functions in
a way that seeks to regulate gambling by using its powers, for example,
powers to attach conditions to licences, to moderate its impact on the
licensing objectives rather than by starting out to prevent it altogether. In
making decisions about premises licences and temporary use notices it will
aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as it thinks it is:

● in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the
Gambling Commission

● in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling
Commission

● reasonably consistent with the Licensing Objectives and
● in accordance with the authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy

2. INTRODUCTION

2.1 This Policy Statement is produced in accordance with the requirements of the
Gambling Act 2005 (the Act), the Gambling Act 2005 (Licensing Authority
Policy Statement) (England and Wales) Regulations 2006, Licence
Conditions, Codes of Practice (LCCP and the Gambling Commission’s
Guidance to Local Authorities (April 2021 available from:
www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk. The Statement sets out the principles the
Council will apply when carrying out its gambling licensing functions.  In
preparing this Statement the Licensing Authority has consulted widely with

4
230

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/


statutory bodies, stakeholders and members of the public. This policy will be
operational from 22 February 2022.

2.2 All references to the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for local authorities
refer to the Guidance published in April 2021(and parts updated in May 2021)
available from www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk

2.3 Worthing is situated in the County of West Sussex which contains seven
Councils in total; Worthing is a compact urban seaside borough. It is one of
the largest towns in West Sussex with a population of nearly 105,000 covering
an area of 3300 hectares. Adur District Council and Worthing Borough
Council are served by a single officer structure. However, they remain
separate Licensing Authorities with separate licensing policies that reflect the
needs and aspirations of those living and working within their own areas.

2.4 Under the provisions of the Act the Gambling Commission is responsible for
determining applications for Operating Licences and Personal Licenses, whilst
the Council, as the Licensing Authority, is responsible for determining
applications for Premises Licences and Permits.

2.5 In accordance with Section 153 of the Act the presumption should be for the
Licensing Authority to permit the use of a premise for gambling, provided that
this is consistent with paragraphs 2.6 and 2.7 below, and with the remainder
of this Policy Statement. Each application will be considered on its own
merits.

2.6 In exercising its functions the Licensing Authority will have regard to the
Licensing Objectives set out in Section 1 of the Act and detailed in Section 1
of this Policy.

2.7 The Licensing Authority will also give due regard to any relevant guidance or
code of practice issued by the Gambling Commission. The Commission has
the power to issue two types of code of practice. The first is a social
responsibility (SR) code. A SR code must be followed and has the force of a
licence condition. The Commission may also issue ordinary codes (OC) which
are intended to set out best industry practice. They are not mandatory but
operators are expected to follow them unless they have alternative
arrangements in place that they can demonstrate are equally effective.

2.8 Under the 2005 Act the Licensing Authority has a legal duty to review its
statement of policy at intervals of at least every 3 years and will seek to obtain
consensus regarding the main elements of this policy amongst stakeholder
groups, to provide partnership working to achieve high standards and good
practice.

2.9 The Licensing Authority, in addition to administering the Gambling Act 2005, is
also responsible for licensing a wide range of other activities including
premises and persons under the Licensing Act 2003 for alcohol, entertainment

5
231

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk


and late night refreshment; Taxis (Hackney Carriages & Private Hire), Street
Trading, Animal Establishments, Charitable Collections, Scrap Metal Dealers,
Sex Establishments, Skin Piercing, Tattoo Parlours and various other
licensable activities.

3. POLICY STATEMENT AND CONSULTATION

3.1 Worthing Borough Council, as the Licensing Authority, is required by the
Gambling Act 2005 to publish a statement of the principles that it proposes to
apply when exercising its functions. As stated this statement of Policy must be
re-published at least every three years but can be reviewed sooner if required
and any amended parts re-consulted upon. The statement must then be
re-published.

3.2 There are a number of groups who have a stake in the gambling industry,
including providers, customers, residents and enforcers, all who have views and
concerns that require consideration as part of the gambling licensing function.

3.3 Before publishing the original Policy Statement in 2006, the Licensing Authority
consulted with the Gambling Commission, HM Revenue & Customs, Sussex
Police, West Sussex Fire & Rescue Service, the members of the Adur &
Worthing Safer Communities Partnership, Head of Child Protection at West
Sussex County Council, The Drug & Alcohol Action Team and the Head of
Community Safety at West Sussex County Council and bodies representing local
holders of premises licences, personal licences, businesses and residents in the
Borough.

3.4 These organisations and individuals have been consulted when the policy has
been reviewed previously. This latest draft of the policy contains the minimum of
amendments and no changes to the intent or direction of the policy are included.
As it contains such minor amendments consultation on this occasion was limited
to the responsible authorities and public and for a limited period of four weeks
between 1 October 2021 and 29 October 2021.

3.5 The Licensing Authority recognises that proper weight needs to be given to the
views of all the persons/bodies consulted before this Policy Statement takes
effect on 22 February 2022. It will remain in force for a period of not more than
three years and will be subject to review and further consultation prior to 31
January 2025.

3.6 The full schedule of comments and amendments consequential to the
consultation will be available by request to the Public Health & Regulation -
Licensing Unit, Adur & Worthing Councils or downloadable from the website at
www.adur-worthing.gov.uk

3.7 This policy will be subject to approval at a meeting of the full Council following
consultation and consideration of any representations by the Licensing & Control
Committee on this version.

6
232

http://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk


4. DECLARATION

4.1 In producing the final licensing policy statement, Worthing Borough Council,
as the Licensing Authority, declares that it has had regard to the Licensing
Objectives of the Gambling Act 2005, the guidance issued by the Gambling
Commission, and any responses from those consulted on the policy
statement.

5. LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

5.1. This policy related to all those licensable premises, notices, permits and
registrations falling within the provisions of the Act and delegated to the
Licensing Authority including:

● Casino Premises Licences
● Bingo Premises Licences
● Betting Premises Licences
● Track (Horse and Dog) Premises Licences
● Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licences
● Family Entertainment Centre Premises Licences

● Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Permits
● Club Machine Permits
● Club Gaming Permits
● Prize Gaming Permits
● Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits
● Small Society Lottery Registrations
● Temporary Use Notices

5.2 The functions of the Licensing Authority under the Act may be carried out by
the Licensing & Control Committee, a Sub-Committee or by one or more
Officers acting under delegated authority.

6. RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES

6.1 The Responsible Authorities, as defined in Section 157 of the Act, are:

● The Licensing Authority
● Gambling Commission
● Sussex Police
● West Sussex Fire and Rescue Service
● Adur & Worthing Councils’ – Planning Services
● Adur & Worthing Councils’ – Environmental Health
● West Sussex County Council’s Head of Children’s Safeguarding
● HM Customs and Excise
● Any other person prescribed in regulations by the Secretary of State

7
233



Responsible Authority for Child Protection

6.2 The Licensing Authority is required by regulations to state the principles it will
apply to exercising its powers under Section 157 of the Act to designate in
writing a body which is competent to advise the authority on the protection of
children from harm.  These principles are:

● The need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole
of the licensing authority’s area.

● The need for consistency with the existing arrangements under the
Licensing Act 2003

Worthing Borough Council has designated the Head of Children’s
Safeguarding at West Sussex County Council.
(Email: cpu.team@westsussex.gcsx.gov.uk )

7. INTERESTED PARTIES

7.1 Interested parties can make representations about premises licence
applications or call for a review of an existing licence.  The Act defines an
interested party as a person who in the opinion of the licensing authority:

a) Lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the
authorised activities or

b) Has business interest that might be affected by the authorised activities
or

c) Represents persons in either of these two groups.
d) Who is democratically elected such as a Councillor or MP

7.2 The Licensing Authority is required by regulations to state the principles it will
apply in determining whether a person is an interested party. The Licensing
Authority has adopted the principles of natural justice and will decide each
case on its merits.

7.3 When considering whether persons are interested parties in relation to any
individual application the following will be considered:

● The size and nature of the premises
● The distance from the person making the representation
● The potential impact of the premises (number of customers, routes

likely to be taken by customers)
● The circumstances of the complainant (the Council may conclude that

“sufficiently close” has a different meaning for, for example, a private
resident and a residential hostel for vulnerable adults)

● Persons representing a) or b) above may include Councillors, MP’s,
Trade Unions and residents and tenants Associations. The Council
reserves the right to require written evidence that a person does
represent interested parties.

8
234

mailto:cpu.team@westsussex.gcsx.gov.uk


7.4 Councillors may represent interested parties’ views but care should be taken
that the Councillors are not part of the Licensing & Control Committee dealing
with the licence application. Applicants should contact the Licensing Unit at
Adur & Worthing Councils in the first instance rather than approach their
Councillor directly.

8. EXCHANGE OF INFORMATION

8.1 The Licensing Authority is required to include the principles to be applied by
the authority in exercising its functions under sections 29 and 30 of the Act
with respect to the exchange of information between it and the Gambling
Commission, and the functions under section 350 of the Act with the respect
to the exchange of information between it and the other persons listed in
Schedule 6 to the Act.

8.2 The Licensing Authority will also have regard to any Guidance issued by the
Gambling Commission on this matter, as well as any relevant regulations
issued by the Secretary of State under the powers provided in the Gambling
Act 2005.

8.3 In exercising its functions under the Act the Licensing Authority has
established protocols with the Commission to ensure efficient and effective
exchange of information.  The existing protocols established in connection
with the Licensing Act 2003 are utilised for information exchange with other
regulatory bodies.  All information exchange is in accordance with the
requirements of the Data Protection Act, General Data Protection Regulations
(GDPR) and the Freedom of Information Act.  The name and address of those
making representations will usually be disclosed to applicants. However, they
may be withheld from publication on the grounds of personal safety where the
Licensing Authority has been asked to do so by and or on behalf of such
persons and the Licensing Authority considers the request to be justified.

9. DATA PROTECTION

9.1 The Data Protection Act 2018 and the General Data Protection Regulation
(GDPR) impacts on how the Licensing Authority collects, stores and uses the
information provided to us by applicants and others; individuals or
organisations.

9.2 Information as to how data protection legislation affects you and how the
Licensing Authority uses your information, please see our Privacy Statement
which is available at:

● https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/licensing-and-permits/privacy-notice/

The Gambling Commission have issued a statement on GDPR for gambling
businesses / operators (updated April 2021) which is available to view by
following the link below

9
235

https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/licensing-and-permits/privacy-notice/


● https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/gui
de/gambling-regulation-and-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr

10. ENFORCEMENT

10.1 The Licensing Authority is required by regulation under the Gambling Act
2005 to state the principles to be applied by the authority in exercising the
functions under Part 15 of the Act with respect to the inspection of premises;
and the powers under section 346 of the Act to institute criminal proceedings
in respect of the offences specified.

10.2 The Licensing Authority recognises that once licensed it is essential that
premises are maintained and run in accordance with the requirements of the
Act (and associated regulations) and any conditions on the licence.  The
Licensing Authority has extended the existing enforcement liaison
arrangements with other relevant statutory bodies to incorporate these
responsibilities.  Enforcement action in respect of the legislative requirements
is in accordance with the approved Public Health & Regulation Enforcement
Policy, which is in accordance with the Enforcement Concordat.  All
interventions are:

i. Proportionate and appropriate to the risks posed by any problem
ii. Consistent and fair in their application of standards and requirements
iii. Transparent and open
iv. Targeted and focused on the highest risk problems

10.3 As per the Gambling Commission’s Guidance the Licensing Authority will
endeavour to avoid duplication with other regulatory regimes so far as
possible.

10.4 The Licensing Authority has adopted and implemented a risk-based
inspection programme, based on;

• The Licensing Objectives
• Relevant codes of practice
• Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission, in particular at Part 36
• The principles set out in this Statement of Licensing Policy

10.5 The main enforcement and compliance role for this Licensing Authority in
terms of the Gambling Act 2005 is to ensure compliance with the premises
licences and other permissions which it authorises.  The Gambling
Commission is the enforcement body for:

● Operating Licences
● Personal Licences
● The manufacture, supply or repair of gaming machines
● Remote gambling

10
236

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/guide/gambling-regulation-and-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/guide/gambling-regulation-and-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr


Part B – Promoting the Licensing Objectives

11. CRIME & DISORDER

Preventing Gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, or being
associated with crime or disorder, or being used to support crime.

11.1 The Licensing Authority places huge importance on the prevention of crime &
disorder.  A high standard of control is expected to be exercised over licensed
premises.

11.2 In accordance with Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 the
Licensing Authority is under a duty to exercise its functions with due regard to
the likely effect on, and the need to do all it reasonably can to prevent, crime
and disorder in its areas. The possible crime and disorder implications are
clearly relevant factors in the consideration of all applications and this is
re-emphasised by the Gambling Act 2005 itself, the Guidance issued by the
Gambling Commission and this policy.  The Licensing Authority will give "due
regard" to all possible implications and its Licensing & Control Committee will
always consider and weigh up all the information available and
representations made, including those from interested parties and the
Responsible Authorities particularly the Police.

11.3 Applicants are encouraged to discuss their proposals with the appropriate
Responsible Authorities before making a formal application.

11.4 When considering licence applications the Licensing Authority will particularly
take into account the following:-

● The location of the premises
● The design and layout of the premises
● The adequacy of security features such as CCTV
● Where premises are subject to age restrictions, the procedure in place

to conduct age verification checks

11.5 The Licensing Authority will consider carefully the views of the Police as to
whether specific controls need to be applied to prevent a premise from being
a source of crime and disorder.

12. FAIR & OPEN

Ensuring Gambling is conducted in a Fair and Open Way

12.1 The Gambling Commission does not generally expect Licensing Authorities to
become involved in this objective as such matters will normally relate to the

11
237



operation of the business, and therefore subject to the Operating Licence, to
the actions of an individual, and therefore subject to the Personal Licence.
The matters will therefore generally fall within the Commission’s remit.  The
Licensing Authority will seek to establish an effective channel for the
exchange of information with the Commission to ensure that intelligence is
shared appropriately.

13. CHILDREN & VULNERABLE PERSONS

Protecting Children and other Vulnerable Persons from Being Harmed or
Exploited by Gambling

13.1 The Licensing Authority notes from the Commission guidance that, with
limited exceptions, the intention of the Gambling Act is that children and
young persons should not be permitted to gamble and should be prevented
from entering those gambling premises, or parts of premises, which are adult
only environments.

13.2 The Act provides the following definition for a child and a young adult in
Section 45:

Meaning of “child” and “young person”
(1) In this Act “child” means an individual who is less than 16 years

old
(2) In this Act “young person” means an individual who is not a child

but who is less than 18 years old.
For the purpose of this section, protection of children will encompass
both child and young person as defined by the Act.

13.3 The Licensing Authority may seek to limit the advertising for premises so that
gambling products are not aimed at children or advertised in such a way that
makes them particularly attractive to children.

13.4 The Licensing Authority may consult with West Sussex Child Protection
Agency on any application that may give cause for concern over access for
children or vulnerable persons.

13.5 The Licensing Authority will also ensure that where category C or above
machines are on offer in premises to which children are admitted:

● all such machines are located in an area of the premises which is
separated from the remainder of the premises by a physical barrier
which is effective to prevent access other than through a designated
entrance;

● only adults are admitted to the area where these machines are
located;

● access to the area where the machines are located is supervised;
● the area where these machines are located is arranged so that it can

be observed by the staff or the licence holder; and

12
238



● at the entrance to and inside any such areas there are prominently
displayed notices indicating that access to the area is prohibited to
persons under 18.

● these considerations will apply to premises including buildings where
multiple premises licences are applicable. The Council will judge each
separate application on its own merits before deciding whether to
impose conditions to protect children on particular categories of
premises.

13.6 The Licensing Authority will require that any gambling establishment must
give space to advertisements publicising details of organisations and support
groups providing assistance to anyone addicted to gambling.

13.7 The Licensing Authority considers that specific measures such as supervision
of entrances, segregation of gambling areas, and supervision of gaming
machines may be necessary in particular categories of premises but each
case will be considered on its merits.  Any condition imposed will be
proportionate and directly related to the scale and type of the premises and
the type of licence applied for.

13.8 The Licensing Authority notes that the Act does not seek to prohibit particular
groups of adults from gambling in the same way that it prohibits children.  The
Commission offers no definition of vulnerable persons but it is assumed that
this group includes people who gamble more than they want to, people who
gamble beyond their means, and people who may not be able to make
informed or balanced decisions about gambling due to mental impairment,
alcohol, or drugs.  The Licensing Authority will consider on a case by case
basis whether any special considerations apply in relation to the protection of
vulnerable persons.

13.9 In the case of premises licences, the Licensing Authority is aware of the
extensive requirements set out for operators in the Gambling Commission’s
Code of Practice. In this document, the Gambling Commission clearly
describe the policies and procedures that operators should put in place
regarding:

● Combating problem gambling
● Access to gambling by children and young persons
● Information on how to gamble responsibly and help for problem

gamblers
● Customer interaction
● Self-exclusion
● Employment of children and young persons
● Provision of credit by licensees and the use of credit cards
● Money lending between customers

13.10 All applicants should familiarise themselves with the operator licence
conditions and codes of practice relating to this objective, and determine if
these policies and procedures are appropriate in their circumstances. The

13
239



Licensing Authority will communicate any concerns to the Gambling
Commission about any absence of this required information.

13.11 Operators of all non-remote casino and bingo and betting licences (except
those at a track) and holders of gaming machine general operating licences
for adult gaming centres must offer self-exclusion schemes to customers
requesting such a facility.

13.12 Children are permitted to enter family entertainment centres and may play
category D machines.

14
240



PART C – PREMISES LICENCES

14. PREMISES LICENCES

14.1 The Licensing Authority will issue premises licences allowing premises to be
used for certain types of gambling. In accordance with section 150 of the Act,
premises licences can authorise the provision of facilities on:

• casino premises
• bingo premises
• betting premises, including tracks and premises used by betting

intermediaries
• adult gaming centre premises
• family entertainment centre premises

By distinguishing between premises types the Act makes it clear that the
primary gambling activity of the premises should be that described. Thus, in a
bingo premises, the primary activity should be bingo, with gaming machines
as an ancillary offer on the premises. This principle also applies to betting
premises licences. The latest issue of the Licence Conditions and Codes of
Practice sets out in full the requirements on operators. Subject to the gaming
machine entitlements which various types of licence bring with them (and
except in the case of tracks), the Act does not permit premises to be licensed
for more than one of the above activities.

14.2 Premises licences are subject to the permissions/restrictions set out in the
Gambling Act 2005 and regulations, as well as specific mandatory and default
conditions which are detailed in regulations issued by the Secretary of State.
Licensing Authorities are able to exclude default conditions and also attach
other conditions, where it is believed to be necessary and proportionate.

14.3 Applicants should also be aware that the Gambling Commission has issued
Codes of Practice for each interest area for which they must have regard. The
Licensing Authority will also have regard to these Codes of Practice.

Definition of Premises

14.4 Premises are defined in the Act as ‘any place’. Different premises licences
cannot apply in respect of a single premise at different times. However, it is
possible for a single building to be subject to more than one premises licence,
provided they are for different parts of the building and the different parts of
the building can be reasonably regarded as being different premises. Whether
different parts of a building can properly be regarded as being separate
premises will always be a question of fact in the circumstances.

15
241



14.5 The Licensing Authority will take care in considering applications for multiple
licences for a building and those relating to a discrete part of a building used
for other (non-gambling) purposes. In particular the Licensing Authority will
assess entrances and exits from parts of a building covered by one or more
licences to satisfy itself that they are separate and identifiable so that the
separation of different premises is not compromised and that people do not
drift into a gambling area.

14.6 The Licensing Authority will pay particular attention to applications where
access to the licensed premises is through other premises (which themselves
may be licensed or unlicensed). Issues that the Licensing Authority will
consider before granting such applications include whether children can gain
access, compatibility of the two establishments; and the ability to comply with
the requirements of the Act. In addition, an overriding consideration will be
whether, taken as a whole, the co-location of the licensed premises with other
facilities has the effect of creating an arrangement that otherwise would, or
should, be prohibited under the Act.

14.7 An applicant cannot obtain a full premises licence until they have the right to
occupy the premises to which the application relates. A licence to use
premises for gambling will only be issued in relation to premises that are
ready to be used for gambling, that is, not to premises still under construction.

14.8 The Licensing Authority is aware that demand issues (e.g. the likely demand
or need for gambling facilities in an area) cannot be considered with regard to
the location of premises but that considerations in terms of the licensing
objectives can. The Licensing Authority will pay particular attention to the
protection of children and vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited
by gambling, as well as issues of crime and disorder.

14.9 With regard to these objectives, it is the Licensing Authority’s policy, upon
receipt of any relevant representations, to look at specific location issues,
including:

● the possible impact a gambling premises may have on any premises
that provide services to children or young people, i.e. a school, or
vulnerable adult centres in the area;

● the possible impact a gambling premises may have on residential
areas where there may be a high concentration of families with
children;

● the size of the premises and the nature of the activities taking place;
● any levels of organised crime in the area.

14.10 In order for location to be considered, the Licensing Authority will need to be
satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that the particular location of the
premises would be harmful to the Licensing Objectives.

16
242



Local Risk Assessment

14.11 The Gambling Commission’s Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice
(LCCP), under Section 10, requires licensees assess the local risks to the
Licensing Objectives posed by the provision of gambling facilities at their
premises and have policies, procedures and control measures to mitigate
those risks. In making risk assessments, licensees must take into account
relevant matters identified in this policy.

14.12 The LCCP goes on to state that licensees must review (and update as
necessary) their local risk assessments:

● to take account of significant changes in local circumstance, including
those identified in this policy;

● when there are significant changes at a licensee’s premises that may
affect their mitigation of local risks;

● when applying for a variation of a premises licence; and
● in any case, undertake a local risk assessment when applying for a

new premises licence.

14.13 The Licensing Authority will expect the local risk assessment to consider as a
minimum:

● whether the premises is in an area of deprivation;
● whether the premises is in an area subject to high levels of crime

and/or disorder;
● the demographics of the area in relation to vulnerable groups;
● the location of services for children such as schools, playgrounds, toy

shops, leisure centres and other areas where children will gather.
● significant presence of young children, both residents and visitors;
● high unemployment area;
● nearby homeless hostels;
● nearby gambling, alcohol, drug or mental health support facility;
● the area has a high number of rough sleepers/homeless people;
● the area has a specific ethnic population;
● pawn broker/pay day loan businesses in the vicinity;
● other gambling premises in the vicinity.

Information around these groups is available in the Adur & Worthing
Community Profile

14.14 In any case, the local risk assessment should show how vulnerable people,
including people with gambling dependencies, are protected.

14.15 Other matters that the assessment may include:
● The training of staff in brief intervention when customers show signs of

excessive gambling, the ability of staff to offer brief intervention and
how the manning of premises affects this.

● Details as to the location and coverage of working CCTV cameras, and
how the system will be monitored.

17
243



● The layout of the premises so that staff have an unobstructed view of
persons using the premises.

● The number of staff that will be available on the premises at any one
time. If at any time that number is one, confirm the supervisory and
monitoring arrangements when that person is absent from the licensed
area or distracted from supervising the premises and observing those
persons using the premises.

● Arrangements for monitoring and dealing with under age persons and
vulnerable persons, which may include dedicated and trained
personnel, leaflets, posters, self-exclusion schemes, window displays
and advertisements not to entice passers-by, etc.

● The provision of signage and documents relating to games rules,
gambling care providers and other relevant information is provided in
both English and the other prominent first language for that locality.

● Where the application is for a betting premises licence, other than in
respect of a track, the location and extent of any part of the premises
which will be used to provide facilities for gambling in reliance on the
licence.

14.16 Such information may be used to inform the decision the Licensing Authority
makes about whether to grant the licence, to grant the licence with special
conditions or to refuse the application.

14.17 This policy does not preclude any application being made and each
application will be decided on its merits, with the onus being upon the
applicant to show how the concerns can be overcome.

14.18 The Licensing Authority will expect Operators ensure that a copy of each
individual premises’ Risk Assessment is held at the licensed premises and is
readily available to inspecting Authorised Officers

Local Area Profile

14.19 Each locality has its own character and challenges. In order to assist
applicants, where there is an issue in a local area which impacts on how the
applicant should complete their risk assessment, the Council has published a
local area profile. The latest Adur & Worthing Community Profile 2014 can be
viewed at: https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/media/media,123248,en.pdf

14.20 The local area profile should be given careful consideration when making an
application. Applicants may be asked to attend a meeting with licensing
officers to discuss the profiles, appropriate measures to mitigate risk in the
area and how they might be relevant to their application. The local area profile
will be presented to any subsequent licensing sub-committee when they
determine an application that has received representations.

14.21 The Licensing Authority recognises that it cannot insist on applicants using the
local area profile when completing their risk assessments. However, an

18
244

https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/media/media,123248,en.pdf


applicant who decides to disregard the profile may face additional
representations and the expense of a hearing as a result.

Conditions

14.22 The Secretary of State has set mandatory conditions and default conditions
and the Gambling Commission has set Licence Conditions and Codes of
Practice which are necessary for the general good conduct of gambling
premises. Therefore, in the majority of cases it is unlikely that the Licensing
Authority will need to impose individual conditions imposing a more restricted
regime in relation to matters that have already been dealt with.

14.23 Where there are specific risks or problems associated with a particular locality,
or specific premises, or class of premises, the Licensing Authority will attach
individual conditions to address these.

14.24 Any conditions attached to a licence issued by the Licensing Authority will be
proportionate and will be:

● relevant to the need to make the proposed building suitable as a
gambling facility

● directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied for
and/or related to the area where the premises is based

● fairly and reasonably related to the scale, type and location of premises
● consistent with the licensing objectives, and
● reasonable in all other respects.

14.25 Decisions about individual conditions will be made on a case by case basis,
although there will be a number of control measures the Licensing Authority
will consider using, such as supervision of entrances, supervision of adult
gaming machines, appropriate signage for adult only areas, etc. There are
specific comments made in this regard under each of the licence types in this
policy. The Council will also expect the applicant to offer his/her own
suggestions as to the way in which the licensing objectives can be met
effectively.

14.26 Where certain measures are not already addressed by the mandatory/default
conditions or by the applicant, the Licensing Authority may consider licence
conditions to cover issues such as:

● proof of age schemes
● CCTV
● supervision of entrances
● supervision of machine areas
● a reduction in the number of betting machines (betting premises)
● the staffing of premises
● physical separation of areas
● location of entrance points
● notices/signage
● specific opening hours

19
245



● a requirement that children must be accompanied by an adult
● enhanced CRB checks of the applicant and/or staff
● support to persons with gambling addiction
● policies to address seasonal periods where children may more

frequently attempt to gain access to premises and gamble such as pre
and post school hours, and school holidays

● policies to address the problems associated with truant children who
may attempt to gain access to premises and gamble

● any one or a combination of the measures as set out in this policy.

14.27 This list is not mandatory or exhaustive and is merely indicative of examples
of certain measures which may satisfy the requirements of the licensing
authority and the Responsible Authorities, depending on the nature and
location of the premises and the gambling facilities to be provided.

14.28 There are conditions which the Licensing Authority cannot attach to premises
licences which are:

● any condition on the premises licence which makes it impossible for the
applicant to comply with an operating licence condition;

● conditions relating to gaming machine categories, numbers, or method
of operation;

● conditions which provide that membership of a club or body be required
(the Gambling Act 2005 specifically removes the membership
requirement for casino and bingo clubs and this provision prevents it
being reinstated) and

● conditions in relation to stakes, fees, winnings or prizes.

Door Supervision

14.29 The Licensing Authority will consider whether there is a need for door
supervision in terms of the Licensing Objectives of protection of children and
vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling, and also in
terms of preventing premises becoming a source of crime. It is noted, though,
that the Gambling Act 2005 has amended the Private Security Industry Act
2001, and that the door supervisors at casinos or bingo premises are not
required to be licensed by the Security Industry Authority. Where door
supervisors are provided at these premises, the operator should ensure that
any persons employed in this capacity are fit and proper to carry out such
duties. Possible ways to achieve this could be to carry out a DBS (Disclosure
and Barring Service) check on potential staff and for such personnel to have
attended industry recognised training.

15. MAKING AN APPLICATION

15.1 The Council will ensure that all relevant information is available on how to
make applications for licences and other permissions under the Act. A full list
of responsible authorities and their appropriate contact details is available on
the council website together with premises licence and permit application

20
246



forms. In addition the council will ensure that information and advice regarding
making representations, and applying for a review of a premises licence, is
also available. Application must be made in the prescribed manner and
include a plan of the premises and the relevant fee.

15.2 Application forms and advice are available from Adur & Worthing Councils’
website or by contacting the AWC Public Health & Regulation - Licensing Unit.
http://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/licensing-and-permits/gambling/

Advertising

15.3 Applicants must comply with the Gambling Act 2005’s regulations when
advertising their applications for a premises licence or variation by displaying
a white notice for 28 days on the exterior of the premises and placing an
advertisement in the legal section of a local newspaper (Worthing Herald or
Evening Argus). If advertising irregularities are found the advertising period
may be required to be started again or extended, at the discretion of the
Senior Licensing Officer.

15.4 Details of all new applications, variations and reviews are detailed on the
council’s website together with scheduled hearing dates and the results of
each application.

Sending to Responsible Authorities

15.5 New applications or applications to vary premises licences must be made to
the Licensing Authority with statutory notices served on each of the
responsible authorities.

Making a representation

15.6 Responsible authorities and interested parties may make representations on
applications for premises licences, their variation or review applications. The
Act defines “Interested parties” as the bodies or individuals who are entitled to
make representations to licensing authorities on applications for the grant,
variation or review of premises licences. In addition, interested parties may
themselves seek a review of a premises licence. Interested parties are
defined in paragraph 7.1. Other than those that qualify as interested parties,
the council will require written evidence that a person ‘represents’ someone
who either lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by
the authorised activities and/or business interests that might be affected by
the authorised activities. A letter from one of these persons requesting the
representation is sufficient.

15.7 Representations regarding an application may be positive or negative,
although only negative representations, relevant to the licensing objectives,
would result in a Licensing Sub-Committee hearing and determination of an
application.

21
247

http://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/licensing-and-permits/gambling/


Irrelevant, frivolous, vexatious representations

15.8 Any representation which in the opinion of the Senior Licensing Officer is, on
the balance of probabilities, irrelevant (does not relate to the licensing
objectives), frivolous or vexatious shall not be considered. The Senior
Licensing Officer is empowered to make a decision, which would result in the
representation not going before the Licensing Sub-Committee.

15.9 In cases of doubt as to whether a representation is irrelevant, frivolous or
vexatious the Senior Licensing Officer will consult with the Chairman of the
Licensing and Control Committee or with legal advisors as appropriate.

Registering to speak, or be represented, at a Committee Hearing

15.10 Any person making a relevant representation that wishes to speak or be
represented at a Licensing & Control Committee hearing is expected to inform
the Licensing Authority of their intention at least five working days before the
hearing. Failure to do so may result in such a person not being heard,
although the Chair may exercise their discretion and allow the person to
speak.

Mediation

15.11 Where a Responsible Authority or an interested party (such as a local resident or
residents’ association) has made a valid representation about an application or for
a licence to be reviewed, the Licensing Authority will seek to encourage direct
contact between the parties to try and achieve agreement. This process will not
override the right of any responsible authority or interested party to ask that the
Licensing & Control Committee consider a valid representation.

Licence Reviews

15.12 The 2005 Act provides a clear focus on the promotion of the three statutory
Licensing Objectives which must be addressed when licensing functions are
undertaken. The Act provides tough powers, in the form of the review
procedure, to enable the Licensing Authority to bring the minority of badly
managed premises, which are failing to promote the licensing objectives, into
line with the best.

15.13 A Premises Licence may be reviewed by the Licensing Authority of its own
volition. The Responsible Authorities and/or interested parties can trigger a
Review of a Premises Licence but must provide evidence to the Licensing
Authority to substantiate any allegations.  In every case, the representation
must relate to particular premises where a Premises Licence has been
granted and it must be relevant to the promotion of the Licensing Objectives.

22
248



15.14 Following an application from an interested party or Responsible Authority the
Licensing Authority will normally grant an application for Review unless the
grounds on which the Review is sought:

● Are frivolous or vexatious
● Are substantially the same as a previous application (unless sufficient

time has passed to consider the matter again)
● Are substantially the same as representations made when the

premises licence application was considered (unless sufficient time has
passed to consider the matter again)

● “Will certainly not” cause the authority to revoke or suspend a licence,
or to reserve or amend, or attach conditions.

and will be on the basis of whether the request for the review is relevant to the
matters listed below;

● in accordance with any relevant Code of Practice issued by the
Gambling Commission;

● in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling
Commission;

● reasonably consistent with the Licensing Objectives; and
● in accordance with the authority’s Statement of Principles.

15.15 Once a valid application for a Review has been received by the Licensing
Authority, representations can be made by Responsible Authorities and
interested parties during a 28 day period. This period begins 7 days after the
application was received by the Licensing Authority, who will publish notice of
the application within 7 days of receipt on its website. The Licensing Authority
must carry out the Review as soon as possible after the 28 day period for
making representations has passed.

15.16 The purpose of the Review will be to determine whether the Licensing
Authority should take any action in relation to the licence. If action is justified,
the options open to the Licensing Authority are:

● add, remove or amend a licence condition imposed by the Licensing
Authority;

● exclude a default condition imposed by the Secretary of State (e.g.
opening hours) or remove or amend such an exclusion;

● suspend the Premises Licence for a period not exceeding three
months;

● revoke the Premises Licence.

In determining what action, if any, should be taken following a review, the
Licensing Authority must have regard to the principles set out in section 153
of the Act, as well as any relevant representations.

15.17 In particular, the Licensing Authority may also initiate a Review of a Premises
Licence on the grounds that a Premises Licence holder has not provided
facilities for gambling at the premises. This is to prevent people from applying

23
249



for licences in a speculative manner without intending to use them.

15.18 Once the Review has been completed, the Licensing Authority will, within 5
working days, notify its decision to:

● the licence holder
● the applicant for review
● the Gambling Commission
● any person who made representations
● the Chief Officer of Police or Chief Constable; and
● Her Majesty’s Commissioners for Revenue and Customs

Appeals

15.19 The avenues of appeal against decisions by a Licensing Authority are set out
in sections 206 to 209 of the Act and include rights with regard to premises
licence application rejections and where applications are granted. Appeals
may also be made against transfer and review decisions.

15.20 The Licensing Authority will give clear and comprehensive reasons for any
rejection of an application or grant of licence or any other decisions. The
reasons for any decision will be made public at the hearing.

15.21 The Licensing Authority will provide full written details of the decision with its
reasons to all parties within five working days. From receipt of the written
decision, the parties have 21 days to lodge an appeal at the magistrates’
court.

16. CASINOS

16.1 There are no existing licensed casinos within the Borough and currently the
Gambling Act 2005 prevents the Licensing Authority from accepting new
applications

16.2 Under Section 166 of the Act the Licensing Authority may pass a resolution
not to issue any casino premises licences.  The Licensing Authority has not
passed such a resolution but should it decide to do so in the future, it will
update this Policy Statement.

17. BINGO PREMISES

17.1 There is no official definition for bingo in the Gambling Act 2005. However,
from a licensing point of view, there is a category of premises licence
specifically for bingo premises which is used by traditional commercial bingo
halls for both cash and prize bingo. In addition, this premises licence will
authorise the provision of a limited number of gaming machines in line with
the provisions of the Act.

24
250



17.2 Where children are allowed to enter premises licensed for bingo, they should
not participate in gambling, other than on category D machines.  Where
category C or above machines are available in premises to which children are
admitted, the Licensing Authority will apply conditions to ensure that:

● all such machines are located in an area of the premises separated
from the remainder of the premises by a physical barrier which is
effective to prevent access other than through a designated entrance;

● only adults are admitted to the area where these machines are located;
● access to the area where the machines are located is supervised;
● the area where the machines are located is arranged so that it can be

observed by staff of the operator or the licence holder; and
● at the entrance to, and inside any such area there are prominently

displayed notices indicating that access to the area is prohibited to
persons under 18.

17.3 It is noted that under the Act, children and young persons (anyone up to the
age of 18) cannot be employed in providing  facilities for gambling on bingo
premises, and children (under 16) cannot be employed, in any capacity, at a
time when facilities for playing bingo are being offered. However, young
persons, aged 16 and 17, may be employed in bingo premises (while bingo is
being played), provided the activities on which they are employed are not
connected with the gaming or gaming machines.

17.4 The imposition of the restrictions that apply to such premises in the codes of
practice that are published on the Gambling Commission’s website will be
considered and the guidance issued on particular issues will be taken into
account in relation to the suitability and layout of bingo premises.

17.5 The Gambling Commission has issued Codes of Practice relating to Bingo
premises and the Licensing Authority expects all applicants to comply with
these codes. The Licensing Authority will not look favourably upon an
application where an applicant seeks a Bingo Premises Licence with the sole
intention of placing Category B2 Gaming Machines only in the premises with
no provision for facilities for bingo, as this is not considered to be in the spirit
of the Act. Applicants and premises licence holders are reminded of the
Gambling Commission’s operator licence conditions requiring that bingo is
provided as the primary activity in any premises that hold or apply for bingo
premises licence.

18. BETTING PREMISES

18.1 The Act contains a single class of licence for betting premises. However,
within this single class of licence, there will be different types of premises
which require licensing. Currently in the Borough there is no provision of
off-course betting – Tracks. However, there are a number of Licensed Betting
Shops.

18.2 The Licensing Authority will, as per the Gambling Commission's Guidance,

25
251



take into account the size of the premises, the number of counter positions
available for person-to-person transactions, and the ability of staff to monitor
the use of the machines by children and young persons (it is an offence for
those under 18 to bet) or by vulnerable people, when considering the
number/nature/circumstances of betting machines an operator wants to offer.

18.3 Tracks are sites such as racecourses and dog tracks where races or other
sporting events take place. There are currently none licensed in the Borough.
However, the Licensing Authority recognise that tracks are different from other
premises in that there may be more than one Premises Licence in effect, and
that the track operator may not be required to hold an Operator’s Licence as
there may be several premises licence holders at the track who will need to
hold their own Operator Licences. As children and young persons will be
permitted to enter track areas where facilities for betting are provided (e.g.
dog racing and/or horse racing), the Licensing Authority will expect premises
licence applicants to demonstrate suitable measures to ensure that children
do not have access to adult only gaming facilities. The Licensing Authority will
expect applicants to consider very carefully the measures they are proposing
to put in place to meet the Licensing Objectives,

19. ADULT GAMING CENTRES (AGC)

19.1 An adult gaming centre premises licence allows the provision category B, C
and D gaming machines in adult only arcade premises. No one under 18 is
permitted to enter such premises.

19.2 Consequently, the Licensing Authority will specifically have regard to the need
to protect children and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by
gambling and will expect sufficient measures to be in place to ensure

● under 18 year olds do not gain access to the premises
● the Licensing Objectives are promoted
● the Mandatory Conditions and the Gambling Commission’s Codes of

Practice are complied with
Such measures could include:

● CCTV
● Minimum staffing levels
● Door supervision
● Induction training for new staff and refresher training for existing staff
● Refusals register
● Proof of age schemes (e.g. Think 21)
● Third party test purchasing
● Location of entry to premises
● Infra-red Beam positioned across the entrance to the premises.
● Self-barring schemes
● Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for support

organisations such as GamCare
This list is neither mandatory nor exhaustive

26
252



19.3 Where an Adult Gaming Centre is situated in a complex, the Licensing
Authority will pay particular attention to the location of entry so as to minimise
opportunities for children gaining access. In particular, the Licensing Authority
will not look favourably on situations where child orientated machines or
facilities are sited close to the entrance to an Adult Gaming Centre.

20. LICENSED FAMILY ENTERTAINMENT CENTRES (FEC)

20.1 Family Entertainment Centres can be run under the authority of a Premises
Licence or a Permit. A licensed Family Entertainment Centre can offer
category C and D gaming machines. A permitted Family Entertainment Centre
can only offer category D (low stakes and prizes) machines.

20.2 A Family Entertainment Centre Premises Licence allows the holder to offer
family friendly arcade facilities at a venue. They usually provide a range of
amusements such as computer games, penny pushers and category D low
stakes & prizes gaming machines but may also provide a separate section set
aside for adult only gaming machines (Category C) with higher stakes and
prizes.

20.3 At such premises the Licensing Authority will specifically have regard to the
need to protect children and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited
by gambling and will expect licence holders and new applicants to have
sufficient measures in place to ensure that under 18 year olds do not have
access to the adult only gaming machine areas.

20.4 Consequently, the Licensing Authority will specifically have regard to the need
to protect children and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by
gambling and will expect sufficient measures to be in place to ensure

● under 18 year olds do not gain access to the adult only areas
● the Licensing Objectives are promoted
● the Mandatory Conditions and the Gambling Commission’s Codes of

Practice are complied with
Such measures could include:

● CCTV
● Supervision of entrances / machine areas
● Physical separation of areas
● Location of entry
● Notices / signage
● Specific opening hours
● Self-exclusion schemes
● Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations

such as GamCare.
● Measures / training for staff on how to deal with suspected truant

school children on the premises

27
253



20.5 The Licensing Authority will ensure compliance with all conditions that apply to
operating licences covering the way in which the area containing the category
C machines should be delineated and any mandatory or default conditions .

21. DEMAND

21.1 In accordance with the Gambling Commission’s guidance the Licensing
Authority recognises that unmet demand is not a relevant criterion in
considering an application under the Act and cannot consider whether the
application is to be permitted in accordance with law relating to planning or
building.

28
254



PART D – PERMITS, NOTICES & REGISTRATIONS

22. STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES

22.1 The Gambling Act 2005 introduced a range of permits for gambling. Permits
are required when premises provide a gambling facility but either the stakes
and prizes are very low or gambling is not the main function of the premises.
The permits regulate gambling and the use of gaming machines in a specific
premises. The Licensing Authority may only grant or reject an application for a
permit and cannot impose or attach any conditions. There are different
considerations to be taken into account when considering the different types
of permit applications. Where a Permit is granted, the Licensing Authority will
issue the Permit as soon as is reasonably practicable.

22.2 The Act states that a Licensing Authority may prepare a Statement of
Principles that it will apply when exercising its functions specifying matters it
will consider in determining the suitability of the applicant for a permit.

22.3 The basic principles this Licensing Authority will consider all permit
applications by are that the applicant must clearly set out the types of gaming
that it is intended to offer and that the applicant should be able to
demonstrate:

● An understanding of the limits to stakes and prizes that are set out in
the regulations;

● How to ensure that the gaming offered is within the law
● Policies that outline the steps to be taken to protect children from harm.

22.4 When making decisions on any permit the Licensing Authority will have regard
to the Licensing Objectives and any Gambling Commission guidance.

22.5 It should be noted that there are conditions in the Gambling Act 2005 by which
permit holders must comply, but the Licensing Authority cannot attach
conditions to a permit.

23. UNLICENSED FAMILY ENTERTAINMENT CENTRE PERMITS (uFEC)

23.1 Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centres (uFEC) are defined in the Act as
premises which provide category D gaming machines along with various other
amusements such as computer games and penny pushers. The premises are
“unlicensed” in that they do not require a premises licence but do require a
permit to authorise the provision of category D machines. It should not be
confused with a “licensed family entertainment centre” which requires a
premises licence because it contains both category C and D gaming
machines.

29
255



23.2 The Licensing Authority must be satisfied that the premises will be used as an
unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre and Sussex Police must be
consulted on all applications.

23.3 When determining a permit, the Licensing Authority will have regard to the
Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Licensing Authorities and will have
regard to the three Licensing Objectives.

23.4 As these premises particularly appeal to children and young persons, the
Licensing Authority will give weight to child protection issues. The Licensing
Authority will expect applicants to demonstrate:

● A full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes of the
gambling, which is permissible in unlicensed FECs;

● The applicant’s previous history and experience of running similar
premises;

● Applicants must produce a DBS check dated within one calendar
month of the date of the application being submitted to the Licensing
Authority. The Disclosure will reveal the existence and content of any
criminal record (not spent under the terms of the Rehabilitation of
Offenders Act) held in the name of the applicant.

23.5 Where an applicant provides evidence that he has an Operating Licence and
has as a result undergone rigorous checks by the Gambling Commission,
then a DBS check will not normally be required.

23.6 When considering any convictions revealed in an application, the Licensing
Authority will consider the nature and relevance of the offence, how long ago
the offence took place and any other factors that may be relevant. The
application will be subject to the terms of the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act
and “spent” convictions may not be referred to when considering the permit
application. The application process will make specific reference to the
Relevant Offences listed in Schedule 8 to the Gambling Act 2005.

23.7 Statement of Principles for Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centres – As
these premises are open to children and young persons, the Licensing
Authority will require additional information when an applicant applies for this
Permit, as follows:

● A scaled plan of the premises indicating the location of Category D
machines, Automated Teller Machines and any appropriate notices that
are to be displayed;

● The approximate number of Category D machines that will be provided;
● Evidence that staff will be/are trained to have a full understanding of the

maximum stakes and prizes that are permissible;
● Evidence that staff training will be recorded by way of a Premises

Logbook which should be signed and dated by staff on receiving their
training to prove that training has been undertaken and understood;

30
256



● Training for staff as regards dealing with suspected truant school
children on the premises;

● Policies and procedures in place to protect children from harm. Harm in
this case is not limited to harm from gambling but includes wider child
protection considerations. The efficiency of such policies and
procedures will each be considered on their merits, however, they may
include appropriate measures such as training, covering how staff
would deal with unsupervised very young children being on the
premises, or children causing perceived problems on or around the
premises;

● The amount of space around gaming machines to prevent jostling of
players or intimidation;

● Details of opening hours;
● Approximate numbers of staff employed.

23.8 The Licensing Authority can grant or refuse a permit but cannot attach
conditions to this type of permit. Where an applicant fails to comply with the
above requirements, the Licensing Authority may refuse the application.
Where there is a reason for such a refusal, the Licensing Authority will notify
the applicant of its intention to refuse and the reasons for the refusal. The
applicant will then have an opportunity to make representations orally, in
writing, or both, and will have a right of appeal against any decision made.

23.9 With regard to renewal applications, the Licensing Authority may refuse an
application for renewal of a permit only on the grounds that an authorised
local authority officer has been refused access to the premises without
reasonable excuse, or that renewal would not be reasonably consistent with
the pursuit of the Licensing Objectives.

23.10 Where the Permit has been granted, the Licensing Authority will issue the
permit as soon as is reasonably practicable, and in any event in line with the
Regulations issued by the Secretary of State. The permit will then remain in
effect for 10 years unless surrendered or lapsed.

23.11 The Licensing Authority recommends that applicants for unlicensed FEC
Permits consider adopting BACTA’s voluntary Code of Practice for
Amusement with Prizes Machines in Family Entertainment Centres. This
Code of Practice promotes awareness of social responsibility and
acknowledges that proactive, specific and appropriate commitment will be
given to educating children and young persons, thereby minimising the
potential for harm.

31
257



24. GAMING MACHINE PERMITS FOR PREMISES LICENSED FOR ALCOHOL

24.1 Premises licensed for the sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises are
entitled to provide gaming machines.

Notification - Automatic entitlement for two machines

24.2 The holder of the Premises Licence, issued under the Licensing Act 2003, that
has served a formal Notification on the Licensing Authority, is entitled to
provide up to 2 gaming machines of Category C or D. The notification must be
accompanied by the prescribed fee and the licence holder must comply with
any relevant Codes of Practice issued by the Gambling Commission.

24.3 The Licensing Authority may remove the authorisation if:
● Provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit

of the Licensing Objectives;
● Provision of the machines is not compliant with the mandatory

conditions relating to location and operation of machines;
● Gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of

Section 282 of the Gambling Act;
● An offence under the Gambling Act has been committed on the

premises; or
● The premises are mainly used for gaming.

24.4 The Licensing Authority will expect the applicant to comply with any Codes of
Practice issued by the Gambling Commission and consider such measures to
ensure that the under 18s do not have access to the adult only gaming
machines. The Licensing Authority recommends considering such measures
as:

● Siting adult machines close to the bar;
● Siting adult machines where staff can monitor them;
● Appropriate notices and signage;
● Provision of information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations

such as GamCare.

Permit – Three or more machines

24.5 A Licensed Premises may provide more than 2 machines but is then required
to have a valid permit issued by the Licensing Authority. The Authority will
consider such applications based upon the Licensing Objectives, any
guidance issued by the Gambling Commission issued under Section 25 of the
Gambling Act 2005, and “such matters as they think relevant”. This Licensing
Authority considers that “such matters” will be decided on a case by case
basis, but generally there will be regard to the need to protect children and
vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling, and will expect
the applicant to satisfy the Authority that there will be sufficient measures to

32
258



ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult only gaming
machines.

24.6 Measures which will satisfy the Authority that there will be no access may
include the adult machines being in sight of the bar, or in the sight of staff who
will monitor that the machines are not being used by those under 18. Notices
and signage may also help. As regards the protection of vulnerable persons,
applicants may wish to consider the provision of information leaflets/helpline
numbers for organisations such as GamCare.

.
It should be noted that the Licensing Authority can decide to grant the
application with a smaller number of machines and/or a different category of
machines than that applied for. Conditions (other than these) cannot be
attached.

24.7 There is no statutory limit on the number of machines which may be applied
for. However, it is the Licensing Authority’s policy that a licensing hearing will
consider any application for three or more machines where Officers are of the
opinion that the premises is not suitable for the number of machines applied
for.

24.8 It should also be noted that the holder of a permit must comply with any Code
of Practice issued by the Gambling Commission about the location and
operation of machines.

25. PRIZE GAMING PERMITS

25.1 Prize Gaming Permits must be obtained where a Casino or Bingo Operating
Licence is not in effect. However, a casino is not entitled to provide bingo
without a Prize Gaming Permit. As children and young persons may
participate in equal chance prize gaming, and given that the premises will
particularly appeal to children and young persons, the Licensing Authority has
prepared a Statement of Principles that it proposes to apply in exercising its
functions which specifies matters that the Licensing Authority propose to
consider in determining the suitability of an applicant for a Prize Gaming
Permit.

25.2 The Gambling Act 2005 sets out a number of conditions that the permit holder
must comply with. The Licensing Authority cannot attach further conditions.
The conditions in the Act are:

● the limits on participation fees, as set out in regulations, must be
complied with;

● all chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated at the
premises on which the gaming is taking place and on one day; the
game must be played and completed on the day the chances are
allocated; and the result of the game must be made public at the
premises on the day that it is played;

● the prize for which the game is played must not exceed the amount set

33
259



out in regulations (if a money prize), or the prescribed value (if
non-monetary prize); and

● participation in the gaming must not entitle the player to take part in
any other gambling.

25.3 The Licensing Authority will require detailed information when an applicant
applies for this Permit, as follows:

● A scaled plan of the premises indicating the location of the machines,
other prize gaming facilities, etc., and any appropriate notices that are
to be displayed;

● Evidence that applicants have a full understanding of the maximum
stakes and prizes that are permissible;

● Evidence that staff are trained to have a full understanding of the
maximum stakes and prizes that are permissible;

● A basic DBS check dated within one calendar month of the date of the
application being submitted to the Licensing Authority (unless the
applicant holds a current Operator’s Licence issued by the Gambling
Commission);

● Evidence of staff training by way of a Premises Log Book which should
be signed and dated by staff to prove that training has been undertaken
and understood;

● Policies and procedures in place to protect children from harm. Harm in
this case is not limited to harm from gambling but includes wider child
protection considerations. The efficiency of such policies and
procedures will each be considered on their merits, however, they may
include appropriate measures such as training, covering how staff
would deal with unsupervised very young children being on the
premises or children causing perceived problems on or around the
premises;

● The amount of space around gaming machines to prevent jostling of
players or intimidation;

● Details of opening hours;
● Approximate numbers of staff employed.

25.4 Where an applicant provides evidence that he/she has an Operating Licence
and has as a result undergone rigorous checks by the Gambling Commission,
then a DBS check will not normally be required.

25.5 When considering any convictions revealed in an application, the Licensing
Authority will consider the nature and relevance of the offence, how long ago
the offence took place, and any other factors which may be relevant. The
application will be subject to the terms of the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act
and “spent” convictions may not be referred to when considering the permit
application. The application process will make specific reference to the
Relevant Offences listed in Schedule 8 to the Gambling Act 2005.

25.6 In making its decision on an application the Licensing Authority will have
regard to the Licensing Objectives and will take into account, after

34
260



consultation, any representations the Police may make. The grounds for
decision-making as regards renewals are the same as for initial applications.

25.7 Where the Licensing Authority intends to refuse the application for a permit, it
will notify the applicant of its intention to refuse it, stating the reasons and
offering the applicant an opportunity to make representations orally, in writing,
or both.

26. CLUB GAMING & CLUB MACHINE PERMITS

26.1 Members’ clubs and miners’ welfare institutes may apply for a Club Gaming
Permit or a Club Machine Permit. The Club Gaming Permit will enable the
premises to provide gaming machines (three machines of categories B4, C or
D), equal chance gaming, i.e. poker, bingo, etc. A Club Machine Permit will
enable the premises to provide gaming machines (three machines of
categories B4, C or D). Commercial clubs may apply for a Club Machine
Permit only.

26.2 To qualify for these special club permits, a members club must have at least
25 members and be established and conducted wholly or mainly for purposes
other than gaming. A members’ club must be permanent in nature, not
established to make commercial profit, and controlled by its members equally.
Examples include:

● working men’s clubs
● branches of the Royal British Legion
● clubs with political affiliations.

26.3 Clubs must have regard to the protection of children and vulnerable persons
from harm or being exploited by gambling. They must provide sufficient
measures to ensure that any under 18 year olds do not use the adult only
gaming machines. These measures may include:

● The machines being in close proximity to the bar, or in any other area
where they are capable of being adequately supervised;

● Notices and signage
● The provision of information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations

such as GamCare.

26.4 Before granting the permit, the Council will need to satisfy itself that the
premises meet the requirements of a members’ club, and that the majority of
members are over 18.

26.5 The Licensing Authority may only refuse an application on the grounds that:
● The applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a members’ or

commercial club or miners’ welfare institute and therefore is not entitled
to receive the type of permit for which they have applied;

● The applicant’s premises are used wholly or mainly by children and/or
young persons;

35
261



● An offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been committed
by the applicant while providing gaming facilities;

● A permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten
years;

● An objection has been lodged by the Gambling Commission or Sussex
Police.

26.6 There is a fast-track procedure available for premises which hold a Club
Premises Certificate under the Licensing Act 2003. Under the fast-track
procedure there is no opportunity for objections to be made by the
Commission or the Police. The grounds upon which the Licensing Authority
can refuse a permit is reduced. The grounds on which an application under
the process may be refused are:

● That the club is established primarily for gaming;
● That in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant provides

facilities for other gaming; or
● That a Club Gaming Permit or Club Machine Permit issued to the

applicant in the last ten years has been cancelled.

27. TEMPORARY USE NOTICES

27.1 Temporary use notices allow the use of premises on not more than 21 days in
any 12 months period for gambling where there is no Premises Licence, but
where a gambling operator wishes to use the premises temporarily for
providing facilities for gambling. Premises that might be useful for a
Temporary Use Notice would include:

● Hotels
● Conference centres
● Sporting venues.

27.2 Temporary Use Notices allow the use of premises for any form of equal
chance gambling where those participating in the gaming are taking part in a
competition which is intended to produce a single, overall winner.

27.3 Only persons or companies holding a relevant operating licence can apply for
a Temporary Use Notice to authorise the particular class of gambling
permitted by their Operating Licence.

26.4 A Temporary Use Notice must be lodged with the Licensing Authority not less
than three months and one day before the day on which the gambling is due
to take place. Detailed information about how to serve a Temporary Use
Notice will be available in a separate guidance note.

26.5 The Act makes a special reference, in the context of Temporary Use Notices,
to a “set of premises” to try and ensure that large premises which cannot
reasonably be viewed as separate are not used for more Temporary Use
Notices than permitted under the Act. The Licensing Authority considers that
the determination of what constitutes “a set of premises” will be a question of

36
262



fact in the particular circumstances of each notice that is given. In considering
whether a place falls within the definition of a “set of premises”, the Licensing
Authority will look at, amongst other things, the ownership/occupation and
control of the premises. The Licensing Authority will be ready to object to
notices where it appears that their effect would be to permit regular gambling
in a place that could be described as one set of premises.

28. OCCASIONAL USE NOTICES

28.1 There is a special provision in the Act which provides that where there is
betting on a track on eight days or less in a calendar year, betting may be
permitted by an Occasional Use Notice without the need for a full Premises
Licence. Track operators and occupiers need to be aware that the procedure
for applying for an occasional use notice is different to that for a Temporary
Use Notice. The application may be made in writing to the Licensing Authority
by the person responsible for the administration of the events on a track, or by
an occupier of the track.

28.2 The Licensing Authority has very little discretion as regards these notices
aside from ensuring that the statutory limit of 8 days in a calendar year is not
exceeded. The Licensing Authority will, however, consider the definition of a
“track” and whether the applicant is entitled to benefit from such notice.

29. SMALL SOCIETY LOTTERY REGISTRATIONS

29.1 A lottery generally refers to schemes under which prizes are distributed by
chance among entrants who have given some form of value for their chance
to take part.

29.2 The Act creates two principal classes of lotteries: Licensed Lotteries and
Exempt Lotteries. Licensing Lotteries are Large Society Lotteries and lotteries
run for the benefit of Local Authorities. These will be regulated by the
Gambling Commission. Within the class of Exempt Lotteries, there are four
subclasses, one of which is Small Society Lotteries.

29.3 A Small Society Lottery is a lottery promoted on behalf of a non-commercial
society as defined in the Act which also meets specific financial requirements
set out in the Act. These will be administered by the Council for small
societies who have a principal office in Worthing and want to run such lottery.

29.4 A lottery is small if the total value of tickets put on sale in a single lottery is
£20,000 or less and the aggregate value of the tickets put on sale in a
calendar year is £250,000 or less.

29.5 To be “non-commercial” a society must be established and conducted:
● For charitable purposes;
● For the purpose of enabling participation in, or supporting, sport,

athletics or a cultural activity; or

37
263



● For any other non-commercial purpose other than that of private gain.

29.6 The other types of exempt lotteries are:
● Incidental Non-Commercial Lotteries
● Private Lotteries
● Customer Lotteries

Guidance on the different categories of lotteries can be obtained from the
Public Health & Regulation Licensing Team.

29.7 The National Lottery is not licensed by the Gambling Act 2005, and continues
to be regulated by the National Lottery Commission under the National Lottery
Act 1993.

Small Society Lotteries

29.8 Small Society Lotteries are registered and dealt with by the Licensing
Authority. Promoting or facilitating a lottery falls within one of the following
categories:

● Licensed Lotteries (requiring an Operating Licence from the Gambling
Commission);

● Small Society Lotteries (registered with the Licensing Authority); and
● Exempt Lotteries.

29.9 Lotteries permitted to be conducted without a licence from the Gambling
Commission and these are:

● Small Society Lotteries (registered with the Licensing Authority);
● Incidental Non-Commercial Lotteries;
● Private Lotteries: (Private Society Lottery, Work Lottery, Residents’

Lottery);
● Customer Lotteries.

29.10 Societies may organise lotteries if they are licensed by the Gambling
Commission, registered with the Licensing Authority or fall within the exempt
category. The Licensing Authority recommends those seeking to run lotteries
take their own legal advice on which type of lottery category they fall within.
However, guidance notes with regard to all lotteries, limits placed on small
society lotteries and information setting out financial limits are all available by
contacting the PH&R Licensing Team.

29.11 Applicants for lottery licences must apply to the Licensing Authority in the area
where the principal office is located. Where the Licensing Authority believes
that the Society’s principal office is situated in another area, it will inform the
Society as soon as possible, and where possible, will inform the other
Licensing Authority.

29.12 The Licensing Authority will keep a Public Register of all applications and will
provide information to the Gambling Commission on all lotteries registered by

38
264



the Licensing Authority. As soon as the entry on the Register is completed, the
Licensing Authority will notify the applicant of registration.

29.13 The Licensing Authority will ask applicants to set out the purposes for which
the Society is established and will ask the Society to declare that they
represent a bona fide non-commercial society and have no relevant
convictions. The Licensing Authority may, however, seek further information
from the Society and in particular may require a copy of the society’s
constitution.

29.14 Where the Licensing Authority intends to refuse registration of a Society, it will
give the Society an opportunity to make representations and will inform the
Society of the reasons why it is minded to refuse registration, and supply
evidence on which it has reached that preliminary conclusion.

29.15 The Licensing Authority may revoke the registered status of a society if it
thinks that they would have had to, or would be entitled, to refuse an
application for registration if it were being made at that time. However, no
revocations will take place unless the Society has been given the opportunity
to make representations. The Licensing Authority will inform the society of the
reasons why it is minded to revoke the registration and will provide an outline
of the evidence on which it has reached that preliminary conclusion.

29.16 With regards to where Small Society Lottery tickets may be sold, the
Licensing Authority applies the following guidance criteria to all small society
lotteries it registers:

● Tickets should not be sold in a street – street includes any bridge, road,
land, footway, subway, square, court or passage (including passages
through enclosed premises such as shopping malls); and

● Tickets may be sold from a kiosk, in a shop or door-to-door.

This approach is consistent with the operating licence conditions imposed by
the Gambling Commission upon operators of large lotteries.

39
265



PART E – HEALTH & WELLBEING

30.      GAMBLING RELATED HARM & ITS EFFECTS

30.1   Harmful gambling is defined as any type of repetitive gambling that disrupts or
damages personal, family or recreational pursuits. It is not just the gamblers
themselves who experience these harms; individuals, families and
communities are all affected. Research published by Citizens Advice suggests
that, for every problem gambler there are on average between six to ten
additional people who are also directly affected.

30.2    Harmful gambling can cause a wide variety of health and social issues, such
as alcohol and drug misuse, financial difficulties, mental health issues, loss of
employment, domestic abuse and family breakdown. The Gambling
Commission estimates there are 430,000 people with a serious gambling
addiction in the UK. If you include those they deem at risk of addiction, the
number rises to more than two million. Of these, around 55,000 are children
and young people aged 11 to 16.

30.3    The Care Act 2014 imposes a requirement on a local authority to “make
enquiries if it has reasonable cause to suspect that an adult in its area,
whether or not ordinarily resident there, has needs for care and support, is
experiencing, or is at risk of, abuse or neglect, and as a result of those needs
is unable to protect himself or herself against the abuse or neglect or the risk
of it”.

30.4    There is evidence to show that certain groups are more at risk of experiencing
gambling-related harm than others; these include: people living in deprived
areas, individuals from certain ethnic minority groups (such as Asian/Asian
British, Black/Black British and Chinese/other ethnicity), children and young
people, those with mental health issues, those with alcohol or drug issues,
and people who are homeless. Children are also particularly affected by
problem gambling by a family member.

30.5   Research conducted by Leeds University in 2016 looked specifically at
identifying groups of society that could be considered vulnerable to problem
gambling:

● Young people – rates of problem gambling among young people who
gamble are higher than older adults and youth gambling behaviours are
consistent with the harm paradox, whereby these age groups are less
likely to gamble generally but those that do are more likely to experience
difficulties with their behaviour (Wardle, 2015)

40
266



● Minority ethnic groups – There is consistent evidence that those from
certain ethnic backgrounds are more vulnerable to gambling problems and
there is clear evidence of the harm paradox.

● Unemployed and constrained economic circumstance – generally
those of lower income are less likely to gamble but those that do spend a
higher proportion of their income on gambling. This is highlighted as a
concern given the lesser ability of lower income households to protect
themselves from financial instability (Brown et al, 2011).

● Persons in debt - There is evidence that those in debt and those using
money lenders and/or pawnbrokers are more likely to be problem or at risk
gamblers (Meltzer et al, 2012). The relationship between constrained economic
circumstances and gambling problems is likely to be complex and
multi-faceted. It may be mediated by other economic opportunities and
personal feelings about how well off you are compared with others.
Despite this complexity, there is a consistent body of evidence showing
that, for whatever reason, those who are unemployed and who gamble are
more likely to experience adverse outcomes from their gambling than
those in paid employment.

● Area deprivation – There are a number of British surveys that have
consistently shown that those living in more deprived areas are more likely
to experience problems with their gambling behaviour. Research has
looked at the distribution of machines and licensed betting offices and
suggests that there is clear and consistent evidence of a spatial skew,
whereby high density machine zones or areas with licensed betting offices
are more deprived than others. Recent research has shown that among
gamblers who held loyalty cards, rates of problem gambling (28%) were
higher among those who lived within 400 metres of a concentration of
betting offices than those who did not (22%) (Astbury & Wardle, 2016).

● Homeless – The rates of problem gambling are higher among those who
are homeless than those who are not. Although studies are small, they
show that there is a significant relationship with gambling preceding
homelessness. Little is known about why rates of problem gambling
among homeless population groups is higher than the general population
but given associations with other mental health conditions, homeless
people should be considered a vulnerable group.

● Mental ill health – There is a strong association between mental ill health
and problem gambling. Associations were found between problem

41
267



gambling and general anxiety disorder, phobia, obsessive compulsive
disorder, panic disorders, eating disorders, probably psychosis, attention
deficit hyperactivity disorder, post-traumatic stress disorder, harmful and
hazardous levels of alcohol consumption and drug addiction. Overall three
quarters of problems gamblers seeking treatment also experience
co-morbid mental health disorders.

Being a problem or at risk gambler is associated with latter onset of major
depressive disorder, alcohol use and dependence, drug use and
experience of any mental disorder. Illegal drug use and experience of any
mental disorder is also associated with the subsequent onset of at risk and
problem gambling. These findings seem to confirm the conclusion that the
relationship between problem gambling and mental ill health may be
cyclical.

● Substance abuse/misuse – The evidence base relating to the
relationship between substance abuse/misuse and experience of problem
gambling broadly measures that of mental ill health. Evidence from British
based surveys has shown that rates of problem gambling were higher
among those with alcohol dependence (3.4%) or drug dependence (4.4%)
than the general population (0.74%) (Wardle, 2015).

A systemic review of those seeking treatment for gambling problems
showed that 15% also experience alcohol dependence and 7% have other
substance abuse disorders (Dowling et al, 2015). There is strong evidence that
alcohol and substance misuse are associated with problem gambling. As
with other mental health conditions, these conditions can occur at the
same time.

● Personality traits/cognitive distortions – There is a strong body of
evidence highlighting the relationship between various personality traits,
such as cognitive distortions or impulsivity, with problem gambling.
Cognitive distortions, such as erroneous perceptions of gambling and
illusion of control are well established risk factors for problem gambling
(Johansson et al, 2009).

However little research has been conducted to explore the complex
interaction of personality traits with other factors and their combined
influence on the experience of broader gambling harms. Certain
personality traits and/or cognitive distortions are just one potential aspect
of vulnerability which is likely to be affected by a range of other factors.

● Problem gamblers seeking treatment – Because this group is in the
process of attempting to recover from gambling problems they should be

42
268



treated as a vulnerable group in their own right (Wardle, 2015).

30.6   Problem gambling can affect anyone at any time. Whilst rates of problem
gambling among all adults in Britain tend to be less than 1% (1.4% in large
metropolitan areas), there are some groups that are more likely to experience
problems. These groups could all be considered vulnerable to gambling
problems. Worthing Borough Council already works with many of these
groups however operators should consider these groups in their Local Risk
Assessments, especially in relation to identifying the people in these groups,
and mitigating harm experienced by them.

30.7    In the case of premises licences the Licensing Authority is aware of the
extensive requirements set out for operators in the Gambling Commission’s
Code of Practice regarding social responsibility. In this document the
Gambling Commission clearly describe the policies and procedures that
operators should put in place regarding:

• Combating problem gambling
• Access to gambling by children and young people
• Information on how to gamble responsibly and help for problem

gamblers
• Customer interaction
• Self-exclusion
• Employment of children and young people

30.8   The Licensing Authority will require all applicants to familiarise themselves
with the operator licence conditions and codes of practice relating to the
objective ‘Protecting Children and other Vulnerable Persons from Being
Harmed or Exploited by Gambling’ and determine if these policies and
procedures are appropriate in their circumstances. The Licensing Authority
will communicate any concerns to the Gambling Commission about any
absence of this required information.

30.9    Applicants should consider the following proposed measures for protecting
and supporting vulnerable people, for example:

• leaflets offering assistance to problem gamblers should be available on
gambling premises in a location that is both prominent and discreet,
such as toilets

• training for staff members which focuses on building an employee’s
ability to maintain a sense of awareness of how much (e.g. how long)
customers are gambling, as part of measures to detect people who
may be vulnerable

• trained personnel for the purpose of identifying and providing support
to vulnerable people

• self-exclusion schemes

43
269



• operators should demonstrate their understanding of best practice
issued by organisations that represent the interests of vulnerable
people

• posters with GamCare Helpline and website in prominent locations
• windows, entrances and advertisements to be positioned or designed

not to entice children or vulnerable people.

It should be noted that some of these measures form part of the mandatory
conditions placed on premises licences. The Licensing Authority may consider
any of the above or similar measures as licence conditions should these not
be adequately addressed by any mandatory conditions, default conditions or
proposed by the applicant.

30.10 The NHS provides online information and support for people who may be
gambling problematically or affected by someone else’s gambling, including a
short questionnaire to help identify whether someone is gambling
problematically:

https://www.nhs.uk/live-well/healthy-body/gambling-addiction/

30.11 Individuals can access information and support through the Gambling Helpline
on Freephone 0808 80 20 133 or via www.gamcare.org.uk (available 24 hours
a day) and at: https://www.begambleaware.org and information on local
meetings of Gamblers Anonymous can be found at:
https://www.gamblersanonymous.org.uk/geocoding-search?list_view=1&postcode=w
orthing+

30.12  Research & Information regarding problem gambling and the harm it causes
can be found at:

● People who play machines in bookmakers: secondary analysis of loyalty card
survey data (Wardle, 2016)

● Examining the effect of proximity and concentration of B2 machines to gambling
play (Wardle and Astbury, 2016)

● Thorley, C., Stirling, A. & Huynh, E, (2016). Cards on the Table: The Cost to
Government Associated with People who are Problem Gamblers in Britain.
Available online at:
www.ippr.org/files/publications/pdf/Cards-on-the-table_Dec16.pdf

● Citizens Advice. (2018). Out of Luck – An exploration of the causes and impacts of
problem gambling. Available online at:
https://www.citizensadvice.org.uk/about-us/policy/policy-research-topics/consumer-policy-re
search/consumer-policy-research/out-of-luck-an-exploration-of-the-causes-and-impacts-of-p
roblem-gambling/

44
270

https://www.nhs.uk/live-well/healthy-body/gambling-addiction/
http://www.gamcare.org.uk/
https://www.begambleaware.org/
https://www.gamblersanonymous.org.uk/geocoding-search?list_view=1&postcode=worthing+
https://www.gamblersanonymous.org.uk/geocoding-search?list_view=1&postcode=worthing+


● Thorley, C., Stirling, A. & Huynh, E, (2016). Cards on the Table: The Cost to
Government Associated with People who are Problem Gamblers in Britain.
Available online at:
www.ippr.org/files/publications/pdf/Cards-on-the-table_Dec16.pdf

● Local Government Association & Public Health England. (2018). Tackling
gambling related harm. A whole council approach. Available online at:
https://www.local.gov.uk/tackling-gambling-related-harm-whole-council-approach

● Faculty of Public Health. (2018). Faculty of Public Health Gambling Policy
Statement. Available online at:
https://www.fph.org.uk/media/1810/fph-gambling-position-statement-june-2018.pdf

45
271



PART E – MISCELLANEOUS

31. TRAVELLING FAIRS

31.1 Travelling fairs have traditionally been able to provide various types of low
stake gambling without the need for a licence or permit, provided that certain
conditions are met, and this provision continues in similar fashion under the
Act.

31.2 Travelling fairs have the right to provide an unlimited number of Category D
gaming machines and/or equal chance prize gaming (without the need for a
permit) as long as the gambling amounts to no more than an ancillary
amusement at the fair.

31.3 The Licensing Authority will consider whether any fairs which take up the
above entitlement fall within the statutory definition of a travelling fair.

31.4 The Licensing authority is aware that the 27 day statutory maximum for the
land being used as a fair is per calendar year, and that it applies to the piece
of land on which the fairs are held, regardless of whether it is the same or
different travelling fairs occupying the land. The Licensing Authority will work
with its neighbouring authorities to ensure that land which crosses the Council
boundary is monitored so that the statutory limits are not exceeded.

32. GAMING MACHINES

32.1 Where the Licensing Authority is uncertain of whether or not a machine is a
gaming machine as defined under the Act, it will seek the advice of the
Gambling Commission.

32.2 Where the Licensing Authority has concerns about the manufacture, supply or
repair of a gaming machine, it will bring this to the attention of the Gambling
Commission.

32.3 The Licensing Authority will expect the holder of a Permit or Premises Licence
to comply with the Codes of Practice issued by the Commission on the
location of, and access to, Category D machines by children and young
persons and their separation from Category C and B machines where those
are also located on the same premises.

32.4 The Licensing Authority seeks to discourage applications for Premises
Licences for the sole purpose of obtaining the ancillary provision of additional
gaming machines where the principal activity either does not take place or is
minimal. The Licensing Authority believes that the Gambling Act 2005
intended to set restrictions on the number of gaming machines for certain
premises and considers that the fact that the licence authorised the holder to

46
272



provide facilities for betting or bingo means that the operator must provide
those facilities to qualify for the ancillary entitlement to gaming machines.
Whilst this has not yet been legally contested, the Licensing Authority fully
supports this view. The Licensing Authority is aware that the Gambling
Commission has amended its operator licence conditions to address the issue
of the primary gambling activity.

32.5 Worthing has a long history of providing family type gaming machines, such
as penny falls and cranes. Such machines are primarily aimed at children and
family type gaming. We recognise that, on the whole, such machines provide
a low risk in relation to the Licensing Objectives. However, as with all gaming
machines, such machines must be operated in a fair and open manner and in
line with the protection of children from harm Licensing Objective.

32.6 Facilities for gambling must only be offered in a manner which provides for
appropriate supervision of those facilities by staff at all times. The Licensing
Authority has concerns that the use of gaming machines in privacy booths
may prevent adequate supervision and protection of vulnerable persons and
problem gamblers. The Licensing Authority seeks to discourage the use of
privacy screens.

32.7 Any non-monetary prizes within such machines must comply with the
maximum prize limits laid down in the regulations prescribing gaming machine
categories and entitlements. If items such as toy mobile phones (or other
similar novelty items) are offered as prizes, then this Authority will expect to
see clear signage (displayed on or near the machine in question) indicating
that such items are toys / novelty items.

32.8 The Licensing Authority will bring to the attention of specific machine
operators any examples of prizes which it feels are inappropriate or require
clarification to prospective machine users. In addition, where it is able to do
so, the Licensing Authority will undertake appropriate compliance action when
it feels that prizes within penny falls, cranes and other similar machines are
outside the scope of the open and fair and protection of children licensing
objectives.

33. GAMING IN ALCOHOL LICENSED PREMISES

33.1 The Licensing Authority recognises that low level gaming, such as low stakes
poker, may take place in alcohol-licensed premises. Exempt gaming being
equal chance gaming that should be ancillary to the purposes of the premises.
This gaming, however, is subject to statutory stakes and prize limits
determined by the Secretary of State. A nominated gaming supervisor should
therefore supervise gaming in alcohol-licensed premises, (i.e. the Designated
Premises Supervisor (DPS)) and all gaming should comply with Codes of
Practice issued by the Gambling Commission. As there is likely to be limited
regulatory scrutiny of gaming provided in these premises, the Licensing

47
273



Authority expects the applicant to be aware of, and adopt, these Codes of
Practice and to ensure that all gaming in such premises is suitably managed.

34. HUMAN RIGHTS

34.1 The Human Rights Act 1998 makes it unlawful for a local authority to act in a
way, which is incompatible with a right under the European Convention on
Human Rights, except in certain circumstances.  In carrying out its licensing
functions the Licensing Authority will have particular regard to:

● Article 6 that in the determination of civil rights and obligations
everyone is entitled to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable
time by an independent and impartial tribunal established in
accordance with the law.

● Article 8 that everyone has the right to respect for his home and private
and family life.

● Article 1 of the First Protocol that every person is entitled to the
peaceful enjoyment of his or her possessions (including for example
the possession of a licence)

● Article 14 the prohibition of discrimination. The rights and freedoms
within the Convention shall be secured without discrimination on any
ground.

However it is important to understand that many of the rights and freedoms
are subject to limitations, enabling a balance to be struck between the rights
of an individual and the wider interests of a democratic society. Thus a
person’s individual convention rights may be lawfully interfered with but only if
there is a law which permits it. The interference must also be no more than is
necessary and proportionate to the aims.

34.2 The Licensing Authority recognises the importance of the Equality Act 2010.
In applying the Gambling Licensing Policy the Licensing Authority will have
due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination regarding age,
disability, gender- reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual
orientation, marriage and civil partnership and pregnancy and maternity. The
Licensing authority will do all it can to promote equality of opportunity and
good relations between persons of different minority groups.

35. DUPLICATION

35.1 In exercising its functions under the Act the Licensing Authority will seek to
avoid duplication with other regulatory regimes, particularly when attaching
conditions to licence approvals.

35.2 It is recognised that there should be a clear separation of the land use
planning and licensing regimes.  It is expected that any necessary planning
consents will be obtained prior to any licence application.

48
274



36. ADMINISTRATION, EXERCISE AND DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS

36.1 The Licensing Authority is involved in a wide range of licensing decisions and
functions and has established a Licensing & Control Committee to administer
them.

36.2 The Licensing Authority appreciates the need to provide a speedy, efficient and
cost-effective service to all parties involved in the licensing process, and will
delegate certain decisions and functions to sub-committees as appropriate.

36.3 The grant of non-contentious applications, including those licences and permits
where no representations have been made, are delegated to Council Officers in
accordance with statutory requirements.

36.4 The Licensing Authority will clearly specify in the licence application pack the
information required from applicants.  The Licensing Authority will not regard an
application as properly made, and will not register an application as made, unless
and until all such information is provided and the relevant fee has been paid.

36.5 The operational aspects of administering the licensing functions pursuant to
the Gambling Act 2005 will be subject to periodic review.

37. POLICY REVIEW & SUPPORT

37.1 This Policy provides guidance to members, officers, applicants, responsible
authorities, objectors and interested residents on the general approach the
Licensing Authority will take in terms of gambling licensing.  Although each
licence application must be considered separately on its individual merits, in
adopting this policy, the Licensing Authority is making it clear that wider
considerations other than the fitness of the applicant and suitability of the
premises will be taken into account when determining an application.

37.2 The Policy is written in pursuance of the Gambling Act 2005 but may be
revised at any time there is considered to be a need for adjustment. The
Licensing Authority will comply with any statutory requirements. Where
required there will be public consultation before any revision of the policy.

37.3 Guidance notes to accompany this policy and details about the licensing
application process, including application forms, can be found on the council’s
website at: https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/licensing-and-permits/

Queries and advice regarding the policy and licensing in general can be
accessed through:

● Email: Licensing.Unit@adur-worthing.gov.uk
● Telephone: 01273 263331

49
275

https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/licensing-and-permits/
mailto:Licensing.Unit@adur-worthing.gov.uk


Information regarding current & past applications can be found on the
council’s website at:

● https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/licensing-consultations/licensing-a
ct-2003/#applications-worthing

Worthing Borough Council’s Licensing & Control Committee Hearings are held
at:

● Worthing Town Hall
Chapel Road, Worthing, BN11 1HA

The Public Health & Regulation Licensing Team is based at:

● Adur & Worthing Councils
Portland House, Richmond Road, Worthing, BN11 1HS

Interim Director for Communities: Tina Favier

Principal Author and Contact Officer:  Simon Jones

Public Health & Regulation - Team Leader Licensing

50
276

https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/licensing-consultations/licensing-act-2003/#applications-worthing
https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/licensing-consultations/licensing-act-2003/#applications-worthing


APPENDICES

APPENDIX A: INFORMATION & GUIDANCE

The definitions and information included in following pages do not form part of this policy and
are nationally set. They are included in this document to assist the reader. This document
should be read in conjunction with the Gambling Act 2005 (the Act) and Gambling
Commission Guidance to Local Authorities.

GAMBLING ACT 2005

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2005/19/contents

GAMBLING COMMISSION GUIDANCE TO LOCAL AUTHORITIES

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-licensing-authorities/GLA/Guidance-to-licensing-
authorities.aspx

CATEGORIES OF GAMING MACHINE

Gaming machines (fruit machines, slot machines) fall into categories depending on the
maximum stake and prize available. Information regarding Gaming Machine categories can
be found at:

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-gambling-businesses/Compliance/Sector-specifi
c-compliance/Arcades-and-machines/Gaming-machine-categories/Gaming-machine-categor
ies.aspx

NUMBER OF GAMING MACHINES BY PREMISES TYPE

Information regarding the number of Gaming Machines from the various categories that a
licensed premises is entitled to provide can be found at:

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-licensing-authorities/GLA/Appendix-A-Summary
-of-machine-provisions-by-premises.aspx#DynamicJumpMenuManager_1_Anchor_1

51
277

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2005/19/contents
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-licensing-authorities/GLA/Guidance-to-licensing-authorities.aspx
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-licensing-authorities/GLA/Guidance-to-licensing-authorities.aspx
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-gambling-businesses/Compliance/Sector-specific-compliance/Arcades-and-machines/Gaming-machine-categories/Gaming-machine-categories.aspx
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-gambling-businesses/Compliance/Sector-specific-compliance/Arcades-and-machines/Gaming-machine-categories/Gaming-machine-categories.aspx
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-gambling-businesses/Compliance/Sector-specific-compliance/Arcades-and-machines/Gaming-machine-categories/Gaming-machine-categories.aspx
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-licensing-authorities/GLA/Appendix-A-Summary-of-machine-provisions-by-premises.aspx#DynamicJumpMenuManager_1_Anchor_1
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-licensing-authorities/GLA/Appendix-A-Summary-of-machine-provisions-by-premises.aspx#DynamicJumpMenuManager_1_Anchor_1


APPENDIX B: SUMMARY OF SOME TERMS UNDER THE GAMBLING ACT 2005

52
278



53
279



54
280



55
281



This page is intentionally left blank



07/10/2021, 09:42 Adur & Worthing Councils Mail - Re: Adur & Worthing Councils' Gambling Licensing Policies Consultation 2021

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=8bb9962260&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-a%3Ar5194707332129198781%7Cmsg-f%3A17129470… 1/2

Re: Adur & Worthing Councils' Gambling Licensing Policies Consultation 2021

1 message

Richard Tuset <richard.tuset@adur-worthing.gov.uk> 7 October 2021 at 08:59
To: Tina Favier <tina.favier@adur-worthing.gov.uk>
Cc: Mel Shaw <mel.shaw@adur-worthing.gov.uk>, Ed Hele <ed.hele@adur-worthing.gov.uk>, Simon Jones
<simon.jones@adur-worthing.gov.uk>, Caroline Squires <caroline.squires@adur-worthing.gov.uk>

Hello

Thank you for this.

There are strong correlations between gambling establishments and deprivation. The issues with online gambling of
course are also serious and growing.

Please look at the Local Insight Report for Worthing. On page 46 there is the Health Assets and Hazards Index
(2017) and it sets out Worthing potentially having issues with its high street offer with regard to fast food, off licences,
gambling establishments etc.  I'm not sure if this information can be used or incorporated....but sure we would want to
be increasing healthy and less damaging options on our high streets? 

On point 30.2 could addiction be higher up the list? 

With thanks
Richard

Richard Tuset 
Chief Executive's Policy. Adur and Worthing Councils


My pronouns are he/him/his.


Email: richard.tuset@adur-worthing.gov.uk 
Website: www.adur-worthing.gov.uk 
Address: Chief Executive Office, 
Worthing Town Hall, Chapel Road, Worthing, 
West Sussex, BN11 1HA


On Thu, 7 Oct 2021 at 08:00, Tina Favier <tina.favier@adur-worthing.gov.uk> wrote:

Richard / Caroline FYI


Just making some joins here between this refresh of the gambling policy and its reference to vulnerable people
and  our work on financial capability.


If we are trying to help people who are in financial difficulties, I know one of the key issues that keeps coming up is
gambling. 


Are there any opportunities here to add in anything into our policy to address this?


Ed can i ask you to have a chat with Mel perhaps and have a think?


Tina

 
Tina Favier
Interim Director for Communities , Adur & Worthing Councils
Phone: 07850900266
Email: tina.favier@adur-worthing.gov.uk
Website: www.adur-worthing.gov.uk
Address: Communities, Portland House, Richmond Road, Worthing, BN11 1HS

   




---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: Simon Jones <simon.jones@adur-worthing.gov.uk>

Date: Fri, 1 Oct 2021 at 13:01
 283

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1-A4INBrBSKctIaDj2h_NKq63-u4aYtZ_/view?usp=sharing
mailto:richard.tuset@adur-worthing.gov.uk
https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/
mailto:tina.favier@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:tina.favier@adur-worthing.gov.uk
https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/
https://www.facebook.com/AdurWorthingCouncils/
https://twitter.com/adurandWorthing
https://www.youtube.com/user/AdurandWorthing
mailto:simon.jones@adur-worthing.gov.uk


07/10/2021, 09:42 Adur & Worthing Councils Mail - Re: Adur & Worthing Councils' Gambling Licensing Policies Consultation 2021

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=8bb9962260&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-a%3Ar5194707332129198781%7Cmsg-f%3A17129470… 2/2

Subject: Adur & Worthing Councils' Gambling Licensing Policies Consultation 2021

To: Cllr. Kevin Boram <kevin.boram@adur.gov.uk>, Cllr. Paul Mansfield <paul.mansfield@adur.gov.uk>, Cllr. Sean
McDonald <sean.mcdonald@worthing.gov.uk>, Cllr. Steve Wills <steve.wills@worthing.gov.uk>

Cc: Catherine Howe <catherine.howe@adur-worthing.gov.uk>, Tina Favier <tina.favier@adur-worthing.gov.uk>, Ed
Hele <ed.hele@adur-worthing.gov.uk>, Theresa Cuerva <theresa.cuerva@adur-worthing.gov.uk>, Jade Marshall
<jade.marshall@adur-worthing.gov.uk>, Nadeem Shad <nadeem.shad@adur-worthing.gov.uk>, Cheryl Mainstone
<cheryl.mainstone@adur-worthing.gov.uk>, Amy Bowyer <amy.bowyer@adur-worthing.gov.uk>





Dear Sirs


Re: Gambling Act 2005

Adur District Council & Worthing Borough Council Statements of Gambling Licensing 
Policy 

Review Consultation - Request for Views/Comments


For information. 


Adur District Council & Worthing Borough Council are obliged, under the terms of the Gambling Act
2005, to publish their policies with respect to the exercise of its gambling licensing functions and re-
examine those policies every three years. Both Councils' current policies now require reviewing. As
part of the review the Councils have commenced public, authority & stakeholder consultation on
their draft ‘Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy’. 



A draft copy of each policy can be found below and on our website at https://www.adur-worthing.gov.
uk/licensing-consultations/gambling-act-2005/. 


All proposed changes from the current policy are highlighted in orange. The policy contains the
minimum of amendments and no changes to the intent or direction of the policy are included.
Because it contains such minor amendments, consultation of the authorities and public has been
limited to a period of four weeks between 1 October and 29 October 2021.


In addition to the public consultation on our website, the responsible authorities and a
comprehensive selection of stakeholders including trade groups, charity support groups and resident
associations have been written to. 


Regards
 
Simon Jones
Team Leader - Licensing, Adur & Worthing Councils
Phone: 01273 263191
Email: simon.jones@adur-worthing.gov.uk
Website: http://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/licensing-and-permits/
Address: Public Health & Regulation, Public Health & Regulation

Portland House

Worthing

BN11 1HS

   

284

mailto:kevin.boram@adur.gov.uk
mailto:paul.mansfield@adur.gov.uk
mailto:sean.mcdonald@worthing.gov.uk
mailto:steve.wills@worthing.gov.uk
mailto:catherine.howe@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:tina.favier@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:ed.hele@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:theresa.cuerva@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:jade.marshall@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:nadeem.shad@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:cheryl.mainstone@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:amy.bowyer@adur-worthing.gov.uk
https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/licensing-consultations/gambling-act-2005/
mailto:simon.jones@adur-worthing.gov.uk
http://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/licensing-and-permits/
https://www.facebook.com/AdurWorthingCouncils/
https://twitter.com/adurandWorthing
https://www.youtube.com/user/AdurandWorthing

	Agenda
	4 Review of Taxi & Private Hire Handbook
	2021 - WBC  Handbook - consultation
	Appendices A - I
	statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards
	Contents
	Statutory Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle Standards 
	1. Introduction   
	2.Consideration of the Statutory Taxi and Private HireVehicle Standards
	3.Administering the Licensing Regime
	4. Gathering and Sharing Information 
	5. Decision Making 
	6. Driver Licensing 
	7. Vehicle Licensing  
	8. Private Hire Vehicle Operator Licensing 
	9. Enforcing the Licensing Regime 
	Annex – Assessment of Previous Convictions 
	Annex – Disclosure and Barring Service information 
	Annex – CCTV Guidance 
	Annex - Staying Safe: Guidance for Passengers 



	5 Licensing Act 2005 - Statement of Licensing Gambling Act Policy
	App A - WBC GA 2005 Policy Consultation List
	App B - WBC GA 2005 Draft Policy - Jan 2022
	App C - Rep from Richard Tuset CEO's Office (1)


